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Corporate Profile 2 ]

Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Group”)
has been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited since 1993. We are one of the world’s
leading container manufacturers and a major operator
of container depots and terminals in the Asian-Pacific
region. Our container factory and depot networks are
among the most comprehensive in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”).

Our manufacturing business is currently supported by
eleven factories in the PRC. We manufacture a wide range
of products including dry freight containers, collapsible
flatrack containers, open top containers, bitutainers,
refrigerated containers, U.S. domestic containers, tank
containers, offshore containers and other specialised
containers and container parts.

Our logistics business includes container depots/terminals
and logistics company, and is currently running eleven
container depots/terminals, eight at the major ports in
the PRC — Dalian, Tianjin, Qingdao, Qidong, Shanghai,
Ningbo, Fuzhou, and Xiamen, two in Hong Kong and one
in Laemchabang, Thailand. We also operate a logistics
company in Xiamen, the PRC.
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Financial Highlights 81 i &

Net debt to equity ratio
Interest coverage ratio
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Financial Highlights B %=
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | would
like to present the operating results of Singamas Container
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2015.

Affected by weak demand for new containers during
the review year, the consolidated revenue of the Group
fell to US$1,126,414,000 (2014: US$1,546,483,000).
Operating margin contracted due to the ongoing
decline in average selling price (“ASP”) of containers.
This results a consolidated net loss of US$2,723,000
attributable to owners of the Company, against net profit
of US$28,021,000 attributable to owners of the Company
in 2014. Basic loss per share in 2015 was US0.11 cent,
compared with earnings per share of US1.16 cents in
2014,

The decline in performance experienced by the entire
industry was due to the downturn of many major
economies, which subsequently affected world trade and
China’s exports. This in turn affected the demand for,
and average selling price of, new containers, which was
particularly evident during the second half of the financial
year.

Chairman’s

Statement
o FEHE

Mr. Teo Siong Seng RIARR St 4
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer & J& 3% B & 1T 48 B>
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Notwithstanding the abovementioned developments, the
Group’s specialised containers manufacturing and logistics
businesses both achieved good progress. On the cost
front, the implementation of various cost management
measures, including enhancement of automated processes
and optimisation of manpower and work procedures
helped to improve the Group’s operational efficiency.

DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
HK1.5 cents). Capital will be reserved for the development
of the Group’s specialised containers business which
possesses enormous potential.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Manufacturing

Demand for new containers softened during the year,
resulting in a decline in revenue to US$1,093,802,000
against US$1,515,408,000 for the corresponding period
in 2014. Profit before taxation and non-controlling interests
fell to US$2,120,000 (2014: US$45,546,000).

Chairman’s Statement = E#H &
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Chairman’s Statement = E &

The manufacturing operation constitutes the primary
revenue source of the Group, accounting for 97% of total
revenue in 2015. For the reporting year, total production
volume fell by 23% to 526,893 twenty-foot equivalent units
(“TEUS”) (2014: 686,474 TEUSs), while total sales volume
fell by 24% to 520,684 TEUs (2014: 683,007 TEUs). Dry
freight containers and specialised containers accounted
for 59% and 41% (2014: 71% and 29%) of manufacturing
revenue respectively.

Overall demand by shipping companies and container
leasing operators was flat owing to a decline in export
trade and lower leasing rates. In the face of weak
consumption sentiment, the Group took the opportunity
to further develop the specialised containers business.
Correspondingly, the management made adjustments to
certain production facilities to better tap the specialised
containers market.

In reference to the 53’ domestic dry container business,
it has performed well during the reporting year, with
production output reaching 14,000 units. The demand for
these higher margin containers is expected to continue
rising in line with the recovering US economy.

BIEERAAEBRNTELET R 2T
—RFREETENIT% c RAMEFH - B4
=R 23% £ 526,893 AT RIZEMH (=F
— VU4 - 686,47410) - BIHEE R 24% E
520,684 fE 1t RIF 448 (—ZZ — P04 : 683,007
&) - oEEBRFEERM D MG RIEER
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Though the offshore container business has not performed
well owing to the suspension of exploration projects by
certain oil companies in view of declining oil prices, the
management remains optimistic about its medium and
long-term development. In line with this view, the Group
signed an agreement with Modex Group to acquire
the remaining 50% equity interest in Qidong Singamas
Offshore Equipment Co., Ltd, as well as Modex Group’s
manufacturing arm in Taicang, Jiangsu Province. The
management plans to relocate the Taicang plant to
Qidong, where it aims to bring all offshore container
manufacturing activities under one roof. The management
believes that the plant in Qidong will lead to cost savings
and higher efficiency.

While the refrigerated container business has been steady
during the reporting year, ongoing efforts were made to
support the development of this business. Specifically,
construction of our new reefer container factory in
Qingdao has continued, and is on track to commence trial
production in early 2017.

Chairman’s Statement T [E &
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Logistics Services

Revenue derived from the logistics services business rose
slightly to US$32,612,000, compared with US$31,075,000
in 2014. However, being affected by the Tianjin explosions,
the Group made provision of US$2,402,000 on losses
of properties suffered as of the date of this report.
As a result, profit before taxation and non-controlling
interests amounted to US$6,815,000, slightly lower than
US$6,978,000 last year. Though the total number of
containers handled by the Group slipped to 3,098,000
TEUs (2014: 3,170,000 TEUSs), average daily container
storage increased to 126,000 TEUs (2014: 89,000 TEUSs).

PROSPECTS

The demand for new containers is likely to remain soft
in the first half of 2016, and many new container vessel
deliveries have been postponed since 2015, such
developments highlight the global economy that has been
struggling in recent times, and will likely continue in the
immediate future.

Though the outlook for the upcoming year remains uncertain,
the management maintains steadfastly committed to
further enhancing the Group’s competitiveness. Consistent
with this long term policy, the management will continue to
further develop the specialised containers business, and
thereby derive greater benefit from higher margin products.

In respect of the logistics services business, the Group
is likewise committed to enhancing the performance of
this segment. Correspondingly, it reached an agreement
with Guangxi Beibu Gulf International Port Group Ltd.
(“Guangxi Beibu Gulf”) in December 2015 to establish a
joint venture, whereby the Group will gain a foothold in the
strategically important Guangxi autonomous region - one
of the areas that will benefit from China’s “One Belt, One
Road” initiative. Port of Singapore subsequently became
one of the signatories of this alliance, with the Group,
Guangxi Beibu Gulf and Port of Singapore holding 55%,
35% and 10% stake respectively in the joint venture. The
management believes that such a strong strategic alliance
will bring still greater opportunities to the Group’s logistics
services operation going forward.
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SHARE REPURCHASE

As the Board considers the value of the Company’s
shares to be consistently undervalued, it has continued
the practice of repurchasing shares, which also
helps to increase shareholder value and protect the
long-term interest of shareholders. On 22 January 2015,
the Company purchased 1,000,000 of its ordinary shares
at an aggregate price of approximately HK$1,206,160.
On 7 September 2015, the Company purchased a
further 500,000 ordinary shares at an aggregate price of
approximately HK$517,560. The Company has cancelled
the purchased shares on 30 January 2015 and 30
September 2015 respectively. The Board believes that the
financial resources of the Company enable it to conduct
such share repurchase exercises while still maintaining
a solid financial position for the continuation of the
Company'’s business.

INCREASE IN SHAREHOLDINGS BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

It is worth noting that on 15 December 2015, the Board
received a notice from Pacific International Lines (Private)
Limited (“PIL"), the controlling shareholder of the Company,
that it had acquired 38,870,811 shares of the Company
on the same day. Immediately following the acquisition,
PIL held 993,825,345 shares, representing approximately
41.12% of the total issued shares of the Company as at
the date of this annual report.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
appreciation to the many business partners, shareholders
and customers who have been unwavering in their
commitment to the Group. Further, | wish to express my
gratitude to the Board and management team for their
unreserved support during these difficult times. It goes
without saying that the Group’s workforce must be lauded
as well for their tirelessness and commitment. | believe
that the Group will continue to persevere and achieve
progress, motivated by the unstinting support of our many
stakeholders.

Mr. Teo Siong Seng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2016

Chairman’s Statement = E#H &
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The year 2015 saw weak demand for new
containers. How would Singamas tackle with the
challenging market?

Due to the downturn of many major economies
which affected word trade and China’s exports
and subsequently weakens the demand for new
containers in the year 2015. We expect new
container demand to remain soft in the first half of
2016 and global economy will continue to struggle
in the immediate future. In order to tackle with this
challenging market, we have committed to enhance
the Group’s competitiveness by further developing
the specialised containers business and to enhance
the performance of our logistics services business
segment.

The average selling price (“ASP”) of containers
experienced ongoing decline during the past year.
How is your view of the ASP towards 20167 What
are the Company’s solutions to moderate the effect?

Due to significant decline in corten steel price and
soft container demand, the ASP of 20’ dry freight
containers slipped to US$1,789, 14.2% lower
than the corresponding ASP last year. We expect
the corten steel price to stabilise in low range in
2016, thus the ASP of containers also expect to be
stabilised in low level in 2016.

In order to mitigate the effects from the contraction
of operating margins due to the decline in ASP, it
is important to optimise operating efficiency in all
aspects through ongoing automation of various
manufacturing activities, staff training and process
improvement.

Frequently Asked Questions — %1z [
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What is the current market-wide container inventory
level in the market? What is the order book looking
like for dry freight containers and specialised
containers?

Due to slow down in China’s export, the current new
container inventory in the market is around 750,000
twenty-foot equivalent units (“TEUS”), which is
slightly more than the normal requirement of one
month. We currently have one month of orders for
dry freight containers and more than two months of
orders for specialised containers on hand.

In view of higher profit margins enjoyed by
specialised containers, what are the ongoing
efforts being made by the Company to support the
development of this business?

As mentioned in question 1 above, in order to tackle
the challenging market, we have committed to
further develop the specialised containers business.
Specifically, construction of our new refrigerated
container factory in Qingdao has continued and is
on track. We expect to commence trial production
in early to mid of 2017. In addition, the Group
has signed an agreement with Modex Group in
December 2015 to acquire the remaining 50% equity
interest in Qidong Singamas Offshore Equipment
Co., Ltd (“QSOE”), as well as Modex Group’s
manufacturing arm in Taicang (“Modex Taicang”).
QSOE and Modex Taicang are specialised in
producing high quality, international certified offshore
containers. We believe the construction of Qingdao
refrigerated container factory and the acquisition of
QSOE and Modex Taicang will enhance the Group’s
specialised containers business and strengthen our
overall competitiveness.

Frequently Asked Questions — %12 [
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Frequently Asked Questions — %12 [

What is Singamas’ expectation for the vessels
delivery business in 20167

Based on industry publications, the scheduled
delivery of vessels would be around 191 fleets in
2016, with an estimated increase in total shipping
capacity of approximately 1.35 million TEUs. Among
this 191 fleets to be delivered in 2016, 61 fleets
have a capacity of over 10,000 TEUs.

While raw material prices experienced substantial
decline in 2015, particularly the price of corten steel.
What is your view on the price trend in 20167

We expect the oversupply issue among the steel
industry in China to persist in 2016 and it would not
be resolved overnight. However, with the Chinese
steelmakers resulted in substantial losses in 2015,
it forced them and China government to address
the oversupply issue. As mentioned in question 2,
we expect the corten steel price to stabilise and
maintain at a low level.

The Group has signed an agreement in December
2015 to acquire the remaining equity interest
in QSOE, as well as Modex Taicang. What are
Singamas’ expectations for the revenue and profit
contribution of the two operations to the Group in
20167

In view of substantial decline in oil prices, certain
oil companies suspended their exploration projects
recently. We do not expect the acquisition of QSOE
and Modex Taicang would provide significant
contributions to the Group in 2016, but remain
optimistic about their medium and long-term
development.

TR E — T — N EF R MAA A A AT
SAfar?

BEBETETYMNERBER  —T—RF
RSN A 191 - B
B2 TE T2 1 HN49 1,350,000 fE H RAIZ
BEERM - RZTE—NEFERXFAI191 2
A - 61 8 2  iE 2 #8 #8 10,000 1
HRIEEL RN A M o

FEMEHER - BRI E e M =
T—RHFEANE TR FEE -_ZT—RF
MEREDRBREE?

HPIFEE T B S 1T R A R R AV 8
BN T NERE - BRBATIITEE
FRR o R - AN AP BISEAERN =
T-RFHREEAESE  AEMFARP
BRI BT B 3 1 FE B Rl B o AN RE — PRy
At - AP TREA S A 1 S BN M4
W AR FAZE GRAE

RZE—RF+-F SEKETER
MBI RER TIRAREZ - URKE
Modex ° B TERT L R EFHN — T —<
FHEREEFTRZLEEBNRNE
Bt

ETmART AERE TR E =R
B BAYAFRBRERRBEE TE
#EL AR Modex I —F— N FREE
SREXNER - BHRMEMEERR 5
ERPERIDATTES -



BRMEECEARAR « —T—HFFR ‘ 17

Honorary Chairman, Directors and
Senior Management Profile

KEXF EENSEEEAE[HN

The Honorary Chairman and directors of the Company
(“Director”) at the date of this annual report are as follows:

HONORARY CHAIRMAN
Mr. Chang Yun Chung

DIRECTORS

Mr. Teo Siong Seng "° Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Chan Kwok Leung *  Executive Director and
Chief Operating Officer
Executive Director

Executive Director,

Mr. Teo Tiou Seng *
Ms. Chung Pui King,

Rebecca * Chief Financial Officer and
(Appointed on Company Secretary
2 July 2015)

RAFHRAPEEZARRREBEIRRES
(Ex=DwT:

Mr. Kuan Kim Kin #

Mr. Tan Chor Kee

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok,
David

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan #

Mr. Ong Ka Thai °*

Mr. Yang, Victor #

Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Independent
Non-executive Director
Independent
Non-executive Director
Independent
Non-executive Director
Independent

Non-executive Director

# Audlit Committee Member

" Management Committee Member
© Nomination Committee Member

4 Remuneration Committee Member

Brief biographical details of the Honorary Chairman and
Directors at the date of this annual report are as follows:

HONORARY CHAIRMAN

Mr. Chang Yun Chung (also known as Mr. Teo Woon
Tiong), aged 97, the former Chairman of the Board, was
appointed on 20 April 1993 but was then appointed as
Honorary Chairman of the Company on 27 May 2013
following his retirement as a director of the Company.
Mr. Chang started his shipping career in Singapore in 1949
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and is the founder of Pacific International Lines (Private)
Limited (“PIL”), the controlling and substantial shareholder
of the Company as defined under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Mr. Chang is the father of Mr. Teo Siong Seng and
Mr. Teo Tiou Seng, directors of the Company. Mr. Chang
graduated from the Xiamen Datung College. Mr. Chang is
the Chairman of the PIL Group of companies in Singapore,
which is engaged in shipping and related businesses. He
is also the Chairman of Pacific International Lines (H.K.)
Limited (“PILHK”) of Hong Kong, a subsidiary of PIL, Maya
Corporation Pte. Ltd. of Singapore, Malaysia Shipping
Corporation Sdn. Bhd. of Malaysia, Eastern Maritime
(Thailand) Ltd. and Pacific Seatran Lines Ltd. of Thailand.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, B.Sc. (Naval Architect), aged 61,
was appointed on 20 April 1993, became the President
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 February
1997 and was appointed as Chairman of the Company on
27 May 2013. Mr. Teo is a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company and he is also the younger brother of Mr.
Teo Tiou Seng. Mr. Teo started his shipping career with
PIL Group in Singapore since 1979 and was appointed
the managing director of PIL in October 1992. He is an
executive director of various PIL subsidiaries and joint
venture companies whose activities include shipowning,
liner shipping, ship agencies, freight forwarding, container
manufacturing, ships recycling, marine services, container
depot/terminal operation, warehousing, logistics park,
real estate and travel. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of China Shipping Development
Company Limited. He is the Chairman of The Standard
Steamship Owners’ Protection and Indemnity Association
(Asia) Ltd., Singapore Maritime Institute Governing Council
and Singapore Business Federation. He is also a Council
Member of China Overseas Exchange Association and the
Immediate Past President of Singapore Chinese Chamber
of Commerce & Industry. Mr. Teo is the Honorary Consul
of The United Republic of Tanzania in Singapore. He is the
Honorary Citizen of Foshan City (Guangdong Province)
and Yixing City (Jiangsu Province) of China.
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Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, aged 58, was appointed on
1 March 2012. Mr. Chan is the Chief Operating Officer of
the Company and is a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. He joined Eng Kong Container Services
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, on 1 July 1994.
He has more than 36 years of combined experience
in marketing, container depot management, container
inspection and repair, and container leasing. Prior to joining
the Company, he was the Technical Director of Unicon
International Ltd., a container surveying company with
major interests in the Far East.

Mr. Teo Tiou Seng, aged 63, was appointed on
26 June 1996 as Executive Director of the Company and
is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Teo is the elder brother of Mr. Teo Siong Seng and
has been engaging in shipping business since 1977.
Mr. Teo graduated and holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the University of Western Ontario,
Richard lvey School of Business. He has more than
33 years of working experience in container transport
business and is also a director of PIL and the managing
director of PILHK.

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, M.B.A., HKICPA,
FCCA, aged 47, was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company on 2 July 2015. She was also appointed
as Chief Financial Officer of the Company on 2 February
2013 and was appointed as Company Secretary of the
Company on 10 September 2013. She is also the director
of a subsidiary of the Company. She was appointed as
the Director of Modex Holding Limited, an associate of
the Company, which specialised in leasing and trading
of offshore containers, on 10 October 2014. Ms. Chung
joined the Group on 1 January 1996. She has more than
24 years of combined experience in public accountancy,
sourcing and manufacturing.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kuan Kim Kin, aged 67, was appointed as Non-
executive Director of the Company on 15 July 1998.
Mr. Kuan has been an executive director of the Finance
Division of PIL since 7 June 2004. He also holds
directorship in various PILl's Group of Companies. Other
than their relationship with PIL, these various PIL’s Group of
Companies are third parties independent of the Company
and connected persons of the Company. Prior to joining
PIL, he held a number of senior financial and accounting
positions across diverse business groups, including two
public listed companies in Malaysia. Mr. Kuan is a fellow
member of The Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants (United Kingdom).

Mr. Tan Chor Kee, aged 63, was appointed as Non-
executive Director of the Company on 2 July 2013. Mr.
Tan graduated from the University of Singapore with a first
class honour degree in Mechanical Engineering. He has
more than 38 years of experience in shipping particularly
in equipment management, costs control, corporate
planning, logistics operations, agency and liner business.
Mr. Tan is currently the Deputy Managing Director of PIL.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, aged 67, was appointed
as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 1 November 2012. Mr. Cheng graduated in 1975 from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor (Honors)
Degree in Social Sciences. He has extensive experience
in banking, corporate finance and shipfinance. Mr. Cheng
has retired from the Head of Shipfinance in Asia of Credit
Agricole CIB with effective from 1 May 2014, but remains
as the Senior Advisor to the Global Shipping Group of the
Bank. He is also a director and the Honorary Chairman of
Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited. Credit Agricole
CIB and Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited are
third parties independent of the Company and connected
persons of the Company. Mr. Cheng is a member of the
Working Group on Transportation under the Hong Kong
Economic Development Commission, and also a member
of the Hong Kong Maritime Industry Council of Transport
and Housing Bureau, Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. In June 2015, Mr. Cheng was conferred the
Distinction of “Chevalier de I'ordre National du Merite” by
the French Government.
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Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan, aged 57, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
1 March 2011. Mr. Lau is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) in Hong Kong, a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Lau
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Master’s Degree in Professional Accounting. He
has extensive experience in accounting and financial
management. Mr. Lau is currently an independent non-
executive director of CCT Land Holdings Limited (formerly
known as CCT Tech International Limited), a company
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is also
an independent non-executive director of Glory Mark Hi-
Tech (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the growth
enterprise market of the Stock Exchange. CCT Land
Holdings Limited and Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings)
Limited are third parties independent of the Company and
connected persons of the Company.

Mr. Ong Ka Thai, aged 61, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
17 May 1997. Mr. Ong is currently the Chairman of various
companies including Ong Pacific (H.K.) Ltd., Ong Pacific
Capital Ltd., Ong First Tradition Holdings Pte. Ltd., Ong
Commodities Pte. Ltd. and Ong Pacific Pte. Ltd.. Mr. Ong
is also the President and CEO of KGI Ong Capital Pte. Ltd.
(formerly known as Ong First Tradition Pte. Ltd.). These
companies are third parties independent of the Company
and connected persons of the Company. Mr. Ong
graduated from the University of California at Los Angeles
with a Bachelor of Arts Degree majoring in Economics,
had served as the CEO for a number of multinational joint
ventures since then. Mr. Ong is currently an independent
non-executive director of Shanghai International Shanghai
Growth Investment Limited, a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ong was previously an
independent non-executive director of China Bohai Bank
Limited. Except for the provision of banking facilities by
China Bohai Bank Limited to subsidiaries of the Group,
Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment
Limited and China Bohai Bank Limited are third parties
independent of the Company and connected persons of
the Company. Mr. Ong has over 39 years of experience in
the manufacturing, corporate and trade finance, regional
equity, futures and commodities trading, investment
banking and corporate advisory services, as well as direct
and private equity investment.
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Mr. Yang, Victor, aged 70, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 15 April 2008. Mr. Yang was a founding partner of
Boughton Peterson Yang Anderson, Solicitors, Hong
Kong and he is also a qualified lawyer in Canada and the
United Kingdom. Mr. Yang has over 42 years experience
in legal practice primarily in the areas of corporate finance,
commercial law, mergers and acquisitions. He is presently
an Executive Committee member and an immediate past
Governor of the Canadian Chamber of Commerce, a
council member of Haw Par Music Foundation Limited,
a director of the Hong Kong Foundation for UBC Limited
and a member of the University of British Columbia,
Canada, Dean of Law’s Council of Advisors. Mr. Yang was
a past board member of the Canadian International School
of Hong Kong Limited and a past member of the Major
Sports Events Committee of the Home Affairs Bureau,
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Yang is
also an independent non-executive director of Playmates
Toys Limited and One Media Group Limited, which are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yang
remained as a non-executive director of Lei Shing Hong
Limited after the company privatized in March 2008 and
resigned as an independent non-executive director of
Media Chinese International Limited, China Agri-Industries
Holdings Limited and China Hanking Holdings Limited
as of 1 October 2009, 26 August 2015 and 19 January
2016 respectively. China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited,
Playmates Toys Limited, Lei Shing Hong Limited, Media
Chinese International Limited, One Media Group Limited
and China Hanking Holdings Limited, all are third parties
independent of the Company and connected persons of
the Company.

All Directors, except for the Managing Director of the
Company who shall subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years but shall be eligible for re-
election, are subject to retirement and re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. For details
of their respective profiles, please refer to the circular
accompanied with this annual report.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management at the date of this annual report
are as follows:

Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Teo Siong Seng

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung  Chief Operating Officer
Ms. Chung Pui King, Chief Financial Officer and
Rebecca Company Secretary

Vice President

Vice President

Vice President

Vice President (Appointed on
1 January 2016)

Mr. Hsu Yung Ming
Mr. Ren Yudong
Mr. Yu Bing

Mr. Wu Bing Hong

Details of the senior management at the date of this annual
report are as follows:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, was appointed as President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 February
1997, then appointed as Chairman of the Company on
27 May 2013. Please refer to the Directors section for
details.

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, was appointed as Executive
Vice President of Marketing and General Manager — Hong
Kong Container Depot and Terminal Operations on 1 July
1994 and was appointed as Chief Operating Officer of
the Company on 1 November 2012. Please refer to the
Directors section for details.

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, was appointed as Chief
Financial Officer of the Company on 2 February 2013 and
was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company on
10 September 2013. Please refer to the Directors section
for details.
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Mr. Hsu Yung Ming, aged 66, was appointed as Vice
President of the Company since 1 April 2014. Mr. Hsu
is the General Manager of Shanghai Pacific International
Container Co., Ltd. Mr. Hsu graduated from Taiwan
Dong Wu University major in Machinery and Business
Management. Mr. Hsu was previously senior management
of various companies in container manufacturing and
related business in Taiwan. Mr. Hsu joined the Company
in 2006 acting as General Manager of Ningbo Pacific
Container Co., Ltd.. Mr. Hsu has over 41 years of
experience in container manufacturing and corporate
management.

Mr. Ren Yudong, aged 54, was appointed as Vice
President of the Company on 1 April 2014. Mr. Ren is
currently the General Manager of Qidong Singamas
Energy Equipment Co., Ltd.. He is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ren joined the
Company on 1 August 2002. He has more than 34 years
of experience in container manufacturing.

Mr. Yu Bing, BE (Bachelor of Engineering), Senior
Economist, aged 54, Vice President, joined the Company
on 15 October 2014 and also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Yu has more than
28 years of experience in shipping industry management,
factory management, international trade and related
logistic business. Prior to joining the Company, he was
a deputy general manager of Pacific International Lines
(China) Ltd..

Mr. Wu Bing Hong, aged 43, was appointed as Vice
President of the Company on 1 January 2016. Mr. Wu
is concurrently acting as General Manager of Huizhou
Pacific Container Co., Ltd., and is in charge of various
divisions of the Group including Marketing Department in
Shanghai, Quality Management Department and Research
& Development Center. He also assists in overseeing the
operation of the Group’s factories. Mr. Wu graduated
from Guangzhou Ji'nan University with major in Business
Administration and graduated from Hubei University of
Technology with a Bachelor Degree in Administrative
Management. Mr. Wu joined the Group in 2001. He has
over 20 years of experience in container manufacturing
and corporate management.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has
consistently adopted and complied with the applicable code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as guidelines to
reinforce our corporate governance principles, except for one
deviation which is disclosed below.

In respect of Code Provision A.2.1, Mr. Teo Siong Seng took
up both roles as the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer are not separated. The Board
considers that this structure has the advantage of a strong
and consistent leadership which is conducive to making and
implementing decisions efficiently and consistently.

Save for the above deviation, none of the Directors is aware
of any information which would reasonably indicate that the
Company is not, or, was not during the year in compliance
with the code provisions of the Code as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”/“Directors”)
believes that appropriate corporate governance practices are
essential for the Company to enhance its accountability and
transparency so as to achieve a balance of the interests of
shareholders, customers, employees and investment partners
of the Company in all material respects. Accordingly, the
Company aims at maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices.
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Key corporate governance principles and corporate governance

Aprlz TBEEERRREEE AT A

practices of the Company are summarised below: LU
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #F(Cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2£58 | FAKX R (E) PEERER
A. DIRECTORS
BF
A The Board
EE2g
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.
EEGRAFAEREEATNET  TEEAEREREBEAREE -

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and
whether he/she is spending sufficient time performing them.
EERRTHRIESARARBITREMBNENER  ULEBRES TS 2HREEITERE

AtA

Regular board meetings should be C e The Board held four meetings in 2015. The Board would meet more
held at least four times a year involving frequently as and when required.
active participation, either in person BN _T-LFARTHOASE HEAFEN EFFrdRBIE
or through electronic means of -
communication, of majority of directors.
srerTHiesdkresaa2L3RAMK e The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, two non-executive
RENDEHEHRIHFE  HEBEFBE Directors and four independent non-executive Directors. No alternative
STETB R o Director was appointed during 2015.
EERRBEBHITES  MAFNTESROBELIERITESEX -
T -AFAVELZEEAEEES -

e The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the
date and details of Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings held for the
year ended 31 December 2015 are set out below:
HE_Z-—HE+-_A=T-HUIEFERHEZEERN EETEXNERESRT
FEHE-T-—AFT-_A=t—HIEFENEETSGAIINT :

Number of
attendance
Name of Directors BEEME HERE
Executive Directors HITES
Teo Siong Seng IRADNEE 4/4
(Chairman and (EEFEE
Chief Executive Officer) TR )
Chan Kwok Leung PR B AR 4/4
(Chief Operating Officer) (BEEERE)
Teo Tiou Seng REREE 4/4
Chung Pui King, Rebecca IR 2/2
(Chief Financial Officer (BEABEE
and Company Secretary) FREIHE)
(Appointed on (R=ZZ—HF
2 July 2015) +tAZHEZM)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Kuan Kim Kin Ra s iE 4/4
Tan Chor Kee PeRAE E 4/4
Independent BIKHITES
Non-executive
Directors
Cheng Fu Kwok, David el 4/4
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan EIEIRES 4/4
Ong Ka Thai FR%E 4/4
Yang, Victor 15 &8 4/4
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #F(Cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
8238 | FAKX R (E)) DEERER
A1 e The Directors may attend meetings in person, by conference telephone
(cont’d) or by means of a similar communication equipment or by their alternate in
(&) accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles”). An
updated and consolidated version of the Company’s Articles (both English
and Chinese versions) are available on the websites of the Company
and Stock Exchange. The Company has not made any changes to its
constitution documents during the year.
RIBEARA 2 ASEREAN([ZRAA])  EFAURS - BREEGH
SHRLURASBRM E R eE  mEREEERABHE - ERMA &R
ERA(EXRPXIR) - EFHRRNR B RABLZFA@EM - FA - RAFNE
EE ARSI E) -
A.1.2 | All directors are given an opportunity C e All Directors are consulted and are welcomed to include any matter in the
to include matters in the agenda for agenda before the agenda for each regular Board meeting is issued.
regular board meetings. REEFeTHSRLLEEN  EHARBOMBEEFRLAEMETE
PREFEARSREMNFEIAE AU AEZERIE ©
ES S il
A.1.3 |- Atleast 14 days notice for regular C e The Company gives at least 14 days formal notice before each regular and
board meetings. other Board meeting.
BREZSTHeRRELED RERAREHREMEESSRANE D THREL ER B -
FPURIBAN o
— Reasonable notice for other board
meetings.
BHREMESSSHREREHAIER
an e
A1.4 |Minutes of board meetings and C e The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board,
meetings of board committees should Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Management Committee
be kept by a duly appointed secretary meetings. Another duly appointed secretary is responsible for taking minutes
of the meeting and should be open for of Remuneration Committee meetings.
inspection at any reasonable time on NENEBEREESZE  BRZLEY REAZESKEREZEEgHRL
reasonable notice by any director. 8 mEFMEES gL AlBIIIN—(IEEEE s NEB R -
BEAZENSEWERBHFEEENR
HETLZEeNgR0  aATME e Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are sent to all Directors/
SRHAERAN . EAREAESRH Board Committee members within a reasonable time after each Board and
HEEF RS IEHNEERER - Board Committee meeting.
GREZEREETZEGRRAARE  REERRANLESGRHAET
ZEEgHH RBRERIEES HETZEEKE -

e Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are made available for
inspection by Directors/Board Committee members at the Registered Office
of the Company.
EXeRHEBTZEeRRTH RERAIHES HETZE8EeRER
KRR MPFEEER o

A1.5 |- Minutes of board meetings and C e Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings record contain

meetings of board committees
should record in sufficient detail the
matters considered and decisions
reached.
EEEgREBETZEENERD
% EHERCMERSEIER
BRE1E R SR AR FE R ©

— Draft and final versions of minutes
for all directors to comment and to
keep records within a reasonable
time after the board meeting.
EZRYRERE - BREERER
NS EE LSRN IIR M &ET
REX2BES  VRMHEFRE
BR  &EERANVERERZSEZA -

sufficient details of matters considered and decisions reached including
concerns raised or dissenting views expressed by the Directors.
BEEeRHEBETZE N2 0BT MO RBIIMEESFHEZFERM
TEEPRTE - EPBRESRINTAREIRENREER

Directors are given an opportunity to comment on draft Board minutes.
ERAREREFTSRRCHIRRERR

Final version of Board minutes is placed on record within a reasonable time
after the Board meeting.
EFQORARE  RABERRARTERLENREERIECHEZM -
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Code Ref.
2E540

Code Provisions
FHIKX

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
E¥(cl)/
#E(E)

Corporate Governance Practices
DEERER

A1.6

A procedure agreed by the board to
enable directors, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the company’s
expense.

EECRRZBTIRT  EEREE
BEK - AIEEENBER TERE
VEEER  BRAQAXNMN -

The board should resolve to
provide separate independent
professional advice to directors to
assist them perform their duties to
the company.
EERERASINRESREE L
EXER  UHBHMETEHA
AIME -

C

Directors have free access to the legal counsel of the Company and if needed
and upon request, Directors are allowed to seek independent professional advice
at the Company’s expenses.

EENERGHARNRVARER  MEFEREAERT EFAZRKEY
HESR  WHARAZNER -

Al17

If a substantial shareholder or a
director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by
the board which the board has
determined to be material, the
matter should be dealt with by a
physical board meeting rather than
a written resolution.
EAXERRAERAEEGHT
EZENFEFFTAEETERR/EAN
R = EZR - AASEEERITE
Feggn(MESERE) FAE
3 e

Independent non-executive
directors who, and whose close
associates, have no material
interest in the transaction should
be present at that board meeting.
ERGHRAG RABZEEEE AL
BERN@OE L IFNTEEEZ
LEEENEEgEE -

Important matters are usually dealt with by way of written resolutions so that
all Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) can note and
comment, as appropriate, the matters before approval is granted.
BZFEFEMRUETEAERFTARE  UERBEE(BEBIFNTE
F)EMFEHSE  UHEBRXRER (WEE)% - AiUEZEE -

Director must declare his/her interest in the matters to be passed in the
resolution, if applicable.

BEFAMRBREANBFEBZ FRARAN S (HER)

Material transactions with a substantial shareholder or a Director being
a connected person, in general, would be considered at physical Board
meeting whereat the Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, may consider, if appropriate, granting approval in principle for the
proposed transactions.

—RIEAT BRFERFRAEF ABBATHITIEARSERNESE
SREZR EF(AEEIFNTES) RS2 LAIZEREE BN TRA
HHERERS -

Arrange appropriate insurance cover
in respect of legal action against the
directors.
NREME LA LG HE A B ERTEE
BEEOIRRTHE

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and Officers Liability
insurance coverage for its Directors and officers.

ARFBEREETRBRABLEENERTRERABRETRRE -

A2

Chairman and Chief Executive
FERITHARE

Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA

There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the management of the Board and the day-to-day management of
business of the Company to ensure a balance of power and authority.

EEENREEENEBNAREENRTEGERE

7

© ARECRHE D AR D 51 -

A2

Roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separated and
should not be performed by the
same individual.
FRETRERNACESRES
WA EH— ARRFRE

Division of responsibilities between
the chairman and chief executive
should be clearly established and
set out in writing.

FRETHAR RBEND TE
ERREWASEINE o

E

Mr. Teo Siong Seng took up both roles as the Chairman of the Board and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer are not separated. The Board considers that this structure
has the advantage of a strong and consistent leadership which is conducive
to making and implementing decisions efficiently and consistently.
RINERERBEEARACESETRREBITRAE  MEFERER
THEERMBIL D BB 2B - EF2RRULEBERERERME
B2 e AMBMNMEL REHBB R R =B RE -
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Code Ref.
2E540

Code Provisions
FHIKX

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
E¥(cl)/
#E(E)

Corporate Governance Practices
DEERER

A2.2

The chairman should ensure that all
directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at board meetings.
ITRERRESSEZ L IEESHON
BHEEAINEIE

C

With the assistance of the executive Directors, the management and the
Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and receive adequate
documents and information about the Group in a timely manner.

HERTEE BERELRABAMENHY T FEHNBREBEFHIRZ
RENEFEGREECFE - WAKADEREEREENXHERER

A23

The chairman should be responsible
for ensuring that directors receive, in
a timely manner, adequate information
which must be accurate, clear,
complete and reliable.

IREEEERREZNFKIITOHE
& - 78 BIE A IR R EEHEB R N S

s

Rl 3E °

The Board papers including supporting analysis and related background
information are normally sent to the Directors at least three working days
before Board meetings.

EEGRRINHBREEEMREBESRER  —RREFFFHRBHAN
PORZ(AEERERESE -

Company Secretary acts as a co-ordinator to facilitate the communication
between the Directors to ensure that queries raised and clarification sought
by the Directors are dealt with and further supporting information and/or
documentation is provided as appropriate.
REMEELSHRAERESFTHNER BREEHAREREREEZ
RIEEISEIE - WERMGE —SEEER R XX (EE) o

A2.4

— The chairman should provide
leadership for the board.
FTEHNACEEEESE -

— The chairman should ensure that
the board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities, and
that all key and appropriate issues
are discussed by it in a timely
manner.
FTRERREESHRONEE B
BITEERE  WRHRMBEEE
BB E STEHEITHR

— The chairman should be primarily
responsible for drawing up and
approving the agenda for each
board meeting. He should take
into account, where appropriate,
any matters proposed by the
other directors for inclusion in
the agenda. The chairman may
delegate this responsibility to a
designated director or the company
secretary.
ITREFZAEETWHEGRE
EEEINHE WEEEBRT
FT R E A E E RS AR IZ A E(]
RIH o TEAGEHRETEKET
MWESH WS -

The Chairman of the Board is an executive Director who is responsible for
the leadership and effective running of the Board.
EESTIFHPTESHE  EEREREAUNERERE -

The Chairman of the Board determines the broad strategic direction of the
Group in consultation with the Board and is responsible for the high-level
oversight of management.
EEGTEAEAANESTGRIGIAEERERR AR WAEKAEER
EEEEENTE-

All Directors are consulted as to whether they wish to include any matters in
the agenda. The Chairman of the Board designates the Company Secretary
to draw up the agenda by taking into account the matters, if any, proposed
by the other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.

PREFYRZASEEEMNEEERIIAREN EFGEFEERQA
MERTEFEERRAERERICEMESTERNFTHWE)IIAZRER -

With the support of the executive Directors and the Company Secretary,
the Chairman ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on all key and
appropriate issues on a timely manner.

ERTEERARMEBRET » FEVNBRAEESHERDEME
BENEEEIE -

A2.5

The chairman should take primary
responsibility for ensuring that good
corporate governance practices and
procedures are established.
TREAETERMT  BRAFGIERL
BEREATRMEF

The chairman of the Board, with the support of the Company Secretary,

takes primary responsibility to establish good corporate governance

practices and procedures of the Company.

%igggﬁﬂiw%%%ﬁﬁTEEgﬁakﬁﬂiﬁ%ﬁ%%iéﬁiﬁ&ﬁf%
=" °
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #BF([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2EF8 | AKX (el DEERER

A.2.6 |- The chairman should encourage all C e The Chairman meets with the Directors regularly to discuss various matters

directors to make a full and active of the Group and encourages the Directors to express their views concerning
contribution to the board’s affairs the management of the Group.
and take the lead to ensure that TRAERETREERTRAEETRSEENFERSBAEESFREY
it acts in the best interests of the BHREEALEENER -
company.
FTRESBAEEEF2NRAES
SER - WAHIER - BREFS
TEFAERARIRENR °
— The chairman should encourage
directors with different views to
voice their concerns, allow sufficient
time for discussion of issues and
ensure that board decisions fairly
reflect board consensus.
IREBHTRAERNERSEER
EEASBEINEE HATELS
HaeWREi®R  URERESE
BREREN I E R EESHHE -

A.2.7 | The chairman should at least annually C e The Chairman keeps open dialogue with individual independent
hold meetings with the non-executive non-executive Directors to ensure effective communication. In addition
directors (including independent to regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board met with the
non-executive directors) without the non-executive Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
executive directors present. without the presence of the other executive Directors on 7 December 2015.
ITREEVBFRERTES(BESE FREERB R TESH R EEUARRERER - REFETE
SUEBITER)RITRNRANITES HEgR/ EFSIFRENTES (REBYIFNTER)N_T—0F
HRH & o T AL BEWEEMEMRITERNER TRITEE

A.2.8 |The chairman should ensure that C e The Company provides updated information of the Group to all

appropriate steps are taken to
provide effective communication with
shareholders and that their views
are communicated to the board as a
whole.
FEEBRREGE S PR RIFERRA
A - LA R RERAR R B R A EiE R
fEEsg -

shareholders when it becomes available and appropriate, through
the publication of interim and annual reports, circulars, notices,
media releases or other means in compliance with the legal and
regulatory requirements. The Company has made such information
available on the Company’s website (http://www.singamas.com)
as well as on an independent website provider (http://www.irasia.com/listco/
hk/singamas). The purpose is to provide our shareholders an alternative
channel to access the Group’s information easily and reach the potential
shareholders globally.

RRBBOAMAERRIBHAEESHER  WEZSERERBLEEER
TP EISRE R FR - B - RS FERMSGETTEAEREERTNEM
R o AR RIE G5 F AR L&A B 488 (htto:/Avww.singamas.com)
) B I8 _E S — 98 37 A8k 4 E 7 (http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/singamas) *
Ut B BRI HBEINE R ERRE R S IMTFRAEE N ER K E B
BEEEIRBIERR o

Apart from providing a forum for Directors’ dialogue with shareholders in the
Company’s general meetings during the year, the Company continuously
enhances shareholders’ communications by holding press and analyst
conferences during any reporting period or year. In addition, the Company
has a “Frequently Asked Questions” section in its annual report providing
its shareholders with more clear and concise information that may be of
common concern. Besides, the Company has responded to letters and
telephone enquiries from shareholders and potential shareholders throughout
the year under review.

REBFEAN  RERAAFRRAS FRE—ARREEELHEZNT AN
RNEE R NER B RS - ERM AE R FEEER - AR
RIMNERITEERIMEEE o 1o - ARBIERE [ MR BHREF
WA - FELAIRHLEEM R EMER K RRDF AR A ERE o B RAFR
IERF N1 A R BRI MBERR AR KA EFZEH o
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #F([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
8238 | FAKX #R(ED DEERER
A.2.8 e Procedures for shareholders to convene a general meeting
(cont’d) Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total voting rights of all
(&) shareholders of the Company having a right to vote at general meetings

can deposit a written request at 19/F., Rykadan Capital Tower, 135 Hoi Bun
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company, for the
attention of the Company Secretary. The written request must state the
general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting, signed by the
shareholders concerned and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more of those shareholders.
RRBERRAREZEF

RIRRAERHE TP 5% AR R R BRRZ AR - AJIEEEBK
FEANANTMMER : BBENEGBEBIBREEERKNE19E - 1
BEHANAMEN RERBRARMSE LFEBEEBN—RIEE - I
?%Eg%ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%&ﬂm%T’ﬁiﬁﬁ\xﬁ%ﬁﬂ BRI B — A b
X R R ©

Procedures for putting forward proposals at Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”)

Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
shareholders having at the date of the request the right to vote at the AGM;
or not less than 50 shareholders holding shares in the Company who have
a right to vote at the resolution of the AGM can submit a written request to
move a resolution at the AGM. The written request must state the resolution,
signed by all the shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form (which between them contain the signatures of all
the shareholders concerned). The written request must be deposited at
19/F., Rykadan Capital Tower, 135 Hoi Bun Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the
registered office of the Company, for the attention of the Company Secretary
not less than six weeks before the meeting to which it relates or if later, the
time at which notice is given of that meeting. Shareholders holding not less
than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all shareholders having a relevant
right to vote, or at least 50 shareholders who have a relevant right to vote,
may request the Company to circulate, to shareholders of the Company
entitled to receive notice of a general meeting, a statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to (a) a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution to be dealt with at that meeting, or (b) other business to be dealt
with at that meeting. The request must be deposited at 19/F., Rykadan
Capital Tower, 135 Hoi Bun Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered
office of the Company, identify the statement to be circulated, signed by all
the shareholders concerned and be received by the Company not less than
seven days before the meeting to which it relates.
RERRAFASE(RRAFAZ ) RUEBBZER
IATALAMARHERETHRLKAERREFAG LEFHRER © X
FREREWEBHALATRBEREFRE EXR - BADRPERFR
FORER) 2.5% : HADRE0BIHARR AR RENIRER - ZE MK
BERZRER - BB ERRREE KA B HEAR X ER (HEA2
BAEMBRRZZENGLE) ZEEARATEARNTMPREE - B8
NIEGEBIBRAEEARKNE19E - MEFAADAIMEW - WFETD
TR R 2 RREAF ARG RT 2 NE2Has (NEiE) HHRFEAFAE@
M NEEZFE R - AN RERBBIRERE 2 PG RER 2 2RREDN
2.5% 5 AR50 BIFA AN AIAERA R AME B IR ER AT 5K ] ) A R U
FREAGRE ZRREH —HTZMN 1,000 FHIRME - ABER (0B
FEZRRAREG FERIPHEBIRHARZTE EE 5 ok (o) KA FEZ
RERE FREBNER - WERFTHFARR B 2 AMPEREENIEEE
BIBREEERKRE19E » FIAF FEM 2R - WHEEBERRRE
F O AERBERD LB R EITRI 7 RREARA -

[ U B RN N T —
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #BF([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2EF8 | AKX (el DEERER
A.2.8 e Shareholders’ enquiries
(cont’d) Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
(&) to the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited. Shareholders and the investment community may at
any time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent that
such information is publicly available. Shareholders may also refer to the
contacts under “Investor Relations” section in the Company’s website
(http://www.singamas.com) for enquiries. Shareholders have the right to put
enquiries to the Board. All enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to
the registered office of the Company or by e-mail to info@singamas.com for
attention of the Company Secretary.
RERIZME
BRERERMAAFRODBPLPELRE - BERRIAFLARAF - BREEB
FAERE 5 RRRIREATABERERRRAEBALRG 2 EAH
Bk o B IR IR A] AR 35 AN A &) 49 41t (http://www.singamas.com) [ 1% & % 3
FIANBEFXIELER - RRIDERENESTSIELEHR - IESAA
NEEEAEL  WELRTARMERBTEARARFGAMPEENEHLE
info@singamas.com °
A.2.9 |The chairman should promote a C e The Chairman promotes a culture of openness and actively encourages
culture of openness and debate by Directors with different views to voice their opinion and be fully engaged in
facilitating the effective contribution of the Board’s affairs so as to contribute to the Board’s functions.
non-executive directors in particular FRREABPXL  TEGEHEFTREMNEZRROER  UEEES
and ensuring constructive relations HEEeNER - NUHESeBEEREE -
between executive and non-executive
directors. N e Effective contribution of non-executive Directors and communication
FREREAR « BRmX - 2 between executive and non-executive Directors are achieved through
HEZ(FRIRFNTES ) HESS discussions in Board meetings, various Board committee meetings and
TEHBEMER - WERHITESHEIER other Board activities/programmes.
TERZ BERERITNEE - HENEEEH SEEZECHNEMEFEYEY HENR -
RRAREEBCENITEFNE N ER RITEREIEMITER 2 AHER -
A.3 Board composition
BEEGHEK
Corporate Governance Principle
TEERRA
The Board should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business and should include a balanced composition of executive and non-executive Directors so that independent judgement can
effectively be exercised.
EXFERBBEAREEMABHENES# CREZENBMEAE - EFFRPTEFMEIFNTETNESEZRFEE - M
(RS S VB B S e -
A.3.1 Independent non-executive directors C e The composition of the Board, by category and position of Directors

should be identified in all corporate
communications that disclose the
names of directors.
NEFEHAESHA A TBAF
JEZFH AL IEITEE R ©

including the names of the Chairman, the executive Directors, the
non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors, is
disclosed in all corporate communications.
ERBRARBARRIRESRER MBS (BEERE TEE - FRTES
MBIV IEHITES) WREESNERX

The Board consists of a total of ten Directors, comprising four executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and four independent non-
executive Directors. More than one-third of the Board are independent non-
executive Directors of which more than one have appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.
Details of the composition of the Board are set out on page 17.
ERGHTUEFEN  BREMUUNITES  MUFNITESROAGCET
HFPITES - ZR=DZ " EFGRERBUIFRTES - T BB
BIUFATEEEAMETEEEERS  LABEENSHNRBEVBEER
& EFGMEMFBIEREITE

The Company maintains on its corporate website and on the Stock
Exchange’s website an updated list of Directors identifying their roles and
functions and whether they are independent non-executive Directors.
ARAREEMCEPE R FAEY FRESTNEFGRELE - WA
HEAGMBE ARGHEEEEVIFNITES -

The Directors’ biographical information and the relationships among the
Directors are set out on pages 17 to 22.
BEREAEHREERNBEIENEI7TAE2H -
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A.3.2 | The company should maintain on its C e The updated list of Directors has been posted at the websites of the
website and on the Stock Exchange Company and Stock Exchange, identifying their respective roles and
website an updated list of its directors functions, and whether they are independent non-executive Directors.
identifying their role and function B EEZECEHNARR LB - WHREAGREE R
and whether they are independent RNt R DB IEITES -
non-executive directors.

N B FETEE AL MBS FRRTFER e The Company has also posted on its website and the website of Stock
RRSFNEEEXELE  WHAE Exchange the Terms of Reference of its Board Committees to enable
AEMBEE - U NRGTRE RSB IEH the shareholders to understand the roles played by those Independent
TES o Non-executive Directors who serve on the relevant Board Committees.
RARTPREBENABLZ AL EHEETFETZESRESHE - HRK
RTBBUFPTESFHA AR ESTSE TR gNEMEEZAR -

A4 Appointments, re-election and removal
L EERER
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
There should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors and plans in place for orderly
succession for appointments. All Directors should be subject to re-election at regular intervals.

NEFLRIRFELER  SEEZRVEAFRE  WERTAMFTNESEITE - MEESYEERE THRIEETER -

A.4.1 | Non-executive directors should be C e According to the service agreements entered into between each of the
appointed for a specific term, subject non-executive Director or independent non-executive Director and the
to re-election. Company, the term of appointment is generally for one year but subject to
FERTEENEZEEEETHERS WA retirement and shall be eligible for re-election at AGM under the Articles.
BEXEIES - BRIERIERTESRB I IEMITERTERARRBE 2 RIS - EH—K

R—F HERBERBURTE  ERARRCREBAFAEG REEFAE
BE(E o
A.4.2 |- All directors appointed to fill a C e Under the Articles, every Director, other than the Managing Director and/or

casual vacancy should be subject
to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after
appointment.

B RERHRR ZR MRS IR E
EREEXZEENBEARRERS
TEERRRE -

— Every director, including those
appointed for a specific term,
should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three
years.
BREF(BREEEETEHNES)
EmmRE - 2B =F—R -

Chief Executive Officer who shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years, shall retire from office at AGM but shall be eligible for re-election.
RIEERMA  BRESBEER AERTREAEZE LB =F—RHES
R-BREFANEFRRAFAG SR - BrABEET -

The Company proposes to amend the Articles in the forthcoming AGM that
at each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at an AGM at least once every three years. Please refer to the Circular of the
Company dated 28 April 2016 for details.
RARZZNEERREAFASELRERZAL > CHERRAFAS L
ERAB =S —WEFHAGERT  EEBREFRAZTIE=FRRR
AFXE EEE—X - HEFLHARAFBHAZT —~FNAZ+N\H
B e

Under the Articles, the Board may from time to time appoint a Director either
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any such new Director
shall hold office until the next following general meeting of the Company (in
the case of filling a casual vacancy) or until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company (in the case of an addition to the Board) and shall
then be eligible for re-election at the same general meeting.

BEERMA  E=2E] TREAESAEFMBERERILUSRESTGNK
B o MAEREZABREARRA TAREAS (WBEMBGRZER) ERR
AITERRBAFAE (NERAESFENE) BIE TEERRA—RREXR
g RS -
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A4.2 e Review of the Board composition is made regularly to ensure that it has a

(cont’d) balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the requirements

(%) of the business of the Company.

RARERENESTG K  BREZGHABEARNRARAEBHATFE
R ABRERZ NLTHEK °

e The Company has published the procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director on its website.
ERHEBEERA T2 MERER ZIRT - EFHNARABIEA -

A.4.3 |- If an independent non-executive C e Mr. Ong Ka Thai has served the Company for more than 9 years. Each
director serves more than 9 years, independent non-executive Director who was subject to retirement by
his further appointment should be rotation was appointed by a separate resolution in the Company’s AGM.
subject to a separate resolution to Each independent non-executive Director who was eligible for re-election at
be approved by shareholders. the AGM had made a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
ERUIENTESEAE BT of the Listing Rules.

HEGEETEUBIDREREN FREXERADAEEEBNF - RARBCRRBFAE F - §AE

MR EERR - WRER B IFNTERTHUBIREREE - BURNRREF ARG L
BEREE 2 BUFNTEFTIERB ETRAESASBKRERELB LI

- The papers to shareholders HRER -

accompanying that resolution

should include the reasons e The Company had expressed the view in its circular that each independent

why the board believes he is non-executive Director who was eligible for re-election had met the

still independent and should be independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and was

re-elected. independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines. The re-election

W B 5% R a5 22 — [R) 3R 4R AR BR 9 S04 of Mr. Ong Ka Thai who has served on the Board for more than nine years

o EEEEERC ANRAEZELZA is subject to (1) a separate resolution to be approved by Shareholders at the

TNEBIATREESTEENR AGM; and (2) further information being given to Shareholders together with

o the notice of AGM regarding the reasons why the Board believes the relevant
Director is still independent and should be re-elected.
RARBRBEHARASEESET B UIFRTEFCET LTRSS
31312 B ES| - WIREZIESHEX BB LA L - REFFELBBN
FHERRAENEEANBRRERRAFTAG LBB—BEURHES
B RQEBEBRRAFEEBRENRAR  KTRRENEEZSHES
BMESNEBATRERSENRENE—PER o

e The Company’s circular of its AGM contained detailed information
on election of Directors, including detailed biographies, interests,
and (where appropriate) independence of all Directors standing for
re-election.
RARRREAFAG BRI AERESNFAMER  BEREERETN
FIBESNFHER - #mk (Em) Byt -
A5 Nomination Committee

REZRE

Corporate Governance Principle
REERRA

In carrying out its responsibilities, the nomination committee should give adequate consideration to the principles under Sections A.3

and A.4 in the Code.

REZEFETRERN  BRDEEBLEEATAUEAIRALAANRA -
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A5.1- |- The company should establish C e The Board has established the Nomination Committee on 27 March 2012 for
A5.4 a nomination committee which nominating potential candidates for directorship, reviewing the nomination of

is chaired by the chairman of
the board or an independent
non-executive director and
comprises a majority of independent
non-executive directors.

NEERVIREEESG  AESY
FRIBIFMITEREEER
g%@u%ﬁ%iﬂﬁ%%fﬁﬁ%

The nomination committee should
be established with specific written
terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and duties.
NRIEEERRIEREZ S AEN
%ﬁé%ﬁ CERFAEBENSE

It should perform the following
duties:
RELZBESRBEITATELE:

(@) review the structure, size
and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the board
at least annually and make
recommendations on any
proposed changes to the board
to complement the company’s
corporate strategy;
ZLOBFRNEFERE
ANE B (BIEREE - B
RS mE) - MRS
BRRKBMBEERSIEL
B BN R R

(b) identify individuals suitably
qualified to become board
members and select or make
recommendations to the board
on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships;
MeEREERERAIEETES
AT WHGEREBEBAL
E%%%ﬁ?ﬁﬁtﬂ%%@%ﬁ

(c) assess the independence of
independent non-executive
directors; and
T?Egﬁﬁ#%ﬂﬁ%% ok AV

(d) make recommendations to
the board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning
for directors, in particular
the chairman and the chief
executive.
NEEFZERENEAURE
F(LEEERRITHER) &
FrElmESSREES -

Directors, assessing the independence of each independent non-executive
Director and making recommendations to the Board on such appointments.
The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Stock Exchange’s website (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s
website (http://www.singamas.com).

ARAFER T ——F=A-+LtHRUREZEZEGHURLAEY
MEFAE BIERENEE TIREGEBYFERTESTNE LMY
R ERZIRNESSREER FHREZEeREBENFESR
BB B P 48 U (http//www.hkexnews.hk) X 2N 2 &) 48 U (http://www.
singamas.com) °

The current members of the Nomination Committee include one executive
Director being the Chairman of the Board, namely, Mr. Teo Siong Seng
(Chairman) and two independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau
Ho Kit, Ivan and Mr. Ong Ka Thai.
REZEGRANEOE BN TESRESTGER - RIBBLEE(ERF)
MREBNIFNITESE - BIATREERERRLE -

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee reports the findings and
recommendations to the Board after each meeting.
BREgHE REZESIFESRNEFTERAHRNES -

In 2015, the Nomination Committee met once and attendance of individual
members at Nomination Committee meeting in the year is summarized
below:

R-Z—hF REZEFEHE K HEFIKENHERBERET

Number of

Attendance

Committee members ZEEBHRE HERE
Teo Siong Seng (Chairman) SRINE (F/E) 1/1
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan EIEIRGS 1/1
Ong Ka Thai FRE 11

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge
its duties. The Nomination Committee is accountable to the Board and
minutes of meetings/resolutions are circulated to the Board for information.
REZEGUEHGARTERUBTARE - RELEQ@RANEEEAR
RESH LS RBARTERSEM -

The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination Committee during
the year under review:

EOBEFEA - REEEEN TERERMT -

(@) made recommendations to the Board and determined the policy on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships, the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and assessed independence of independent
non-executive Directors;

RBREREHEERE AL ZAXENZEEETAESTSIREES
FOREBER - A REHIB I 3ENITE R 2 B

(b) reviewed the policy of diversity of the Board; and
RN EFEREZTIEE &

(c) reviewed the size, structure and diversity of the Board, and assessed the
balance of skills and experience of the Board as expedient with diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company.

BAEEFHAL - BERS T - Wil ESSRENLRNHE
MBI LT NES REFRAR RN EBEL -

DR F N0 s TN
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A.5.1- |- The nomination committee should e All new appointments and re-appointments of Directors are based on the
A5.4 make available its terms of following criteria:
(cont’d) reference explaining its role and FIEESENHMEERBEZERREATRERLER
(%8) the authority delegated to it by the
board by including them on the - Integrity
Stock Exchange website and the s
company'’s website.
RAEZBSREBIMBM R AR - Independent mindedness
Wuh FAFEBAERE - ERA BUMER
EAREEFERTHNES
— Possession of core competencies that meet the current needs of the
— The company should provide the Company and the ability to complement the skills and competencies of
nomination committee sufficient the existing Directors
resources to perform its duties. BEEEEMBUFEALRRKEHE - MM R AESHREERAH
Where necessary, the nomination
committee should seek independent — Readiness to commit time and effort to carry out duties and
professional advice, at the responsibilities effectively
company’s expense, to perform its FEEMHREREN - WEBIEERE KERE
responsibilities.
NRIERIREZEZEQIRHRRER - A good track record of experience at a senior level in corporations/
LEITERE - REZESETR organisations
ERNEFE  ESRBEUHEE FERE/REHTRGETEREERENBARITLER
R BABQRLZA -
—  Financial knowledge
BT Fe R
A.5.5 | Where the board proposes a resolution C e Please refer to A.4.3 above for the details.
to elect an individual as an independent HIEELE T FEAL3TE -
non-executive director at the general
meeting, it should set out in the circular
to shareholders and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of
the relevant general meeting why they
believe he should be elected and the
reasons why they consider him to be
independent.
EEZSRPRRAE FRERAERE
ERALTRBIIERITES - BARE
NS FTBE M A B B R S
BRE e - JEZYIRE RS RREET
Za N RIR A R IR AZ B AL
BEIATHREA -
A.5.6 |The nomination committee (or the C e The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy effective from 1 September

board) should have a policy concerning
diversity of board members, and should
disclose the policy or a summary of the
policy in the Corporate Governance
Report.
RELZER(NEEY)EITASLE
KB ZITENBER - WREEER
WENRBEEBERKBRRHE -

2013 (“Policy”), details of which are summarised as follows:
EEGH T =-FNA—ABENESEREZCBEER ([BER]) - &
BB T

(@) In considering the Board’s composition, a wider range of perspectives

including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service will be duly considered in the selection of candidates.

FEREEASIZREFTGNAEN - BZEBRGTEEZRE - BEA
EEE’:\'\“EE%IJ CEER - XERBEER  BELR - BEE - MBENRSE

(b) All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates

will be considered against objective criteria.
FIEEENZEHUAARS RBRA|  WARBIZEZSEREA -

(c) To ensure the effectiveness of the Policy, the Nomination Committee will

review, discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
REZBEH TR - fmE AR ENEET - UBRERTZE
o WEREEEERMMUEEAZFER] -
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A.6 Responsibilities of directors
EEEE
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
Every Director must always know his responsibilities as a Director of the Company and its conduct, business activities and
development.

BRESERABREARAESNEE  URAFANEEFR  XEERER -

A.6.1 Every newly appointed director of the C e On appointment, new Directors are given a comprehensive briefing and
company should receive a comprehensive, related materials of the Group’s business activities, induction into their
formal and tailored induction on responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory requirements.
appointment. Subsequently he should MEFEZAREBES —E2EAMREHEN  EPEEEEXBKE
receive any briefing and professional N BEBHEENBEEN  REMEFTESK -
development necessary to ensure that
he has a proper understanding of the e All Directors, including non-executive Directors, are regularly provided with
company’s operations and business comprehensive reports on the management’s strategic plans, updates on
and is fully aware of his responsibilities lines of business, financial information, etc.
under statute and common law, the FEEE(REIPITES) ETHREEBRMRBE T RN EEIER
Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory & ERGIERER - HBERE -
requirements and the company’s
business and governance policies. e The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors updated on
BETEENESHEES LT ERES Listing Rules and other applicable statutory requirements.

TH - ERFEGREMBZHMERMN - NEMESERRMAESTIUSERE MR B REMEE EROZHER -
HBMEESHEONAREEERE
LARER A PI 2 ROV BV R R TSI B i
EER - ARTEHBARGEER K
TiE - EHRAI RERAMEER
gu&ﬁﬂ%%%&ﬁﬁﬁ%?%%
=,
A6.2 |The functions of non-executive C e Non-executive Directors are well aware of their functions and have been

directors include:
FMITEZNBEEBE

— bring independent judgement
on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and
standards of conduct at board
meetings;
DHEEESEH  THRER I
®RAAIKRE - BEME-BER - £
SRERBTFRAEEE L =ZH
BIUHER

— take the lead on potential conflicts
of interests;
IR B R R A R EF A o
BER

— serve on the audit, remuneration,
nomination and other governance
committees, if invited; and
ERrEEZZES  FMEE
g REEEEhHEMEREZEY

BB R

— scrutinise the company’s
performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives,
and monitoring performance
reporting.
FaRE R BINRRESEIRE
WEEAEMAR  WERERA
AIRIBHEH -

actively performing them. On an on-going basis, Directors review with
management in respect of the Group’s strategic development and direction,
emerging risks and opportunities available to the Group.

FEMITERFRNMBHEANBELERETERAE ERHELEREN
%%%%E%Eﬁ%@%ﬁ%%@&ﬁm'M&$%@ﬂ%ﬁﬁmﬁ%&

&=
=
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A.6.3 |Every director should ensure that he C e There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings during the year. Please
can give sufficient time and attention to refer to A.1.1 above for the attendance records.
the company’s affairs and should not FRNEESFEHIHELTSANE - DR R EXEA11E -
accept the appointment if he cannot do
S0. e All Directors have in-depth industry knowledge and established track record,
GREE R B SR8 K st whose interests are aligned with that of the Company. Every Director has
UEBATIHNER  SATEESE given sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs. The independent
£ non-executive Directors have brought a wide spectrum of their extensive
knowledge and experience in their respective business undertakings to the
Board for the fullest performance of its functions.
PREFHEFHRENTENRRERYOAEERS  BRENMRERD
AINAIE— - BREFDUAR A Z EHTH 2 SR RAE e o B IE
HITEEMEABNRESEXEBHENBZEENINER  EHERS
ZHEITHRAE -
A.6.4 |Board should establish written C e The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
guidelines no less exacting than the by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
Model Code for relevant employees. to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
EXgREMEMESREEMEIES - transactions.
SINBEZ PR ESFRIRER © RARERM EHRBIM S5 EHE EHETAEFETESRHINRE
FRNMRESFA]) AR A RIRESNERR S1TATE -

e Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all of the Directors have
complied with, for any part of the accounting period covered by this report,
the required standard as set out in the Model Code.
RARAMEESELSEE AR  MESESEAREMBEZ 5T HH
ZAEMESRE - 2 EFIRETRIPTRER TR o

e Written guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code relating to securities
transactions for relevant employees are set out in the “Code for securities
Transactions by Relevant Employees” of the Company.
RRABEREEEEFF 2 EEIES - Z5iEs| REREST IR 2 B
HRIE ©

A.6.5 |All directors should participate in C e As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the Directors are

continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant. The company
should be responsible for arranging
and funding suitable training, placing
an appropriate emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director.
FIEEERSBBEFERR - BEW
BEETEAH R RRE - R BB A
HEEEARIEMENBEATHES
SIEHER - ARIEEETHSENE
DR E LS - AREYEE LT
NRAIBEMAG BEELEE-

updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time to ensure compliance
of the same by all Directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend external
forums or training courses on relevant topics which may count towards
continuous professional development training.

ERHERFEEI 2 —3Bh  EFEITHEREALTHRAURAMER
EEHRECRNEREL  UBEREBEFETEMRTE - ARaE2
BEEFHFEIIRBREERE 2 BHEIIFIRE  (ERFEFTERRE

F—#BD o

Pursuant to the Code, Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
For the year ended 31 December 2015, all Directors have participated
in appropriate continuous professional development activities either by
attending training courses or by reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

RIBETA EEE2EBEFERR  UERTEINEMB R - U
REEETEFRIEEARIEMENEL THESTSELER - HEZ
T-AFT_RA=1+—HILFE  2RESHFBLEFEIIRIZLER
ﬁé%%%ﬁk%%%ﬁé&%ﬁm BEMETA2EGE HESELRE
Al °
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A.6.5 e The participation by individual Directors in 2015 is recorded in the table
(cont’d) below:
(&) BRI EER _E-RFN2RIERERHEN TR
Participation in
Continuous Professional
Development in 2015
ZE-AF2HE2
FESERR
Attending
expert
briefings/
seminars/
conferences
Reading HEER
materials ENne
Name of Directors S mEER e g
Teo Siong Seng SRADEE / v
Chan Kwok Leung FREIRR / v
Teo Tiou Seng REAE / v
Chung Pui King, Rebecca EfR / v
Kuan Kim Kin i / v
Tan Chor Kee it v/ v
Cheng Fu Kwok, David BagE / v
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan Zlaf v/ v
Ong Ka Thai FR%H v/ v
Yang, Victor 1HEH v v
A.6.6 |Each director should disclose to the C e The Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of their
company at the time of his appointment, appointment and at least once a year thereafter the number and nature
and in a timely manner for any change, of offices held in public companies or organisations and other significant
the number and nature of offices held commitments, identifying the public companies or organisations involved.
in public companies or organisations EENETEIREAAATRE (TREEEEEL—R)ERARAT
and other significant commitments. SAABEERIOEE REE - UAREMEEE  WREZSEARQA
The identity of the public companies or SR EE 2T o
organisations and an indication of the
time involved should also be disclosed.
The board should determine for itself
how frequently this disclosure should
be made.
BREFEREIZERRAREER
RRB AR SHABBERMAARE Lt
AR HA B R - B g E G &
BE RIFHEE o WLONTEREATS R
NRN BSARRBE) B A R BUR ELE(E
ARG KRR - EESEETT
IRTEMRBRZ AV —IRIER -
A.6.7 |Independent non-executive directors C e There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings, Board Committee

and other non-executive directors,
as equal board members, should
give the board and any committees
on which they serve the benefit
of their skills, expertise and varied
backgrounds and qualifications
through regular attendance and active
participation. They should also attend
general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders.

B IFRITESE RAMIERITESER
BEMERRARSHANEFTIR
B BrHHFESEgRERRFHAEZ
S ERENEZEENERTEEH2 RS
CAEREE  EEHMBRTANER
BRVELEER o M0 L ER R K
CHARRRHERBRERN T -

0

I8 ) 5

meetings, the meetings between the Chairman and the non-executive
Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) and the
general meeting during the year. Please refer to A.1.1, A.2.7, A5.1-5.4, B.1.2,
C.3.1 and E.1.2 above for details.

FARELLE% EFEETLZE8g2  FTREFNTES(BEE
SFHITEFR)GRRBRRAGZHREHSARE - FERE2HLENE
A11+-A27 Ab51-54.-B1.2 C31K&E1.2IF -

e Extent of participation and contribution should be viewed both quantitatively
and qualitatively.
2HEEHLEHERNER B ERE S WA EIETE
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A.6.8 |Independent non-executive directors C ® Please refer to A.6.7 above.

and other non-executive directors ERE LEXFEABTIE -
should make a positive contribution
to the development of the company’s
strategy and policies through
independent, constructive and informed
comments.
B IEMITE R REMIENITERASE
BIREEY - ERRUENBERENER
AR R KB R ER A S -
A7 Supply of and access to information
ERHEH R A
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRE
Directors should be provided in a timely manner with appropriate information in the form and quality to enable them to make an
informed decision and perform their duties and responsibilities.
EERERMEZENEREN  ERARZERFEESRRNEEZRERENNBER TELRE - TBETEBRERAE -

A.71 |- Sendagenda and full board papers C e Board/Board Committee papers are circulated not less than three working
to all directors at least 3 days days before the regular Board/Board Committee meetings to enable the
before regular board or board Directors/Board Committee members to make informed decisions on
committee meetings. matters to be raised at the Board/Board Committee meetings.
ExerleanEREEEeE ARRES HBETZE8eRERESg HETZ8ggE HiIEH 25
MHERERREZREEE W MEEERADARMEL AT  FZNHEIRESEE HETZEEF
EOERTEEGYRHETEZEY HeRdRAn T R -EEEAXRLES HETEZEE/KE -

2% B M= RATEE -

A.7.2 |- Management has an obligation C e The Company Secretary who is also the Chief Financial Officer of the
to supply the board and its Company attends all regular Board meetings to advise on corporate
committees with adequate and governance, statutory compliance, and accounting and financial matters, as
reliable information in a timely appropriate.
manner to enable it to make RARZ ARMERERVBRELEMEESSTHEH  URDEE
informed decisions. A RPIEER ST RV BEEENESTSREER (WEE) -
ERERETNESGREETE
BeiRtta LA SHEEER e The Directors have separate and independent access to the Company’s
FEEERENEEREEBENNG senior management to keep themselves abreast of business activities,
SUTELRE © financial performance, internal audit and internal control progress in the

Group.
- The board and individual BRI ETREIMEBARNRNSHERAL USRS THRASEY
directors should have separate HEE) - SRR - NS S R NEPELITHER -
and independent access to the
company’s senior management
for making further enquiries where
necessary.
EEehEEFEEETEBA
AlERERABMNBIRE - E
REEBIEE—FER -
A.7.3 |- All directors are entitled to have C e Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by Directors

access to board papers and related
materials.
FBEERAREHESENHR
HEER -

Queries raised by directors should
receive a prompt and full response,
if possible.

HRERREOME - QAN AER
Al BE R R N R E ) [EI FE ©

and committee members. Senior management of the Company has taken
appropriate steps to respond promptly and fully to any queries raised by
Directors.

EENEEGREFEHESENMHRERTHK SREFREME 5
REREAESHIVEE SRUARREL 2EAEE -
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B REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND BOARD EVALUATION
EEREREBAENTHRESTSTZ
B.1 The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure
S M 3 2R MK SR 4R RK
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRE
The Company should disclose its Director’s remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters. The procedure for setting
policy on executive Directors’ remuneration and all Directors’ remuneration packages should be formal and transparent.
NRIEREAE RGBSR REMEFINEFANEE - EREERMAFZHENER - UHEIEBATESME L2 RBEEHMT
BHIBER ©
B.1.1 | The remuneration committee should C e The Remuneration Committee has consulted the Chairman about proposals
consult the chairman and/or chief relating to the remuneration packages and other human resources issues
executive about their remuneration of the Directors and senior management, including but not limited to
proposals for other executive directors succession plan and key personnel movements as well as policies for
and should have access to independent recruiting and retaining qualified personnel.
professional advice if necessary. YHEZESCREZTRSREEABZHFMNERREMANEREE (21E
FHEZEeRMEMBNITE RN BRRAETE - EBASTER  URBEREBEEBATBER) #H
FHAERRRITHEHE - 1B F FREHER -
T HNEESRASREBEIEEE
8o e The emoluments of Directors and Senior Management have been
determined with reference to the skills, knowledge, involvement in the
Company’s affairs and their individual performance, and to the profitability of
the Company and prevailing market conditions during the year.
ARFRIZEZRBRELZAEMSERBENATZA# - MHKERS
HARNBEH2IRERKER - WERERNAR [ ZBRHOR R H5RE M
EEE -
B.1.2 | The remuneration committee’s terms of C e The Board has established Remuneration Committee to make

reference should include:
FEEeTREHE T EERSE

— recommend to the board on the
company’s policy and structure
for all directors’ and senior
management remuneration and
on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;
RAREEREREREABNDE
FNER K2R - GERR S IEAR M
BB RAE MR Fr T NBCR - [
EEgREESR

- review and approve the
management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the
board’s corporate goals and
objectives;
FEEESMaIhET i kB R
WA RILEE R M BE

— either to determine, with delegated
responsibility, or to make
recommendations to the board
on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and
senior management;
NTREZ —: BESFGHEEE
£ EEEFBMTERERSRERE
ABOHMES  AMEEGESR
ERTEF RS REZABMNE
BHAFE

recommendations on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for
all remuneration of Directors and senior management. No Director and senior
management can determine his own remuneration.
EREGERUTHEESHEURLHEARRFEERSEBEE A SNFHMK
EREB2ES - EFLREEEABH T BT EBAARNZH -

e The current members of the Remuneration Committee include two
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yang, Victor (Chairman)
and Mr. Ong Ka Thai, and a non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Kuan Kim
Kin.

FHZEERANBREMUBIFNTES HRIRBEARE(ER)
RERFRE  AR—CIIFRITESE - FARELE -

e The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee reports the findings and
recommendations to the Board after each meeting.
FREHE  FHEERTFENESTERLRRRES -

e |n 2015, the Remuneration Committee met three times and attendance of
individual members at Remuneration Committee meetings in the year is
summarised below:
ggﬁ::léi—ﬁi CHMZEEEB =N HINEESERIK B/ LIRS

A

Number of

Attendance

Committee members ZEEHE HERE
Yang, Victor (Chairman) SER(EE) 3/3
Ong Ka Thai E 3/3
Kuan Kim Kin At 3/3




42

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015

Corporate Governance Report (¥ E88 &

Code Ref.
2E540

Code Provisions
FHBEX

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
B3(cl)/
(el

Corporate Governance Practices

¥

ERER

B.1.2
(cont’d)
(%)

— recommend to the board on the
remuneration of non-executive
directors;
?ﬁ?gﬂﬁi%ﬂ@%ﬁ@ﬂﬂé%@%ﬁ

o

— consider salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the group;
ZRRFBER B SASTHFB - Al
10 B D R BB B DA B B [ T L A B L
VR R IRMT

— review and approve compensation
payable on loss or termination of
office or appointment;

Bl RBL/E R B R AR I B S Bl &
EMmAX NEEEE

— review and approve compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of directors for misconduct;
and
e RHERERTRAEMER
Ej);%%ﬁaﬁ BMESMPRNEER
Rk

— ensure that no director or any of his
associates is involved in deciding
his own remuneration.

ER(E I E F e BT i AN
D HETFHAFEF B o

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties. The Remuneration Committee is accountable to the
Board and minutes of meetings are circulated to the Board for information.
FHEE B RHARERABITTARE - FMEE@ANEFLAR
MESB L ARRESSEMH -

The following is a summary of the work of the Remuneration Committee
during the year under review:

FERIEFEA - FEZESn TERRIT

(@) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
Directors’ fees for the financial year of 2015;

EHN T IFVRFEZEETNE RANEETSREERMMNER

(b) reviewed and approved the salary adjustment of the Company’s
executive Directors and senior management staff;

FHHRHEARFRTEZ NS ETEA BRI NFE

(c) reviewed and approved gratuity granted to retired senior management;
and

FHHLHERESEEEARMNERSEM : &

(d) reviewed and approved the Company’s annual performance-based
bonus policy and payments.

FHHLHEARRPIRFERR 2 REBR MR -

The Remuneration Committee is delegated to be responsible for determining
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination of
their office or appointment, to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of non-executive Directors and to consider salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

YFOZESEMECREGEN  AEEEEENRTESRSBEREA
SMHINES  BEFEEENR  RARSEMNRBESE (BERAILLE
BEREZENEE)  IHFATESENHFHnEESRLEZZLZ EBAR
RN AN S A ~ 2R 15 O R ) B 3 DA B e [ O B BBk 2 B9 PR AR A

Details of each Director’s remuneration and any remuneration payable to
members of senior management for the year under review are set out on
pages 196 to 198 and page 243 of this annual report.

REBFERN  BERBEREEREMNEAXNTEREERASKENFHIFE
R AR FRE 196 EEF 198 H R F 243 H ©

B.1.3

The remuneration committee should
make available its terms of reference,
explaining its role and the authority
delegated to it by the board by
including them on the Stock Exchange
website and the company’s website.
HNE B & A8 A PSR Bl A8 s
FRMEEERE  mEHLACKES
FEERNES -

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on the
websites of the Company and Stock Exchange.

¥iE B e MRS EC B HNAR R SB P -

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
the remuneration of Directors and the management, and determining with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and the management and to make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors with reference to the corporate
goals and objectives of the Board resolved from time to time.

FNEEG I ZBERERARAESTREERE 2 FHMBEE REERE
ESELREE  Y2REFSETRBACCEEFERTH  EERTEN
BEET  EEEBMTEESRSREEAENTIGE  URIENTES
BFBnEESREES -

The remuneration committee should
be provided with sufficient resources to
perform its duties.

;‘g@@é SgEEHRGERRERABITE
=

The Human Resources Department provides administrative support and
implements the approved remuneration packages and other human
resources related decisions approved by the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee also has access to independent advice at the
Company’s expense if considered necessary.
ANERBEERMITEZEIATETNEZ S Z 2 HFMNGFE R M
ANBRBBRE - HINEEGNAINERRERTERSRBVEEER
R BRABAQAZN -
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B.1.5 | The company should disclose details of C e Please refer to notes 12 and 43 in the Notes to Financial Statements for
any remuneration payable to members details of the remuneration payable to the senior management.
of senior management by band in the BHERRER AT FER2HYEIRERMESE 12 2 4318 ©
annual reports.

NEEEEFRANRTMEREES R
ERABHBSFE -

C ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
& Rz

C.A Financial reporting
ity
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of The Company’s performance, position and prospects
EFgRETE  EWREEMIRARNRE  BRKAR -

C.1.1 | Management should provide sufficient C e Directors are provided with a review of the Group’s major business activities
explanation and information to the and key financial information on a quarterly basis in each board meeting.
board to enable it to make an informed EENERES R EREEEGE VI REKEHRBEREENY
assessment of financial and other FEEBE o
information put before it for approval.

ERERNESSRMA I NRERE
K EE B AR A M TR ER
B REAER - (EHAIRBARTE o

C.1.2 |Management should provide all C e Monthly updates have been provided to all members of the Board, for the
members of the board with monthly purpose of providing a balanced and understandable assessment of the
updates giving a balanced and Company'’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail and to
understandable assessment of the enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
company’s performance, position and BEXEeMAKECERTEAENER RN EBAAQARE - M
prospects in sufficient detail to enable MARAISORERSRIBRZ 5HE - NEEEFSLEEREITARBE
the board as a whole and each director
to discharge their duties.

ERERGANEETGHERMUENE
# - EIFEARINERR - MBI R
AR RERIRERFE - RAR
EREFEITHEBE -
C.1.3 |- The directors should acknowledge C e Directors have stated their responsibilities in the annual report. The Board

in the Corporate Governance Report
their responsibility for preparing the
accounts.
ERRAEMEE WS PARMM
ERERANEE -

— There should be a statement by
the auditors about their reporting
responsibilities in the auditor’s
report on the financial statements.
ZE R IR ELE S AT 5 TR R VA% 2L
%ﬁ%$ﬁ@ﬁ%$ﬁﬁ&¢ﬁ§
AH o

— Unless it is inappropriate to assume
that the company will continue
in business, the directors should
prepare the accounts on a going
concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as
necessary.
BRIFRBR A A SR EL L EBIL
NMag - B SEHRENREE
NRRISBEEERER 2R
FREURRIREER -

is responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Company
and ensuring that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company according to the relevant statutory requirements and accounting
standards. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
EECEFHRRPEECF - EFTASERBEARRNIEHE - ARIR
BEREOIRE RS LD MREAEQATREARANEBHRR -
i%gﬂ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ$@ﬂ%%%@%%ﬁ%&ikﬁ%%EMEXK%
= o°

With the assistance of the Company’s Finance Department which is
under the supervision of the Chief Financial Officer who is a professional
accountant, the Directors ensure the preparation of the financial statements
of the Group are in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards.

ARAGBIMEEESHAER  ARMBREZE - EZ 0PI B
T EEEREEMBEREANGERTSBRER MEA 2 528 -

The Directors also ensure the publication of the financial statements of the
Group is in a timely manner.

BERWHREEMERIER TIATIE -

The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 108 to 109 of this annual report.
RATRZEEN R EE I FIRRATEC BIREEERINHNULFRFE108EE
109 B B BAN IR E A
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C.1.3 |- Where the directors are aware N/A
(cont’d) of material uncertainties relating | “i@EF
(&) to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the
company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, they should be
clearly and prominently disclosed
and discussed at length in the
Corporate Governance Report.
HEFMEGEATHARASHNIE
MAREGRELENASELEN
BN EERECEEARE5E
BERE M AT wmIL ST AEARE
C.1.4 |The directors should include in the C The Board has included in the Chairman’s Statement a discussion and
separate statement containing a analysis of the Group’s sustainable development strategy on pages 8 to 13
discussion and analysis of the group’s of this annual report.
performance in the annual report, an EFSCRUIFRFSBEEFI1IBHEZ [EFERE | AEtrImELMEE T
explanation of the basis on which the BRI VENE MU -
company generates or preserves value
over the longer term (the business
model) and the strategy for delivering
the company’s objectives.
EEREFRNTRRAOMTEEBRED
B RGRA - BRAA R RIEEE IR
BEBEMER (EBEREN) RERAA
PRz B IRH) SRR o
C.1.5 | The board should present a balanced, C The Board aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable
clear and understandable assessment assessment of the Group’s performance and position in all shareholder
in annual and interim reports, and other communications.
financial disclosures required by the EZeRMAEREBNY  HEBZRBRKAELEWN - FTERIHRE
Listing Rules. It should also do so for fEHRTER o
reports to regulators and information
disclosed under statutory requirements. The Board is aware of and updated with the statutory requirements
BEHEEeEEFERSE RPEHRER under the applicable rules and regulations. The Board aims to present a
RIEEMRBRTETIHENEMIE comprehensive balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the
BRI WARIKRIBEL TE - EW & Group’s position and prospects. The Company Secretary and key officers of
RSIBMRHIFEE  toh - HIMEERE the Company Secretarial Department work closely and in consultation with
EERTHREEZ LB ERTIHE legal advisers to review the materiality and sensitivity of transactions and
B E R RE T BRI o proposed transactions and advise the Board accordingly.
EEGMBNEFTERMRBEROIEETER  EFSHNR2FES
Wi SR EROAEEIR R KA c REIWMERAFAMELEEA
SEEEERETEE  RRFGFERRIEENEEL RBRIEEZHA
HER UWREMESSRHEH -
C.2 Internal controls

MEREL 1%

Corporate Governance Principle
REEBRA

The Board should ensure that the Company maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ investment

and the Company’s assets.

ERgRBRAARNALEERABREZENBAN - WRERRNIRERATNEE
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C.2.1

— Directors to review the effectiveness
of the company’s and its subsidiaries’
internal control systems at least
annually and to report that they
have done so in the Corporate
Governance Report.
EEERPVEERN RN FRE
MEBRARMNABEERGREEA
W WHEPRE RRE P RRERE
HEKTHE AR -

—  The review should cover all material
controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions.
BERNEREMBEEZMNEITT
| BEBEE  EFEERE
REEAL RRERINRE -

C

All Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements of each financial period, which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash
flow for that period.
PREBFARRSEEEREGEVRBAM MBHREANET - WAEE
HRR MR Z R ARENT BN - UREERBREBNR

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, adopted all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards which are in conformity to the International Financial Reporting
Standards, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable
and prepared the accounts on the going concern basis.

EREBE-_T—RAFT_A=T—HUIEFEZVBERER  EE28H/
WERASENGFER - WE2EEAEEMBRELD] - TR
BRI BB EAE ML — D HE R - BBHOERE EARR

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted annual reviews
of the effectiveness of the system of internal controls covering all controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, broad-based risk
management processes, and physical and information system security
of selected operating units of the Company. No suspected frauds and
irregularities, internal control deficiencies or suspected infringement of laws,
rules and regulations have come to the Audit Committee’s attention to
cause the Audit Committee to believe that the system of internal controls
is inadequate. The Board, through the review by the Audit Committee, is
satisfied that the Group has fully complied with the Code provisions on
internal controls during the year under review.

EE2RBERZ AU BABEERENARILIERFER - 0%
MGEYE  BIEERERARER  HENEREERRER  URARRREE
HEEBS A EE MR EMRFHIRE o AR B EA]SEHEFRPETAIBE
ERRKAIRESERE  RAURERMSIBFEREZESTE  HEHE
BRZEGHEANBEZRZRETEAN - REEFHN  EFRBREZZE
SENEN  REARED 2 METEEBATRTAEHAILEEERT -

Cc22

The board’s annual review should,
in particular, consider the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and
budget of the company’s accounting
and financial reporting function.
ERFHRITFERNE - EERIZREA
RIS MM BERBAE S mEER -
BTARRESR - ARBIAEZNE
IREREHERERE M -

The executive members of the Board regularly review the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting staff as well as their training programmes and budget.

EEENRTRETHRARR S RUBERNETINER - EERE
;ﬁ%ﬁ@%@ﬁ%@ AR BIEINEIRERBARENRS T RET

C.3

Audit Committee
EiZLZEE

Corporate Governance Principle
hEERRE

The Board should establish formal and transparent arrangements to consider how it will apply financial reporting and internal control
principles and maintain an appropriate relationship with the Company’s auditors.

TR G R R AN R PR B TS I R e P BB B A R B e AR AT 4 B X R X BB B VB R E R ERR R B AR Bk -
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C.3.1 |- Full minutes of audit committee C e The Board has established the Audit Committee to investigate and handle

meetings should be kept by a duly
appointed secretary of the meeting.
EZEZEGNTESRCHEALE
AZENEEWERT

Draft and final versions of minutes
should be sent to all committee
members for their comment and
records, within a reasonable time
after the meeting.

g VREREERELE
HE—BRAERMALBIEEER
ErRENE VREKBREER
R miEERIERZSE A -

matters within its terms of reference and make recommendations to the
Board for any necessary improvement.
EECORUBZEZEGHUTEREEREEBESEANNEMEE -
AR MESSREERNNERSE -

The current members of the Audit Committee include two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan (Chairman) and Mr.
Yang, Victor, and a non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Kuan Kim Kin, of
which at least one independent non-executive Director possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or related financial
management expertise.

ERLZESRENEREMUBYIERNTES - HRRBIA AL E(E/E)
RIGEREE  UR—MIIFRTESE - @IRELRE  EhED (B
HITEFABESERER  JAREEN S RENBERER -

The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports the findings and recommendations
to the Board after each meeting.
BREEE EVZEQIFEGNESZERLER NEE -

The Audit Committee has regular meetings at least twice a year. In 2015, a
total of three meetings were convened and held with satisfactory attendance.
The details of Audit Committee members’ attendance in 2015 are as follows:
ERLZEQTEHETEE  BOBFMA - RZT—AF  FRZEGH
BREBITZRGE  BHEESARE - RZT—1F  AESEZEE
FREMBFEFHBINEHNOT

Number of

Attendance

Committee members ZEEHRE HERE
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan (Chairman) 2n] B (F ) 3/3
Kuan Kim Kin PSR STAE 3/3
Yang, Victor 5 ERA A 3/3

The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board and minutes of meetings
are circulated to the Board for information.
EREERANEFSRE RSB ARRESSEMN -

The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee during the
year under review:

EOBEFEA  BEREEENTERRMT -

(a) reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial reports for the year ended
31 December 2014 and for the six months ended 30 June 2015;
HEHE T —NFT A=+ RALEFEREE-_Z—RF A=t
HIERER AR E BRSBTS

(b) reviewed the external auditors’ statutory audit plan and the letters of
representation;

EHISNEZBEI R A TEEA A E B ABRE

(c) reviewed the findings and recommendations of the internal auditors;
FHEI NI BN IR H At A R S

(d) considered and approved the 2015 audit fees and terms of engagement
for the external auditors;
ZRRIEZT—RAFINEZEENE A R EBAGRK

(e) reviewed the “Continuing Connected Transactions” set forth on pages
65 to 71 of this annual report; and
HHHRAFRESEEE7T1EY [FEHERS ] &

(f) reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group.
BN B PR bR B IR R RURE o
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C.3.1
(cont’d)
(8)

On 16 March 2016, the Audit Committee met to review the 2015 consolidated
financial statements, including the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, in conjunction with external auditors. Based on this review and
discussions with the management and external auditors, the Audit Committee
endorsed the accounting treatment adopted by the Company and had, to the
best of its ability, assured itself that the disclosure of the financial information in
this report complies with the applicable accounting standards and Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee therefore recommended the
Board’s approval of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 for public release.

RZZ—RE=ZA+AH BRZEeBFAEZEMEN_—_T—LFE
A MBERE - AEENASERAZ T RANEREL - RELS
FEHER  UREEBERIMNEZBAI N ®E  BREERERARAIMN
Rz e8stREAA  WERNBRARERENVEERTEERACE
SPERIR ETRRAMESE TN Bt BREERREHE T -HF T
A=+ —HILFEHLAEMBEHRENEZTEHARRAARIEM

The Audit Committee also recommended the re-appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as the Group’s external auditors for 2016 and that the
related resolution shall be put forth for shareholders’ consideration and
approval at the 2016 AGM.

ERZEGNEZENZAEY BERHISHMEEAMALER 2 —F
—NEERINEZEED  WEBER - RNERREAFAG LIRRXERE
BB e

During the year under review, the fees paid to the Company’s external Hong
Kong auditors for audit work amounted to HK$3,000,000 and for non-audit
and review activities amounted to HK$500,000 (including HK$275,000 for
interim review, HK$46,000 for tax review and HK$179,000 for other related
services).

REBEFER - ARE S AIMNEEEZBEN 2 %8 & M /3,000,000 7T - B
JEAZ S I 2 50 2 AR 7% B A 5500,0007% 7T () 4% R HAZE B £ A 275,000 7T«
s E M & M 46,000 78 7T M E (b AH RS AR 75 5 A 179,000 8 7T)

C.3.2

A former partner of existing auditing
firm shall not act as a member of the
committee for 1 year from the date
of his ceasing to be a partner of or to
have any financial interest in, the firm,
whichever is later.

)= e WG = R0k 22 SN ol
EERAEMB IR BZABERAN
HER - s N EZ A7 A RS F
) B (DA H B & ) fe 5t —
FR - MEREEZZEGHKE -

No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing
auditing firm of the Company during the one year after he/she ceases to be
a partner of the auditing firm.

BERSAESERARAKRE NZBRRAEERARKIERBZZER
RIEBARBRF; —FR  EEARAERZEGKE -

C.3.3

The audit committee’s terms of
reference should include:
EZZEeNBEHEREE

— recommendations to the board on
the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditor
and approval of their terms of
engagement;
FONEZERNET - ENETR
BRNEEgREERE RIDEINE
TR EEM AV EE ARG

— review and monitor external
auditor’s independence and
objectivity and effectiveness of
audit process;

BET R B R INEZ SR A B L B
KAZEE AL

The Audit Committee was established with specific written terms of
reference which have complied with the Code requirements and are modified
from time to time. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is made
available on the website of the Company and Stock Exchange.

EZZ BN IETARE A EEAT AR RES E L2 TR ED SR -
ERZEEVBESE D EHNAR R KB AL
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ERER

C.3.3
(cont’d)
(%)

— review of the company’s financial
information; and

EHATNHBEN - Rk

— oversight of the company’s financial
reporting system, risk management
and internal control procedures,
including the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget
of the company’s accounting and
financial reporting function.
EENRIMBRREE - FElnEIR
RANEEIEEF  BEEE QAT
St RBERBE T EAHER
BTERNMESBERRHA  UKE
IAEXeRIIRERERBEER
BRE °

C.3.4

The audit committee should make
available its terms of reference,
explaining its role and the authority
delegated to it by the board by
including them on the Stock Exchange
and the company’s website.

TZE B BRI B PG X B8,
FRAREBESE  mERACRES
SERTENES -

Please refer to C.3.1 and C.3.3 above for the details.
FHFELM ENEC31K%C.8.3MHE -

C.35

Where the board disagrees with the
audit committee’s view on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal
of the external auditors, the company
should include in the Corporate
Governance Report a statement from
the audit committee explaining its
recommendation and also the reason(s)
why the board has taken a different
view.
NEFETRAEEZEZESHIE &
- BRI BRINEREMEENE
R RAEECEEAMEPIHEZ
ZEgMMEREENER  URESS
BIAAERNRA -

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board that, subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu be re-appointed as the Company’s external auditor for
2016. The Board agreed with the recommendation made by the Audit
Committee.

EZZESNEECRE  ENRAEYc BERASHMITHEELRRT
ZE-RFEMINEZEED - HALRKRRAAFRITORREAFAEG it
KRR - EEGREEREEGCER -

C.3.6

The audit committee should be
provided with sufficient resources to
perform its duties.

BERZEgRERGTEERUEITE

BE -

The Audit Committee has been advised that the Company Secretary can
arrange independent professional advice at the expense of the Company
should the seeking of such advice be considered necessary by the Audit
Committee.

BEZZEQC BN FERZESRREVESKBUIEER - AF
WERALH - BRBAARARLZN -
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DEERER

C.3.7

The terms of reference of the audit
committee should also require it:
EREERNBESEIARE

— 1o review arrangements employees
of the company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns
about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The
audit committee should ensure
that proper arrangements are in
place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and
for appropriate follow-up action;
and
BRI R RIRENATZH - NAlE
SRR I EER - NEBEEE
Hb A E A ge B AT EEITRR
HET - BERLZEGEBRAES
2 BARENEREEL AT
BUMRAE RREEETE 0 R

— to act as the key representative
body for overseeing the company’s
relations with the external auditor.
BEQRIEINEZHM M EE
RE BEER-ZHNBERE-

C

Please refer to C.3.1 and C.3.3 above for details.
FHME2MEXEC31%C33E -

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
EREERINEE

D1

Management functions
EIRTHEE

Corporate Governance Principle
TEERRA

The Company should have a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for Board approval and those delegated to

management.

NAEAAEANIAETS - JES S EEES M ENSARREETIEERENEE -

D14

When the board delegates aspects of
its management and administration
functions to management, it must, at
the same time, give clear directions
as to the management’s powers, in
particular, where management should
report back and obtain prior board
approval before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on the
company'’s behalf.

BEEEGHEEE RITHINE MAE
NERTERER - LEARKRERE
VS - IR TIEMIIES] - BRIREE
BEEMNESSERARERRAGE
DA E ST S ARl G A FEEUS
FeHASEEA@E -

C

Management meetings are held periodically where executive Directors and
heads of senior management of the respective business divisions are present
and clear directions are given as to the management’s powers.
ERESFTHRITAEG  WTEFREAREBRIPFINSREBAENEE
ABBHEEE  WHERENE NG TEWES -

Any issue that is considered to be material will be referred to the Board for
approval.

EMHESERZERXRFGHIXHEEFEL -

Any materials matters requiring disclosure under the Listing Rules or other
applicable rules or regulations, appropriate disclosure will be made and
where necessary, circular will be prepared and shareholders’ approval will
be obtained in accordance with the requirements of the applicable rules and
regulations.
BIE E R A B E AR BSARAIMATREEZE1E - HEEL
%%ﬁ%&&&? AR R R ERE 2 AR B AR BIERSR - FIBE ok S HRS AR
o

ik
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D.1.2 |Formalise functions reserved to C e Under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer who is also the Chairman
the board and those delegated to of the Company, management is responsible for the day-to-day operations
management and to review those of the Group.
arrangements periodically to ensure TEBTHAE (BTAAATIZER)FET  BEEEAEAEENBE
that they remain appropriate to the g o
company’s needs.

NRIFEGIPLARE FEE 2B L IB e The Company has established clear terms of reference for the Board which
L I TR E R B EE D BIRETE K - are reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

W E Bt s ARG LI A AR RRFEREEGHIFDEMABIESE - WE R R RFAHE -
WEE -

D.1.3 |The company should disclose C e The respective responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the
the respective responsibilities, board and management have been discussed through this Corporate
accountabilities and contributions of the Governance Report.
board and management. EEgHERETENRAEDNIREE AREPH o
AREREEESHEERER A NHR
5 EZANMEAREAERIELER

D.1.4 | Directors should clearly understand C e Directors are given formal letter of appointment setting out the key terms and
delegation arrangements in place. The conditions of their respective appointment. Each newly appointed Director
company should have formal letters of will also be issued with a letter of appointment.
appointment for directors setting out FIAEEEEWIEAZESE  WEEFIHEZECETEEHRRENY - 85
the key terms and conditions of their FEZEERTHERHEEE -
appointment.

EERFREMATT A NERTH -
NEIEBEANERLRIE  THEM
ZEM E 2 FF IR -

D.2 Board Committees
EFERRETHNEER
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
Board Committees should be formed with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties.
EERETEZENNEEERNNERESE - FRIBHEE R RBE -

D.2.1 | Where board committees are established C e Four Board Committees, namely, Audit Committee, Remuneration

to deal with matters, the board should
give them sufficiently clear terms of
reference to enable them to perform their
functions properly.
EERVEZERRIEEE BEEEMN
EHREESRERDERNBESRE
EEALEE B ITRAE -

Committee, Nomination Committee and Management Committee, have
been established with specific terms of reference. Please refer to A.5.1-5.4,
B.1.3, C.3.3 and D.1.2 for details.
ERGERUMNERETZER  MERLZES  HFMWEES  REZES
NEBLZER  SERGEEHRE - FAFE2H LELXEAL1-54-B13
C.3.3K&D.1.218 -
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D.2.2 |The terms of reference of board C Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions and recommendations
committees should require them to at the Board meetings.
report back to the board on their EEEETLZEERNEELRNESERIAE LER °
decisions or recommendations,
unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so (such
as a restriction on disclosure due to
regulatory requirements).
EERRE TS LESNRESEESRT
ZEEGEMEFGERERT NE
B RIEZRE LSRR AENEERT
FRTIR i BEVE L FE R (51 00 H BE B 43 7F
BR &8 ) -
D.3 Corporate Governance Functions
EERBA
D.3.1 | The terms of reference of the board (or C No corporate governance committee has been established. The Board is
a committee or committees performing responsible for the corporate governance functions with the following duties:
this function) should include: AABWERIGEERZEY  CEERBEME=TTASE YA TS
EEY(ABETHBENZES) OB BE :
EHEEOE
(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
— develop and review the company’s corporate governance and make recommendations;
policies and practices on BIET RARFT AR BIMDEERBR R ER - WiRL&E#%
corporate governance and make
recommendations to the board; (b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
HIFE Rt AR EES AR R development of Directors;
B TmEReRbEE R REREENEII IS EEERR
— review and monitor the training and (c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
continuous professional development compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
of directors and senior management; B RERANAREETERREERTHAAMNBEREER
BRAREREERRREREAEN
I RSFEEEEE (d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
- review and monitor the company’s HIET - B REREANEE REFHNRFFRIRGHRFM(0E)
policies and practices on
compliance with legal and (e) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in
regulatory requirements; the Corporate Governance Report; and
BE RERNAEEPEEREE WA AR AESFFRINERERBEE A REFIEHORE &
REFENBERER
() such other corporate governance duties and functions set out in the
— develop, review and monitor the Code (as amended from time to time) for which the Board is responsible.
code of conduct and compliance HINFUANEETGEENZFTHMPEEABE KB (KCTEHE
manual (if any) applicable to HIE
employees and directors; and
HIE R REREERESNER
SFEARERFM(WE) &
— review the company’s compliance
with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.
Rl A RE TR EE R TAINER
MAEREERRENHKE
D.3.2 | The board should be responsible for C No corporate governance committee has been established. The Board is

performing the corporate governance
duties set out in the terms of
reference in D.3.1 or it may delegate
the responsibility to a committee or
committees.
EEZgEASETDIGREDE
HHEEEGRE - FAREEERT
—flxEEEES -

responsible for the corporate governance functions. Please refer to D.3.1

above for details.
ARBWERITEERTES  CEELRBERESTAE - FHBEL

B EXE#EDIAIE-

W
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¥

ERER

E

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

S )

E.1

Effective communication

BRBER

Corporate Governance Principle
EERRE

The Board should be responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual general
meetings or other general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their participation.

ERRBAERTFERSYE  LESEBRRBAFAGRAMRRAS BERER NSNS -

For each substantially separate issue at
a general meeting, a separate resolution
should be proposed by the chairman
of that meeting. The company should
avoid “bundling” resolutions unless they
are interdependent and linked forming
one significant proposal. Where the
resolutions are “bundled”, the company
should explain the reasons and material
implications in the notice of meeting.
ERFAEG L SFHRETEEABEER
BB EERIRERER - RIEER
IREBRRZ KT REE - GES
P —IHE R - BRIAREE R [
HIRER - BE2WHLIREZR 2
AEEgRBERERARET LSRN
BATE -

C

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings of the Company
on each substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

BHEERBUYNEE  HEARIRRARG FABERRRRRER
2ERES -

BiEE

- The chairman of the board
should attend the annual general
meeting. He should also invite
the chairmen of the audit,
remuneration, nomination and any
other committees (as appropriate)
to attend. In their absence, he
should invite another member of
the committee to be available to
answer questions at the annual
general meeting.
EEerRREERREEAFAS
TiFEZEZEY  FMNEEE
REEZEGREMAMEES (IR
AEBRME)NEFLT - EF
BMEZEEGXEARLE  EFgx
FBERGES—REEHEERRA
FRG FEIERER -

Il

+ .~

— The chairman of the independent
board committee (if any) should
also be available to answer
questions at any general meeting
to approve a connected transaction
or any other transaction that
requires independent shareholders’
approval.
BEERRETHEYEZES(WAE)
B FE IR B A A TR S
BERAE FEIEMRE - BEERS
Sl fE fo] H fh ZR A M8 S IR SR BL D 22
5

The 2015 annual general meeting (2015 AGM”) at which the external
auditors attended was convened on 2 June 2015.
TE-AFEZRRAFASER - —RFENNA - HEIT 0 SMNEZEED
IMEHE °

Details of Directors’ attendance at the 2015 AGM are set out below:
TERIVEZEFE T —AFREFAF ARG 21

2015 AGM
—E-AF
Name of Directors EEHZ REBERE
Teo Siong Seng RANEE 1/1
Chan Kwok Leung PR B R 1/1
Teo Tiou Seng KA 1/1
Chung Pui King, $BMIR 0/0
Rebecca (Appointed (R=ZZ—HF
on 2 July 2015) +tA-HEZM)
Kuan Kim Kin RA iRt 171
Tan Chor Kee [ 1/1
Cheng Fu Kwok, David 5 11
Lau Ho Kit, lvan RS 11
Ong Ka Thai FR%E 1/1
Yang, Victor 55 11
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E.1.2 |- The company’s management e In 2015, the Chairman of the Board (also served as Chairman of Nomination

(cont’d) should ensure the external Committee), Chairman of the Audit Committee and Chairman of the

€)) auditor attend the annual general Remuneration Committee attended the AGM and were available to answer

meeting to answer questions questions.

about the conduct of the audit, RIZ-—hE FLFIF(RERELCEZESERF) BEREZESEIHERI
the preparation and content of the MEEEXRHELERREBAFAS - Wi E LEERRM -

auditor’s report, the accounting

policies and auditor independence. e |n 2015, the Company’s external auditor attended the AGM and was
AR RE TR [ FE MR IS A% LR available to answer questions.

FEREEAFAE  AEFBEETLT RZZE—RF  AAFHMNEZEMEERRBAFAG - WARE FEER
15 WEREMBERAANS & e

STIRER DA R A% B AD 19 98 7 14 & R

o5 .

E.1.3 | The company should arrange for the C e The Company’s notice to shareholders for the 2015 AGM of the Company

notice to shareholders to be sent for was sent at least 20 clear business days before the meeting.
annual general meeting at least 20 clear AARBE-_ZE—hAFERFEFAFASRTIEVE - TELE B RRER
business days before the meeting and AR -
to be sent at least 10 clear business
days for all other general meetings.
RREBFREMS @ ARELHEAR
ERITHEDR - TEE X B mARRE
FBA - MBAEEMIRRAGME -
AEERGRITRIZS B HEE X B
RBH -

E.1.4 | The board should establish a shareholders’ C e The Board has established a shareholders communication policy and made
communication policy and review it on a it available on the Company’s website. The policy is subject to review on a
regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

EEEEGTRERAECR - WEHR EEHIEREBABER - WEEBH VAR A o ZBUR ST HELR

AT DARBLR BRI © ST PAREIR LR ©

e The Policy aims to set out the provisions with the objective of ensuring

that the Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”), both individual and
institutional, and, in appropriate circumstances, the investment community
at large, are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced
and understandable information about the Company (including its financial
performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments, governance
and risk profile), in order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an
informed manner, and to allow Shareholders and the investment community
to engage actively with the Company.
RBRFEH G EERRAAFRR ([IRE]) - BIFEEAREERE - &
EEBEFEATEE—RREAL HRAEKRG2E  HRARE S ERN
AARER (BIEEMBRE - BB IERETE - EXER - BRKERE
M) —HEERRAIEREERTITERESN - S— b ERERERIREA
TEARREIEER

E.2 Voting by poll
AREFAFKR

Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA

The Company should ensure that shareholders are familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting a poll.

NAERRERABARE S N ETRRNF AR -
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E.2.1 | The chairman of a meeting should C e Detailed explanation regarding the procedures for demanding poll by
ensure that an explanation is provided Shareholders had been provided at the commencement of the 2015 AGM.
of the detailed procedures for BRBRRERUREFARANEFHFARECR S -HFRRAF
conducting a poll and answer any KEFIaR R
questions from shareholders on voting
by poll. e At the 2015 AGM, the Chairman of the meeting put each resolution set out
ReFfERERES S FRBEREREI in the notice to be voted by way of a poll in accordance with the Company's
KEDFETRORMNFAER - WEE Article. i
IR A AR R RAR RIS o R_F-—AFERREFAE L - AGETRREADFAERMA - FRK
AFRGRENZ STHABRTETRERA ©
e Representatives of the Share Registrar of the Company were appointed as
scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast at the 2015 AGM.
AREBRN BRI RREZT AT AFERRAFASHERZE -
BRI ZE R B E S -
e All the resolutions put to vote at the Company’s general meetings were taken
by poll.
FIBRARRRRAG LIREZVABREFBREFXNEITRR
e Poll results were posted on the websites of the Company and Stock
Exchange.
REFRREREFHPNARR T MBI PFABL, o
F COMPANY SECRETARY
UNSIEDS
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and that
Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and/
or the Managing Director on governance matters and should also facilitate induction and professional development of Directors.
AANEEXERESE L RES2A0  BREFENE ZRENIARL  UREBREEGHRRRERF - ARAMERREBER
R/ SNEEREENESERETAEEIEARER  TLHEEMN ARSI REXRE -
F1.1 The company secretary should be C e Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca (“Ms. Chung”) (a certified public accountant),

an employee of the company and
have day-to-day knowledge of the
company'’s affairs.
NEMEREATINES - HRAMWA
BEHEMRH -

who was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company on 10
September 2013, is also a director of the Company. Ms. Chung is currently
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. The biographical details of Ms.
Chung are set out under the section headed “Honorary Chairman, Directors
and Senior Management Profile”.

glpat (@t ]) (MmN _ZE—=FAATHEZERE
RAEZARAWE  BRITARNRREE - ERTREERRFIZ EFEMGR
BBt BEREABHN [REXE ESRSETEAE] —&-

The Company Secretary ensures the Board meetings are conducted under
appropriate procedures.
NRAMERRETSSHENEERF THET -

The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions or minutes and keeps
records of substantive matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board
and Board Committee meetings.

AREANERB A EEE AR T L2598 EERERAgHECH - 1
G LR EEEEERHIRTE ©

During 2015, the Company Secretary undertook not less than 15 hours of
professional training to update her skills and knowledge.

R-Z—RF  RAMEBET IO/ NFOFEEIIARA AR
-




BRMEECEARAR « —T—HFFR 55

Corporate Governance Report (¥ &858 %

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #F(Cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
8238 | FAKX R (E)) DEERER
F1.2 The board should approve the selection, C e The selection, appointment or dismissal of the Company Secretary is
appointment or dismissal of the company approved by the Board.
secretary. NRAWENSEE  TERBEHHESTSHE -
NEMERNPHE - ZENREELHE
Ei
F1.3 The company secretary should report C e The Company Secretary reports to the Board through the Chairman whilst all
to the board chairman and/or the chief members of the Board have access to the advice of the Company Secretary.
executive. AENEBERTFERNEESER MAMAESEEXNEHINBARMEY
REWERAESEEERRITHLE BR o
F.1.4 | Al directors should have access to the C e All Directors have full access to the advice and services of the Company

advice and services of the company
secretary to ensure that board procedures,
and all applicable law, rules and regulations,
are followed.
FIEESENISARMNENERNE
FRE RS - RREEZSEF KA
WRERE - RBIRR IS ESEST -

Secretary and legal and professional consultants of the Company,
whenever necessary, to ensure compliance with all applicable law, rules and
regulations, and corporate governance practices.

PREFYA PEHERNRRARNATWEEAEZREXREM(WARE) W
BERKIRES - MERREKABEAER - RAIEIIARBEERTR -

=

O 0 0 B RN N —
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Report of The Directors

EEEHE

The board of directors (“Board”/”Directors”) of Singamas
Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the
Company’s annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and provision of management services to its
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in notes 45, 19 and 20, respectively to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 110 to 111.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
HK1.5 cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of our business and performance

A review of the business of the Company and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
and the material factors underlying its results and financial
position are provided in the Chairman’s Statement from
pages 8 to 13, Financial Highlights from pages 4 to 5
and Frequently Asked Questions from pages 14 to 16 of
this Annual Report, which discussion forms part of this
Report of the Directors for purposes of Schedule 5 to
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The outlook of the
Company’s business is discussed throughout this Annual
Report.

BREBECEERAR(ARR DESS (&
(g EF)REARVBE_Z—1F
TZA=TBULEFEZFRLREEZZIGE
FATSRER

FTEXRB
ARB2ETBEHR/REERMAENBA
Al BERRI LA BEOEREHERRS - HE
EWNBAR  BEARMAELEZTERK
DRI AR A PSRRI EE45 - 1920

EERSE

ARRIMENBAR (AR IAER)EZE—
T-AF+_A=1+—"HILFEZEENRE
OB ZEF 11 BEZRaEaEMmemiks
i% o

Efre e E—_T—HF+-RA=1—H
IFFEREREIRE (ZF—UF - 1.57(L) ©

EHERR

RXBEERRER
BRAFEARNRAEFH OB LA RE XS
"I AREEEPHIRASHRANERRER
BRI MDA - DRIESIRAFHRFESHE 13
B [XERE] F4EEH0 [HBEHE]
EEIAEZ16EMN [ —RIEE B HiTHw
RIBABRD (FREEDIE 6228 ) HRAMRE
REABEZGWME 2B - NRREHHAIR
RAFRAR BB T
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The following are the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant
to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and are in addition
to the matters referred to in the Chairman’s Statement and
Frequently Asked Questions of this Annual Report:

1. Economic Conditions and Market Competition Risks

The impact of global economic conditions and
market sentiment would directly affect the business
of the Group. The recent slowdown of global
economy affects export trade from the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), which has in turn
affected the demand in, and the average selling
price of, new dry freight containers, especially in the
second half of 2015.

The industry faces intense competition from
container manufacturing companies concentrate
in PRC. The competitors may attempt to gain
market share by offering products at prices at or
below those typically offered by the Company.
The Company may require to reduce prices when
facing competition, which may affect the Group’s
profitabilities and growth potential.

The Group continues to implement a series of
cost control measures and is continuing its focus
in expanding its product mix by developing more
higher-margin specialized containers thereby
reducing its dependency on specific markets.

2. Manpower and Retention Risks

The competition for talents has led to the risk that
the Group is not being able to attract or retain key
personnel and talents with appropriate and required
skills, experience and competence which would
meet the business objectives of the Group. The
Group will conduct regular reviews of its recruitment
and retention practices, remuneration packages
and succession plan to mitigate the risks. Moreover,
in view of continuing increase in wage rate in
manufacturing industry in China in recent years,
the Group will increase the level of automation
in production in order to reduce manpower
requirements in the future and to minimise the
labour cost.

Report of The Directors EES %

FTEERREAHPERE

BRARFER [ ERHRE | & [—AIEM ] R AT
EFLSN - KRBRIE R REH (BB EFIFE
622 % ) 8 T # R FTE A = Z R B K& SR BA
AE=T :

1. Z%/)ﬁg EE/R&W Eﬁﬁ?ﬂﬁ

EREBEBALTSBESERZEN
SEMEL S IREREBREDTE
REARKME ([FEDHEAES
MME BN RRMZIBREFGE
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3. Financial Risks

In the course of business activities, the Group is
exposed to a variety of financial risks, including
customers’ credit, liquidity, currency and cash flow
interest rate risks.

a. Customers’ credit risk

The Group’s and the Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group and the Company
due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties and financial guarantees
provided by the Company is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the
amount of contingent liabilities in relation to
financial guarantee issued by the Company
as disclosed in note 6b to the consolidated
financial statements.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of
each reporting period to ensure the adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts, if necessary.

Details of the customers’ credit risk are set
out in note 6b to the consolidated financial
statements.

b.  Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants
or to timely negotiate with the lenders if any
non-compliance is expected.

Details of the liquidity risk are set out in note
6b to the consolidated financial statements.
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Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, bank balances
and cash and bank borrowings, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. On 11
August 2015, China government weakened
the Renminbi (“RMB”)’s daily reference rate
by 1.9%, allowing depreciation to combat a
slump in exports. As at 31 December 2015,
the RMB’s daily reference rate was dropped
by 6% as compared to 31 December 2014.
Such RMB depreciation exposed the Group
to foreign currency risk as significant amount
of Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB. However, this exposure
was partially offset by the advantages taken
from such depreciation, as almost 70% cost
of sales are denominated in RMB whilst 96%
sales are denominated in US$. The Group
manages and monitors foreign exchange
exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Details of the currency risk are set out in note
6b to the consolidated financial statements.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s and the Company’s cash
flow interest rate risk primarily relates to
floating rate borrowings and variable rate
bank balances. Interest rate risk on bank
balances is considered immaterial due to
short maturity. It is the Group’s policy to keep
its borrowings at floating rate of interest so
as to minimise the fair value interest rate
risk. In order to hedge against the interest
rate risk arising from the potential increase
in interest rate in relation to the term loan,
the Company entered into three interest rate
swap contracts to swap the floating rate to
fixed rate.
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The management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Details of the cash flow interest rate risk
are set out in note 6b to the consolidated
financial statements.

IMPORTANT EVENTS SINCE THE END
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

In December 2015, the Group signed agreements with
Modex Manufacturing Limited and Modex Production
Limited to acquire the remaining 50% equity interest in
Qidong Singamas Offshore Equipment Co., Ltd and 100%
equity interest of a wholly-owned subsidiary of Modex
Production Limited, Taicang Modex Energy Engineering
Limited, respectively at nil consideration. In addition, the
Group has agreed to engage Modex Asia Limited as the
sales agent of cabin and cargo offshore containers at a
commission charge. These transactions were completed
in January 2016.

Besides as disclosed above, to the best of our Directors’
knowledge, the Company is not aware of any other
important event affecting the Company that have occurred
since the end of the financial year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

A discussion on the Company’s environment policies and
performance as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) are provided in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report from pages
86 to 107 of this Annual Report.
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Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those
have significant impact on the Group. As a listed company
in Hong Kong, the share of the Company is listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 8 July 1993, the Group
continuously complies with the requirements under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange including the disclosure requirements, corporate
governance provisions and Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers therein. Under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571), the
Company is required to maintain a register of interests
in shares and short positions and a register of directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions and is
obliged to the disclosure requirement of inside information.
The Board will monitor the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and
such policies are regularly reviewed. Any changes in the
applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the
attention of relevant employees and relevant operation
units from time to time.

The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets
of an enterprise and regards human resources as its
corporate wealth. The Group is committed to comply with
the requirements of the applicable laws and regulations,
such as the Privacy Ordinance, ordinances against
disability, sex, family status and races discriminations, the
Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance
and the ordinances applicable to occupational safety so
as to safeguard the benefits and interests of the Group’s
employees.

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has endeavoured to
comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and adopted effective environmental
technologies to ensure its operations meet the standards
and ethics in respect of environmental protection.
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To protect the Group’s intellectual property rights, the
Group has registered its domain name and trademarks
have been applied for or registered in various classes in
Hong Kong, the PRC and other relevant jurisdictions and
takes all appropriate actions to enforce its intellectual
property rights.

During the Year, our Group has obtained all the approvals,
permits, consents, licences and registrations required for
our business and operations and all of them are in force.
There was no material breach of or non-compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationships with Employees, Suppliers
and Customers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to
fulfil its immediate and long-term goals. To maintain its
competitiveness and dominant status, the Group aims
at delivering constantly high standards of quality in the
products and service to its customers. During the Year,
there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

The Group also understands that employees are valuable
assets. The Group provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate the employees. The Group
regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees
and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the
market standard. The Group also organised staff-friendly
activities for employees, in order to provide communication
opportunities among staff, which are vital to promote staff
relationship and physical fitness.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 259 to 260 of this annual report.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 46
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures of the Company are set out in notes
45, 19 and 20, respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had bank balances
and cash of US$ 242,726,000 (2014: US$249,793,000)
and total interest-bearing debts of US$315,000,000
(2014: US$377,564,000). This represented a gearing
ratio, calculated on the basis of the Group’s total
interest-bearing debts over equity attributable to owners
of the Company, of 0.53 (2014: 0.61) and a net debt to
equity ratio, calculated on the basis of the Group’s net
interest-bearing debts (after deducting bank balances
and cash of US$242,726,000) over equity attributable to
owners of the Company of 0.12 (2014: 0.21).

With the decline in profit before taxation due to soft
demand, although interest expense decreased as
compared with same period last year, the interest coverage
ratio of the Group’s profit before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation (EBITDA) to total net interest expense
decreased to 7.8 times for the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: 11.2 times).
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TREASURY POLICIES

The Group’s revenues are largely transacted in US
Dollars (“US$”). However, certain operating expenses
are transacted in other currencies including Hong Kong
dollars (‘HK$") and Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”). To monitor
the currency risk exposure and due to large interest rate
difference in US$ borrowings and RMB borrowings, the
Group’s interest-bearing debts balance as at 31 December
2015 were all in US$ (2014: 99.0%).

On 24 September 2013, the Company entered into a
facility agreement with a syndicate of banks in respect of
a US$310,000,000 term loan and revolving credit facilities
for a term of four years (the “Term Loan”), for the purpose
of financing the corporate funding requirements and the
capital expenditure of the Group, including refinancing of
the existing debits.

Of the total interest-bearing debts as at 31 December
2015, the maturity profile spread over a period of two
years with US$70,000,000 repayable within one year and
US$245,000,000 within one to two years. The Group’s
interest-bearing debts are principally on a floating rate
basis.

In order to hedge against the interest rate risk arising from
the potential increase in interest rate in relation to the term
loan, the Company entered into three interest rate swap
contracts to swap the floating rate to fixed rate. The total
notional amount of these three contracts amounted to
US$186,000,000, representing 60% of the Term Loan.
The terms of these three interest rate swap contracts were
negotiated to match the terms of the Term Loan.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group and the Company
are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements. No interest was capitalised by the Group
during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following continuing connected
transactions during 2015:

1. On 30 December 2013, Singamas Terminals (Hong
Kong) Limited (“STHK”), a company engaged in
the business of provision of container depot and
logistics services, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a depot agreement (the
“2014 Depot Agreement”) with Pacific International
Lines (HK) Limited (“PILHK”) to take effect from 1
January 2014, for a term of three years and will be
ending on 31 December 2016. PILHK is currently
a subsidiary of PIL (the controlling and substantial
shareholder of the Company as defined under the
Listing Rules). Accordingly, PILHK is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Since the 2014 Depot Agreement involves
transactions, which occur on a recurring basis
over a period of time, the transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

It was estimated that the amount of STHK’s
transactions with PILHK, on annual basis, for
the three financial years commencing from 1
January 2014 would not exceed 5% for each of
the percentage ratios, other than the profits ratio,
in the threshold tests in Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the transactions are only
subject to the annual reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements and exempt from the
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed in the
announcement published on 31 December 2013 in
compliance with the Listing Rules.
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On 30 December 2013, Singamas Logistics (Tianjin)
Co., Ltd. (“SLTC”), a company engaged in the
business of provision of container depot services, is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an addendum to a depot agreement (the “Depot
Agreement”) with the Tianjin Branch of Pacific
International Lines (China) Ltd. (“PIL China (Tianjin
Branch)”) to take effect from 1 January 2014, for a
term of three years. In view that PIL China (Tianjin
Branch) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PIL, PIL
China (Tianjin Branch) is a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. Since the
Depot Agreement involves transactions, which
occur on a recurring basis over a period of time,
the transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

It was estimated that the amount of SLTC’s
transactions with PIL China (Tianjin Branch),
on annual basis, for the three financial years
commencing from 1 January 2014 would not
exceed 5% for each of the percentage ratios,
other than the profits ratio, in the threshold tests in
Rules 14A.76 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
transactions are only subject to the annual reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements and
exempt from the shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details
of these continuing connected transactions have
been disclosed in the announcement published on
30 December 2013 in compliance with the Listing
Rules.
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On 6 October 2014, the Company (for and on
behalf of the Group) entered into a master purchase
contract (the “Master Purchase Contract 2015”)
with PIL (for and on behalf of PIL Group), for the
sale of the Equipment to PIL Group. In view that PIL
is a connected person of the Company, the entering
into the Master Purchase Contract 2015 constituted
a connected transaction. As the Master Purchase
Contract 2015 involves transactions, which occur
on a recurring basis over a period of time, the
transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Each of the applicable percentage ratios (other
than profits ratio) calculated pursuant to Rule 14.07
of the Listing Rules in respect of the proposed
annual caps for the transactions exceeds 5%.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under
the Master Purchase Contract 2015 are subject
to annual reporting, announcement, annual review
and shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. After obtaining the
approval from the shareholders on 19 November
2014, the Master Purchase Contract 2015 took
effect from 1 January 2015 and will be ending on
31 December 2017. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed in the
announcement published on 6 October 2014 in
compliance with the Listing Rules.
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Pacific International Lines (China) Ltd. (“PIL China”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of PIL, the controlling
and substantial shareholder of the Company, had
entered into a tenancy agreement with Singamas
Container Holdings (Shanghai) Limited (*SCSL”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant
to which PIL China leased a property to SCSL for a
period of eight and half months commencing from
15 April 2014 to 31 December 2014 (the “Initial
Tenancy”). As none of the applicable percentage
ratios (as defined in Rule 14.07 of the Listing
Rules) in respect of total transaction amounts
for the Initial Tenancy would exceed the 0.1%
thresholds, these transactions were not subject
to any annual reporting, announcement, annual
review and shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules. The lease under the
Initial Tenancy expired on 31 December 2014. On
31 December 2014, SCSL entered into the
renewed tenancy agreement with PIL China for
the renewal of the Initial Tenancy for a further
term of three years commencing from 1 January
2015 to 31 December 2017, both dates inclusive
(“Renewed Tenancy Agreement”). As PIL China is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of PIL and SCSL is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, PIL is a
connected person of the Company and PIL China
is an associate of PIL under the Listing Rules. The
Renewed Tenancy Agreement involves transactions,
which will occur on a recurring basis over a period
of time; accordingly, the transactions constitute a
continuing connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

4.
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As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios (other than profits ratio which shall not
apply) calculated pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the annual cap for the
transactions is more than 0.1% but all of them are
less than 5%, under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules, the transactions therefore constitutes a
continuing connected transaction which is only
subject to the annual reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements and is exempt from the
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed in the
announcement published on 31 December 2014 in
compliance with the Listing Rules.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have
been approved by the Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed these transactions
and are in the opinion that:

(@)

those continuing connected transactions between
STHK and PILHK are entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group, conducted
on normal commercial terms and are entered into
in accordance with the agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole and on terms no less favourable than those
available to or from independent third parties. The
total amount of such transactions for the year ended
on 31 December 2015 was HK$8,403,623 and did
not exceed the annual cap of HK$14,000,000;
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those continuing connected transactions between
SLTC and PIL China (Tianjin Branch) are entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group, conducted on normal commercial
terms and are entered into in accordance with
the agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole and
on terms no less favourable than those available
to or from independent third parties. The total
amount of such transactions for the year ended on
31 December 2015 was RMB3,598,309 (equivalent
to approximately HK$4,559,000) and did not exceed
the annual cap of RMB14,400,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$18,246,240); and

those continuing connected transactions between
the Group and PIL Group are entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group,
conducted on normal commercial terms and entered
into in accordance with the agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole and on terms no less favourable than
those available to or from independent third parties.
The total amount of such transactions for the year
ended on 31 December 2015 was US$65,622,100
(equivalent to approximately HK$511,852,000) and
did not exceed the annual cap of US$100,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$780,000,000).

those continuing connected transactions between
SCSL and PIL China are entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group,
conducted on normal commercial terms and entered
into in accordance with the agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole and on terms no less favourable than
those available to or from independent third parties.
The total amount of such transactions for the year
ended on 31 December 2015 was RMB4,159,818
(equivalent to approximately US$672,468) and did
not exceed the annual cap of RMB5,127,992.64
(equivalent to approximately US$827,095.59).
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has engaged the external auditors of the Company to
report the continuing connected transactions of the Group
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The external
auditors have reported to the Board and confirmed that
for the year 2015 the continuing connected transactions
(i) have received the approval of the Board; (i) are in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Company; (iii)
have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and (iv) the
continuing connected transactions in paragraphs (1), (2),
(3) and (4) above have not exceeded the relevant caps
as disclosed in the announcements dated 31 December
2013, 30 December 2013, 6 October 2014 and
31 December 2014 respectively.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 24 September 2013, the Company entered into a
facility agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) with The
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., DBS Bank Ltd., The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited,
ING Bank N.V. and United Overseas Bank Limited as the
mandated lead arrangers and other financial institutions
for a term of four years for the purpose of financing the
corporate funding requirements and the capital expenditure
of the Group, including refinancing of the existing term
loan and revolving credit facilities under the facility
agreement dated 25 March 2011 and the notes issued by
the Company on 14 April 2011. The Facility Agreement
includes conditions to the effect that Mr. Teo Siong Seng
and his family members shall maintain the Management
Control of every member of the Group. A breach of the
above conditions will constitute an event of default under
the Facility Agreement. If such an event of default occurs,
all amounts outstanding under the Facility Agreement may
become immediately due and payable.
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CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, no asset of the Group (2014:
Nil) was pledged as securities to any third parties.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During 2015, the Company provided guarantees to
banks as securities for credit facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC. The Group does
not provide any guarantee to any third parties and does
not have contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2015
(2014 Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance and has taken appropriate steps
to adopt and comply with the applicable principles and
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code during
the year ended 31 December 2015.

Further information on the Company’s corporate
governance practices is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of the
Directors, all of the Directors have complied with, for
any part of the accounting period covered by this annual
report, the required standard as set out in the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung

Mr. Teo Tiou Seng

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca (Appointed on 2 July 2015)
Mr. Kuan Kim Kin*

Mr. Tan Chor Kee*

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David*

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan*

Mr. Ong Ka Thai*

Mr. Yang, Victor*

*  Non-executive Director
*  Independent Non-executive Director

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles”), every Director not being
a Managing Director and/or Chief Executive Officer shall
retire from office at annual general meetings and, being
eligible, offers themselves for re-election. A Director so
appointed as to the office of Managing Director and/or
Chief Executive Officer shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years but shall be eligible
for re-election.

The term of office for non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) is for a year and is
subject to retirement and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Articles.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of Listing Rules from
each of Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan,
Mr. Ong Ka Thai and Mr. Yang, Victor and considered them
as independent.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARY

The names of directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company (the “Subsidiaries”) during
the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of
this report, are set out below:-

(in alphabetical order)

Current directors of Subsidiaries:
CHAN Kwok Leung
CHENG Chih Hsin
CHOI Yong Suk
CHU Chee Leong
CHUNG Pui King, Rebecca
HE Jian Xu

HSU Yung Ming

LAl Zhi Yong

LAM Gar Wing, Debbie
MA Wei Bo Kirby
PAN Chun Ling

Paal WILSGAARD
QIAN Ming

REN Yu Dong

SHI Zhen Xing

SUN Da Peng
Takao SHINOHARA
TEO Siong Seng
TEQO Tiou Seng

TEO Teng Seng
Tore ERTZAAS
WANG Wen Zhen
WANG Zhi Qiang
WENG Sheng Qiang
WU Bing Hong

WU Ding Xiang

XU Sun Tong

YANG Shao Peng
YIP Ching Han

YU Bing

ZHAO Bing

Resigned directors of Subsidiaries:
CHAO Chun Yen

DU Yu Lin

Masayuki NOSOHARA

ZHAO Wei

ZHENG Chun Hua
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of
the Directors in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) which (a)
were required notification to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which any such
Director is taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or which (b) were required pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO to be entered into the register maintained
by the Company; or which (c) were required, pursuant to
Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(A) Ordinary Shares of the Company
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Number of Shares/
Underlying Shares Held
BEZRH/ Percentage
HBRHAHA of Total
Personal Corporate Total Issued Shares
Name Capacity Interest Interest  Other Interest 12T T
i 54 fEARE NEER Hity aEE: ROBOHL
Mr. Teo Siong Seng (Note 7)  Beneficial Owner 51,884,250 = = 51,884,250 2.15
RANB S (Hiit 1) EaEA
Mr. Teo Tiou Seng (Note 2) ~ Beneficial Owner 668,730 - - 668,730 0.03
RABLE (Wit2) EafAA
Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca Beneficial Owner 1,062,625 = = 1,062,525 0.04
(Note 3) ExlAA
BRI L (Hi23)
Mr. Kuan Kim Kin (Note 4) Beneficial Owner 668,730 = = 668,730 0.03
BshiES & (Wit 4) EafERA
Mr. Ong Ka Thai (Note 5) Beneficial Owner 668,730 - - 668,730 0.03
FRREE(Hi25) EaEA
Mr. Tan Chor Kee (Note 6) Spouse Interest - - 6,000 6,000 0.00
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Notes:

(1) The personal interest of Mr. Teo Siong Seng represents
the interest in 42,377,250 Shares and interest in
9,507,000 underlying Shares in respect of the share
options granted by the Company, the details of which
are stated in the following section “Share Options”.

2) The personal interest of Mr. Teo Tiou Seng represents

the interest in 196,780 Shares and interest in 471,950
underlying Shares in respect of the share options
granted by the Company, the details of which are stated
in the following section “Share Options”.

3) The personal interest of Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca
represents the interest in 195,291 Shares and interest
in 867,234 underlying Shares in respect of the share
options granted by the Company, the details of which
are stated in the following section “Share Options”.

4) The personal interest of Mr. Kuan Kim Kin represents
the interest in 104,000 Shares and interest in 564,730
underlying Shares in respect of the share options
granted by the Company, the details of which are stated
in the following section “Share Options”.

(5) The personal interest of Mr. Ong Ka Thai represents
the interest in 52,000 Shares and interest in 616,730
underlying Shares in respect of the share options
granted by the Company, the details of which are stated
in the following section “Share Options”.

6) Ms. Lee Tew Guan, spouse of Mr. Tan Chor Kee held
6,000 Shares. Mr. Tan Chor Kee is deemed to be
interested in 6,000 Shares held by Ms. Lee Tew Guan.

(7) The personal interest of Mr. Chan Kwok Leung and Mr.
Yang, Victor in underlying Shares in respect of the share
options granted by the Company are disclosed in the
following section “Share Options”.

All the interests disclosed above represent long
position in the Shares and underlying Shares.
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(B) Share Options (B) R
Particulars of the share option scheme adopted by RARIRZETLFARA—BERNZEE
the Company on 1 June 2007 (the “Option Scheme”) AT El ([ REARHERT & )) 2 FFIB AR
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial B I ETRERMIFTESD ©
Statements.
Movements of the share options under the Option RER - BARETE TaEREZ BN
Scheme during the year are as follows: e
Number of Share Options
BREZE
As at As at
1 January 31 December
2015 2015
S # Exercise
Name/Category ~ [%/48% Z—B-1f Granted  Exercised Lapsed =Z-F%  GrantDate Exercisable Period Price
of Participants 45l -B-H il it %% TZA=1-H RiHAH fyid 8
(Notes &, b &) HK$
(Wita blc) BT
Directors Ez
MiTeoSongSeng EHEXE 2613000 - - - 2613000 2862007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
2,613,000 - - - 2613000 28062007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
2,613,000 - - - 2,613,000 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 398
1,333 - - - 1333 172010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 138
833,333 - - - 8333 17712010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 138
838,334 - - - 833,334 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38
9,507,000 - - - 9507000
M. Chen Kok Leung BELRR% 4 522,600 - - - 52600 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
502,600 - - - B2B00  28/6/007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
522,600 - - - 52600 280612007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
750 - - - 750 6/8/2008 6/8/2009-5/8/2018 1.48
750 - - - 750 6/8/2008 6/8/2010-5/8/2018 148
217,750 - - - AT 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
166,666 - - - 166,666 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
166,667 - - - 166,667 172010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 138
166,667 - - - 166,667 1712010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 138
2,287,050 - - - 2,287,050
MrTeoTiouSeng  BEEE4E 130,650 - - - 190650 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - - 100 BB 28/6/2000-27/62017 39
130,650 - - - 130650 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
40,000 - - - 40,000 17712010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 138
40,000 - - - oMo 17000 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 138
471,950 - - - 190
Ms. Chung Pui King, ERB %+ 261,300 - - - 61300 2806007 28/06/2008-27/06/2017 393
Rebecca (Notee) ~ (Ffite) 261,300 - - - 81300 280612007 2806/2009-27/06/2017 393
261,300 - - - 61300 28062007 28/06/2010-27/06/2017 393
1 - - - 1 01/07/2010 01/07/2012-30/06/2020 1.38
83,33 - - - 83333 OU7/2010  O1/07/2013-30/06/2020 138

867,234 = = = 867,234

l
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Number of Share Options
BREYR

As at As at

1 January 31 December

2015 2015
7 S Exercise
Name/Category ~ [i%/48% Z—B-1f Granted  Exercised lapsed —Z-FE  GrantDate Exercisable Period Price
of Participants 45l -B-H il i %% t=B=1-8 BHAS e e
(Notes &, b & c) HK$
(Wi blc) BT
Mr KuanKimKin B E 130,650 - - = 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 3.98
130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
260 - - - 260 6/8/2008 6/8/2009-5/8/2018 1.48
260 - - - 260 6/8/2008 6/8/2010-6/8/2018 1.48
52,260 - - - 52,260 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 1.48
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

564,730 - - - 564,730
Mr. Ong Ka Thai IXERE 130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 3.98
130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 3.98
130,650 = - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
260 - - - 260 6/8/2008 6/8/2009-5/8/2018 1.48
52,260 - - - 52,260 6/8/2008 6/8/2010-5/8/2018 1.48
52,260 - - - 52,260 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 1.48
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

616,730 - - - 616,730
Mr. Yang, Victor BERLE 40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

120,000 - - - 120,000

Sub-total (Notee) /Nt (MiiFe) 13,567,460 - - - 1443469
Employees E8AH 653,250 = = - 391,950 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
in aggregate W) 653,250 - - - 391,950 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
(Note d) 653,250 - - - 391,950 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 3.93
147,925 - - - 147,925 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 1.48
84,668 - - - 84,668 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
136,668 - - - 136,667 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
219,998 - - - 136,665 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

Sub-total (Notee)  /Nit(Hite) 2,549,009 - - - 1881775
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Number of Share Options
BREZA
As at Asat
1 January 31 December
2015 2015
R S Exercise
Name/Category ~ [i%/48% —B-1f Granted  Exercised Lapsed =Z-FE  GrantDate Exercisable Period Price
of Participants 2425 -A-B i g %M +=B=t-B FHAH s e
(Notes a, b &) HKS$
(Wiia bRc) AT
All other FiEftES 348400 - - - 348,400 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
employees At 348,400 - - - 348,400 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
in aggregate 348,400 - - - 348,400 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 3.98
118,954 - - - 118,954 6/8/2008 6/8/2009-5/8/2018 1.48
118,953 - - - 118,953 6/8/2008 6/8/2010-5/8/2018 1.48
202,953 - - - 202,953 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 1.48
Sub-total Nt 1,486,060 - - - 1,486,060
Total &t 17,602,529 - - - 17,602,529
Notes: Bt -
(a) The share options with the exercise price of HK$3.93 (@) HUITIEES.93 BT mifgIR1#EE 7 FIR =
are vested and exercisable in three tranches on 28 June FTENFANAZFNA  ZFFNFANA
2008, 2009 and 2010 respectively and up to 27 June ZHNAR=ZF—FFENA=F/HF =
2017. B BELE R AT - 1T E —F
—+FENHZFEAL o
(b) The share options with the exercise price of HK$1.48 are (b) WATTIEE1.48 BT HIfERER 7 FIR =
vested and exercisable in three tranches on 6 August EENFNANH  ZF—FFNANA
2009, 2010 and 20171 respectively and up to 5 August RZF——F )\ ANAD =K BE
2018. RAJ@iT(E 112 —F—F/\AA
=01
() The share options with the exercise price of HK$1.38 are () LUTTIEE 1.38 BT g IR EE 75 FIR =
vested and exercisable in three tranches on 1 July 2011, E——F+H—H —F——F+HH
2012 and 2013 respectively and up to 30 June 2020. R—F—=—F+ A—HH =506k BEEE
Ra[fiT(E  (TEHE - F =—FFA~A
=+HIE
@) Employees are working under employment contracts that () 18 B TSI IR IEIX DI VAT 1589 [ 2B A 47 ]
are regarded as “continuous contracts” for the purposes TIERES ©
of the Employment Ordinance.
(e) Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca was appointed as (e) EMRLA TR -_E—AFLHA-HEZ

executive Director on 2 July 2015. The 867,234
underlying Shares held by Ms. Chung in respect of share
options granted by the Company moved to category of
directors with effect from 2 July 2015.

ERPAITES - X LFH.Z 867,234 /K
FBEIR 17 (KR AR 2 R ) i — &
—AFEAZAEBEEFES -

[ U B RN N T —
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At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries a
party of any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed above, none of Directors nor their
associates, had any other interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
notification to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which any such
Director or chief executive is taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or which (b) were
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered
into the register maintained by the Company; or which
(c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code contained
in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company or the
Stock Exchange and none of Directors, nor their spouse or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right
during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2015, according to the register kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, and
so far as was known to any Director or chief executive
of the Company, the following persons (other than the
interests of certain Directors disclosed under the section
headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” above), had an
interest or a short position in the Shares and underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:

Apm) -~ HERAR - REMBAR - B E
M8 A B BN F A EM R E R L EA %
BE o UBARRREF A EBARRRSI[E
EAER RIS EH MR -

B EXFIIEEIN  SEZRREZBEBAL
BESE A QRS EREEAE (E&R(E
7 R EIEARDIDFEXVER) Z B fn ~ MR &
EREZ ERIORE - WA @@ BRBESFLH
SIRGIDEXVERE 7 K85 #MR T ME AR A
KERM(BRESFRE(EZ LHEGRD)DZ
BB RIERREREB 2 ERIORR)
X (0) IR IBCRE 55 R A B 15 01 ) 26 362 R AR X
ARRAHRZIGRFE 2 B A2 - 3 (0)
RIBIZETRIZAME AR B MBI P2 s
ARARRIES » HELBH /B FZ2FX
TR B EAIRE AR RE S 2 MR FEATT
a2 BHER o

FERFEZ#ED

R-ZE-—RAF+-A=+—H REARTR
(BH LB D) 336 GFE 2 &L MR
™ UEREBFRHERITERAERA - THIA
T(BRA L TESERED - HERDREEE
ZHEBKR | —BEBETESHR 2 #a
SN - R MBI R 2 R SORE
WARB(E R L EERDDEXVEBF 2 X35
FRRAARRHEALHERAT -
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Percentage of
Total Issued
Number of Ordinary Shares Shares
EZERRE Ll
Name Notes Direct Interest Indirect Interest BT
#®E HiaF HEER EiEEs ROBIL
Mr. Chang Yun Chung (1)&(4) 493,291 (L)* 993,825,345 (L)* 41.14
SRR SR
Madam Lee Kheng Wah (2)&(4) - 994,318,636 (L)* 41.14
P+
PIL (1)&(4) 993,825,345 (L)* - 4112
N
PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. (1)&(4) - 993,825,345 (L)* 4112
Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited  (3)&(4) - 993,825,345 (L)* 41.12
Prime Capital Management
(Cayman) Limited 4) 166,061,336 (L)* - 6.87
(L)# - Long Position (L# — A&
Notes: Kiet -
(1) A total of 993,825,345 Shares are directly held by PIL. PIL is (1) 4B 2 75 993,825,345 IR I8 17 )5 A K FRE 75 B 2 45

@

100% owned by PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. and Mr. Chang Yun
Chung is interested, in aggregate, in 496,800,000 shares
representing 89.61% of the issued share capital of PIL Holdings
Pte. Ltd.. Mr. Chang Yun Chung'’s interest in shares of PIL
Holdings Pte. Ltd. comprises a personal interest in 79,275,000
shares and corporate interests in 175,500,000 shares through
South Pacific International Holdings Limited, a company in which
he holds 2.02% of the issued share capital and 242,025,000
shares through Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited, a company
in which he holds 2.86% of the issued share capital. Messrs. Teo
Siong Seng and Teo Tiou Seng, Directors, both of their interests
in shares of PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. comprise personal interests
in 3,600,000 shares and 2,400,000 shares respectively and
representing 0.65% and 0.43% of the issued share capital of PIL
Holdings Pte. Ltd..

Madam Lee Kheng Wah, as the spouse of Mr. Chang Yun
Chung, is deemed to be interested in these Shares.

@

B o X FRFER PIL Holdings Pte. Litd. # 6 100%
- ] KA SE 4 A% B PIL Holdings Pte.
Ltd. B’ 17 & #£496,800,0008% - 1 PIL Holdings
Pte. Ltd. B 7T 489.61% ° 5k 7 # 5k £ AT #
B.2 PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. i 17 7] 7 B ] A 1E 25
79,275,000/% - i#iASouth Pacific International
Holdings Limited ( 5k 77 70 5E 4 5 5 7% 23 7] 2.02%
E#ETHRA) Friz 6.2 2 6]z 175,600,000 5% -

Ki#E#RY. C. Chang & Sons Private Limited (&7
HFSEEIFHZ R A]2.86% B FEITRA) s B2
DA RS 242,025,000/ - [[1 2 FRINESE LR
SREFEE ST Rl FIIF5 A PIL Holdings Pe. Ltd. f& 17
Z B # 2 3,600,000 2 J 2,400,000 % + 53 Bty
PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. 2 #7TA870.65%/%0.43% °

FFBELLTIRAFPHELEZIE  HFLLF
W RBIEB RN F LR B2 R e o

[ ——

=
=
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3) PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. in
which Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited holds more than
one-third of interests in PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd.. Accordingly, Y.C.
Chang & Sons Private Limited indirectly controls one-third or
more of the voting rights in the shareholders’ meeting of PIL,
in accordance with SFO, Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited
is deemed to be interested in PIL’s interests in the Company’s
issued Shares.

(4) The Company purchased 1,500,000 Shares during the
year and cancelled the repurchased 1,000,000 Shares and
500,000 Shares on 30 January 2015 and 30 September 2015
respectively. The total numbers of issued Shares were reduced
to 2,417,419,918 Shares and 2,416,919,918 Shares after the
cancellation of repurchased Shares on 30 January 2015 and
30 September 2015 respectively. Accordingly, the total interests
in Shares of Mr. Chang Yun Chung, Madam Lee Kheng Wah, PIL,
PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd, Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited and
Prime Capital Management (Cayman) Limited as at 31 December
2015 amounted to 41.14%, 41.14%, 41.12%, 41.12%, 41.12%
and 6.87% of the Company’s total number of issued Shares,
respectively.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other person
known to the Directors or chief executive, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who, as at
31 December 2015, had an interest or a short position
in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

As at 31 December 2015, no Directors or proposed
directors had any existing service contract or proposed
service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not terminable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements (which were approved by the
independent non-executive Directors and in the opinion
of the Directors were carried out on normal commercial
terms and in ordinary course of the Group’s business),
no material transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, its immediate and ultimate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a director of the Company or an entity
connected with a director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

3) A FRFEAPIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. 2 2 & H1/& 2>
Al Y. C. Chang & Sons Private Limited#¥ &
PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. =5 —{_F #7125 » &
W > Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited [61# & #
X FHBEZIREANE LT =752 —2 LAY
WEE  HIRIFEGESREIEP) - Y.C. Chang
& Sons Private Limited #;1%2 BB X FH R A
RE]Z BEHITIR (D °

) KR ERE A8 B 1,600,000 888 17+ 38 7 FIR
—E—AF—A=THAR=FE-—AFAA=AF
A i #% B 5 2 £ 1,000,000 % 5% 17 X 500,000 %
B17 o AREIEFTRGABER - F—HF—
A=ZF+AR=ZF—AFNA=+H(EEFLHE
IR (7 ) 72 B i b 2 2,417,419,918 8 & 17 &
2,416,919,918 k(7 » Bifr + ko F k4 - FB
ZEL 4+ XFMFE -~ PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. » Y.C.
Chang & Sons Private Limited X Prime Capital
Management (Cayman) Limited = E— 7 F 41—
H=1—HZ BG4 w5 5 ARa] 2 &7
17 A8 0.2 41.14%, 41.14%, 41.12%, 41.12%,
41.12% K 6.87% °

B EXFTIEEEIN SEEXRFITHRAEL
EABERAAL (T ARRBRESHARAZ
BRITERABE)R-_ZE—RAF+-_A=+—H
BB HE M EEGRG)E XV EE 2 &k 30 E6M
RARIEBEER N RBER DR 2 Em ok

A
E o

EEZRBnE

R-ZE—RAF+-_A=+—H ARAHES
FIREEEEWE L EAAQRFHEMER
AR AT A —FREL B EMR L 2 RS -

4

EEREERS RHBSHZE
RiEm

Brir B M mRM T4 REEIN(AFERS
EEBUIFATESEML  BHEZTEMS
BAEEZ AEERE - WA —REEHKET
M) AnE - BEERMRRERAR AR
ME AR SEAMME AR ERT RS
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has insured and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which
provides appropriate cover to certain legal actions brought
against its directors and officers. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as
required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) when this report prepared by the Directors
is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the
Companies Ordinance.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales
attributable to major suppliers and customers are as
follows:

Report of The Directors EES %

EEFRER

KRR FARKRREEFEELEHAER
TR - AHEERSHRABEEE TAET
B IREEENRE - EREE M SAERERT
B SRIE A RMED (BHEDIE622%) F
ATOIRH IR E R ESHFERAHERE 2 FHES]
25.391(1)(a) IFIE BB R

FEEPRMER
AEEREERLEERRE T EHEERE
FzEALWT :

Percentage
B
Percentage of purchases attributable AEBSAHERMEBEERE
to the Group’s largest supplier 10.8%
Percentage of purchases attributable to AEBRAHERMEBEERE
the Group’s five largest suppliers 27.4%
Percentage of sales attributable to REESAREPAIGEERE
the Group’s largest customer 8.5%
Percentage of sales attributable to REERAEPAIGEERE
the Group’s five largest customers 32.9%

During the year, none of the Directors nor their associates
nor any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers
noted above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company purchased an aggregate of 1,500,000
Shares at a total cost of HK$ 1,723,720 during the year.
Other than this purchase, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities during the year. The
reason for such purchases are provided in the Chairman’s
Statement from pages 8 to 13 of this Annual Report.

RER - SEFLEBEALIEMBR (3
EEMABEAARBZIRAR %) R BHE L
AE B HEEANT LA T

Bo - HESELE LhESs

RABRERNAELL1,723, 7208 THEES K
1,500,000 (%% 17 - BB EZER MM - FR
AARRETRNBE A P EER - HERE
EIARRMEM L HES - ZS5BOZBERCE
NINAERESEE13EHMN [EFHE | o

R 8 K s — T .



84 Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015

Report of The Directors EEE# &

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has
not entered into any equity-linked agreement.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Retirement Benefits Scheme are set out in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 17 to
24 under the “Honorary Chairman, Directors and Senior
Management Profile” section of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND
EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

The remuneration policy for the employees of the
Company is set by the Remuneration Committee on the
basis of their merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are decided by the Remuneration Committee
with reference to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

AR = 10 S0 15

BE_T-AFt-_A=1T—HILFE A2
AR S AR R R 17 o

%I = n\l]

RRBRFRLEAT LS FHERGELRAF]
EBREMERBOEB EERITHAL

BAEFIRTE
RCEME B 2 #BRREA
13 °

B R BT o

EEREREEASZEH

NAIZEENSEBEEBAB ZBNHRAE
WEITEERF2UEZ [$EXR - EFEhS
EEBASMN] —&-

i B SR R R (R A 1R

AR B TOHMERBFHME B SRIESTA
BEE - EENEESMETE

EEPAEBSEEEAENTFHHFIHES
S2MAKENELNRN - FANKI - UK
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As at 31 December 2015, the Group, including its
subsidiaries but excluding associates and joint ventures,
employed 9,465 (2014: 10,703) full-time employees.
Staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted
to US$127,530,000 (2014: US$139,753,000) for the
year. All full-time salaried employees, except for factory
workers and contract employees, are being paid on a
monthly basis, plus a discretionary performance bonus.
Factory workers are being remunerated based on a basic
wage plus production incentive. Share options are also
being offered to selected grantees of the Group. The
Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees are
competitive and employees are awarded on a performance
related basis within the general framework of the Group’s
salary and bonus system. To further enhance the capability
of its human resource, the Group provides on-the-job
training to its employees.

Other than the subsidiaries in the PRC, neither the
Company nor any of its other subsidiaries has established
labour union. The Company and its subsidiaries, however,
are not subject to any collective agreements. The Group
has maintained good relationships with its employees.
None of the Group’s employees is represented by a labour
union.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this Annual
Report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as external auditors of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Teo Siong Seng

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 17 March 2016
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REBGEIN AEEBENBARERT
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RIE - HERERESE

2015 has seen a downturn of the macro economy, which
has affected export trade from the PRC and in turn
affected the demand and average selling price of new
dry freight containers, especially in the second half of
2015. Affected by the market, the Group has recorded a
decrease in revenue and loss for the year.

Despite the challenges we faced, the Group has no doubt
in committing ourselves to sustainability in our businesses.
We therefore proudly present, our first Environmental,
Social and Governance Report this year.

Sustainability is a responsibility and a key success factor
for long-term competitiveness. While we implement our
sustainability approach in line with business objectives, we
also recognise how important our stakeholders are to the
way we conduct business in the communities where we
operate.

Foreword by the
Chief Operating Officer
BEREEERERNTS

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung BREI#R &4
Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer

HITEFREFESERE

—E-RFEMRREKERECZEDTEN
HOES  EMFEREERMZHZRLFY
EE FHR-ZE-—HAFTHF - XWMBE¥
& AEERAFEHRESEERNENER -

EERPIERELE - AEBENERME DR
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FEERBMENERE LG NEARS -
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Over the past years, we spent continuous efforts to
develop our strategies and structure. We formed a
highly engaged Environmental, Social and Governance
team, who had contributed to the sustainability efforts
in our group with key deliverables: to better manage our
businesses, heighten performance levels and introduce
sustainability development into our work processes. It
is our obligation to manage our Group to be in a better
shape than ever before. The high levels of trust and
engagement shown by our employees are an essential
element in reaching our goals.

The coming year will be challenging for our businesses,
but also one with plenty of opportunities for those who are
prepared to seize these opportunities. We believe we are
on the right track in bringing sustainability to our Group in
these volatile times.

By order of the Board
Chan Kwok Leung
Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer

Hong Kong, 17 March 2016
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EXPLANATION ON PREPARATION

The Group issued its first Environmental, Social and
Governance Report for the 2015 financial year (“FY 2015”).

The report content is prepared according to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”). It covers the information and activities
of our headquarters in Hong Kong and our factories in
mainland China. Our container depots, terminals and
logistics businesses represent a relatively small proportion
of the Group’s overall business and are therefore not
included in this report.

The reporting period covered in this report is FY 2015 (from
1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015), which is the same
financial period covered in the 2015 annual report. This
report is issued annually.

The content of this report includes:

° Environment
v Emission and wastes management
v Resources management
v Environmental impact

° Society

Product responsibility

Supply chain management
Corporate Integrity

Human Resource Management
Labour standards

Health and Safety
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OUR VISION AND MISSION

The Group continues to strive for efficiency, innovation
and proactivity, and its customer-oriented focus prioritises
quality. We leverage our advanced technology to maximise
our corporate performance, corporate values and
long-term returns to shareholders and society, and share
the achievement with our staff. We are committed to
making the container industry chain energy-efficient,
environmentally friendly and sustainable, and aim to
provide fast, convenient container logistics service
solutions, which gain widespread recognition and
contribute positively to society.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT
(TO DEFINE THE PROCESS OF
MATERIAL ASPECTS AND RESULTS)

We engaged an independent consultant to conduct
research with our internal stakeholders, and according
to the results, listed the issues that our stakeholders
considered having material effects to our sustainable
development.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
(TO IDENTIFY THE PROCESSES OF THE

FOLLOWING:

1) MAJOR STAKEHOLDERS;
2) ISSUES CONCERNING STAKEHOLDERS;

FENSHE
(RRHEMNA TEERE

1) TEHME

3) HOW TO ENABLE STAKEHOLDERS

TO PARTICIPATE)

The Group’s major stakeholders include customers,
employees, shareholders and investors, the government,
suppliers, and the community in which we operate. We
believe that the guidelines for stakeholder participation
are the basis for formulating a sustainable development

fietr -

strategy and are necessary for our long-term sustainable

development.
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The following table sets out our major stakeholders’ N&RMIIEZRHFMERMENFIE - UAREER

\

main concerns, as well as the communication channels & :

available:

Major stakeholders

Main concerns

Communication channels

Labour conditions; complaints;
promotion opportunities; corporate
integrity

Corporate culture

T HERI BELE
BEMGM : AT BIHEE  DEMIE
EL

FTERERA BxEE BBERE
Customers e Product quality, price and delivery date |-  Telephone/email
9= e Corporate financial performance Customer quality evaluation form
e  Corporate reputation and brand image |- Customer visit or factory review
e Market demand —  Industry exhibition
e EmmE - EREXERAH - EEE/EBTEM
o EEABIAN - EPmERER
e SEEBERMmEER - EP2BLImERZ
. ERE - TE¥R¥®
Employees e Salaries and welfare; educational Occupational health and safety training
BT training; occupational safety Regular meetings

Publications/notice boards in the offices
Suggestion boxes/mail boxes/email
Work performance evaluation
R R R 2 23

ML=/ SRR
ERAE/ 556/ BFEF

TERB %

Shareholders and investors

Corporate financial performance;

Annual and interim results announcement

emission reduction

Labour conditions; laws and regulations
compliance; economic contribution;
anti-corruption

RIBRA WA BRUREE
%%M%ﬁ EBRIOEREE  KEBEE

B REE

AR R EE dividends policy —  Annual report and interim report
e Corporate governance and integrity; |- Corporate website
risk management; laws and regulations | - &4 KR EIZEE N
compliance - FEREFHRE
o REBMBION : IREBUR - {REEL
o KETREWE  BRERE  EFENE
REEE
Government e Environmental pollution; production Government website
B safety; energy conservation and Official documents/meetings

Written reports/visits
Monitoring/inspection
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Major stakeholders

Main concerns

Communication channels

FTEERA BrE1E BBERE
Suppliers e Quality, price and delivery date of raw |-  Telephone/email
e materials - Site visits
e Corporate financial conditions — Suppliers’ annual audit
o EMKHRE - BREXEHH - BE/EFBMY
o SEEBMR - BH#ER
- HERFESEZ

Local community

e  Environmental pollution; construction of

— Participation in community activities

Eibit @ local facilities; community feedback —  Donation/sponsorship
o RISA MR HEMEEE - Z2HEHREEH
- BEED
ENVIRONMENT Rig

Emission and waste management

The Group attaches great importance to the
possible impact of container production on
the environment, and considers environmental
protection an important task during its production
and operating activities. The Group’s major
environmental impact mainly relates to energy and
waste generation. We are dedicated to following
these principles to minimise our impact on the
environment:

° Complying with all the laws, regulations
and other legal requirements relating to
environmental protection

° Ensuring the production facilities comply with
ISO 14001
° Ensuring there are sufficient investments

in environmentally friendly facilities and
practices, and that these operate safely and
effectively

° Reinforcing promotion of environmental
conservation and educational training, and
enhancing staff’s environmental awareness

° Incorporating environmental targets into our
business decisions
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We started implementing the ISO 14001
environmental management system in 2013
within the Group. Each of our factories, as well
as our management headquarters in Shanghai,
have obtained the accreditation in the ISO
14001 environmental management standards
since October 2014. The establishment of the
environmental management system has improved
environmental management standards in our
factories by laying down a solid management
foundation that focuses on energy conservation
and emission reduction, and on achieving our
sustainable development objectives.

1. Waste gas emissions

Applying coating to containers is an important
process in container manufacturing, and
the volatile organic compounds (VOCs)
contained in coating raw materials is an air
pollutant. The governance of industrial waste
gas containing VOCs is therefore the focus of
major environmental work and control in the
container manufacturing industry.

The Group has always placed great
emphasis on the control and governance
of organic waste gas generated during
the production process. It has a separate,
confined area for its coating operations.
In addition, each plant has special waste
gas environmental treatment facilities — the
industrial waste gas generated during the
production process is collected and sent
to the environmental treatment facilities for
treatment to ensure that waste gas emissions
meet emission standards in the national
and local environmental departments. The
Group’s Technology & Development Centre
has set up a project resource management
team, which is responsible for managing the
environmental affairs of the Group. Each plant
also has a “Health, Safety and Environmental
department”, a special environmental equipment
management team and a comprehensive
environmental management system, to
ensure the environmental treatment facilities
at each plant operate safely, effectively and
systematically.
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At the same time, the Group continually
explores alternative ways to reduce the
impact of corporate production activities on
the environment. The Group’s Qingdao and
Xiamen plants have invested and worked
with professional organic solvent recycling
institutions to construct and install organic
solvent recycling systems for the coating
lines to replace the original waste gas
treatment facilities. These systems were
put into trial operation in 2015. The organic
solvent recycling systems can effectively
filter and absorb the organic compounds in
industrial waste gas and turn them into liquid
for reuse, which is a more environmentally
friendly option. The trial operation at the
two plants has produced satisfactory waste
gas management and solvent recycling
results. The reuse of organic solvents in
industrial waste gas not only reduces VOC
emissions and protects the environment,
but it also improves the use of resources by
reusing recycled solvents. This type of waste
gas management has environmental and
economic benefits.
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The organic solvent
recycling system in
Qingdao plant
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The implementation of the newly amended
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric
Pollution” on 1 January 2016, aimed to
improve the atmospheric environmental
quality and put forward new requirements for
enterprises’ environmental protection work.
To comply with the new requirements, the
Group is actively exploring and testing the
use of water-based paint, is implementing
the “Replace oil-based paint with water-
based paint” (ZB#EK) activity which is
organised by the industry association in
form of convention, and is putting funds to
upgrade and renovate the coating lines in
every plant. In this way, it aims to transform
the corporate environmental governance from
“end terminal” to “source control”.

Waste water and waste management

All of the Group’s factories are equipped
with special sewage treatment pools, and
industrial waste water is directed to the
production lines for reuse after being treated
in the sewage treatment system. Reusing
industrial waste water not only greatly
reduces the use of water, but also fulfils our
goal of “zero waste water emissions” in the
production process.

For waste treatment, a garbage classification
system is in place to sort production
waste. Each factory carries out stringent
management and disposal of hazardous
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waste in accordance with national laws and
regulations, and every plant has a hazardous
waste storage location which fulfils conditions
regarding the storage of hazardous waste.
The Group has established a comprehensive
hazardous waste management system and
corresponding emergency plan, which are
managed by professional hazardous waste
management staff. The Group also works
with institutions which are qualified to dispose
of hazardous waste.

Long-term goal: As an environmentally responsible
enterprise, the Group will focus on industrial
development and social responsibility, implement
sustainable development strategies, and strive to
reduce VOC emissions.

Resource management

1.

Energy management

Energy conservation and emission reduction,
advocating green operation:

Global warming is one of the biggest
environmental challenges we are facing
today. All enterprises should be responsible
for reducing greenhouse gas emissions
and protecting the environment. The
Group adheres to the concept of “energy
conservation and emission reduction leads
to green production” and continuously
introduces the elite management concept.
We leverage such measures in technology
re-engineering and innovation to continue
escalating enterprise energy management
standards, improving production efficiency
and reducing energy consumption.
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Most of the energy consumed during
production is electric power, as well as
some diesel oil. We aim to improve our
energy utilisation rate to achieve low-carbon
practices and emission reduction throughout
our production and operation, and strive to
save electricity and develop renewable energy.
Most of our factories are equipped with
high-density lighting boards to increase
natural daylight in workshops and reduce
electricity consumption from lighting during
the day. In addition, to supplement its energy
supply, the Qidong plant has installed solar
panels on its roof to generate clean energy,
reducing the consumption of traditional
energy to a certain extent.

At the same time, the Group actively
implements the “green office” concept and
strives to reduce office energy consumption.
It also vigorously promotes a paperless office
and encourages staff to reduce electricity and
water usage in their daily work to create a
green office.

2.  Water resource management

The Group has a strong focus on the
water conservation, and therefore tries
to prevent water pollution that can result
from production and operation processes.
It promotes sewage treatment and reuse,
S0 as to reduce the amount of water used
and ensure water is used sustainably. Our
factories build their own sewage treatment
pools to handle sewage generated by
production lines. After treatment, the sewage
is redirected into production lines to enable
industrial sewage from factories to reach the
“zero emission” standard.

Long-term goal: In the future, the Group will
actively promote a low-carbon economy and
sustainable development, and will be increasingly
socially responsible. Through our ongoing efforts,
the Group will achieve its goal of reducing the usage
of electricity and cutting carbon emissions.

AEEEEMBANEREZR
B - Ao RERmEOm o B
HEREEBETHNANESRE
REOFIRR - BIREFORYF - &6
WME  RABNABLEERS
BiF - KA IHH LR EHER
KR - IBINEBRE B AR B
BRERAER o LLsh - SR
R A AR = LR A A
RREBRELBZEER  FAL
REEIREL BRI - E—ERE

ERA T HHERERLAVHRE ©

RS SEERERGERTIE
RRER - BHRERTIEER
A - ANHTHIEEAML
HEETIRBEEIETEHORE
KK EEFERAE -

2. KERER

REERRIBEIMBRKERRK
& BRLEERZEREPEHK
TREDS R - HEE))SKEIEMAER
/8 - HMARAKE » RERKE
RAIFHERIAR - AN THE S
B2 /KERIE M AR IR A EAR
PTEEMISK » BT 57KERIE
REDHEMRALERER -
IAZEEL [ THEDL] 7K -

REBR | RRAEESEEHETTENR
REED - RIFAIRERRES X
BRETHEEE - AEERBEE TG
Eh - RERRDHEE KBEREE N
EMAR -



BRMEREEERRAR » —FT—

hFEFR 97

Environmental, Social and Governance Report &35 - @R ERRE

Environmental impact

Although advancements in manufacturing have
brought unprecedented prosperity to society,
it has also had a serious impact on the natural
environment. In today’s modern society, protecting
nature and the environment has become an
inescapable social responsibility for every enterprise.
As a socially responsible enterprise, we constantly
look for ways to maximise benefits with minimal
resource consumption and environmental impact,
and continue to strive for sustainable development.

With respect to minimising the environmental
impact, we mainly focus on the treatment and
emission reduction of VOCs. In addition to changing
the coating process and transforming corporate
environmental governance, we also proactively
participate in effective emission reduction through
“source control”.

As water-based paint for coatings is water-soluble
(does not include volatile organic solvents), it is
an ideal method for addressing the pollution that
comes from traditional spray-painting. Due to
limitations in technology, performance and costs,
water-based paint is still in the experimental stage.
We are proactively involved in experimenting
with and promoting water-based paint. Since it
was established, our largest production base, in
Qidong, has equipped the facilities which are able
to produce containers using water-based paint.
Through reinvestment in their production facilities,
the production lines in some of our other factories
are also able to produce containers using water-
based paint. The remaining factories are preparing
to upgrade their coating production lines.
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Over the next one to two years, we plan to invest a
large amount of capital into transforming the coating
lines of every factory into production lines which
mass-produce water-based paint containers. At the
same time, we work closely with our customers and
paint suppliers, and test batches of water-based
paint containers produced at each of our factories.
By identifying the characteristics and improvement
measures of water-based paint application, and
using the experience we have gained in the
water-based paint container production process, we
have a solid foundation to comprehensively market
water-based paint containers in the future.

On the other hand, by actively participating in the
VOC governance action of the container industry
as well as implementing and suggesting the signing
of the “China Container Industry Association VOCs
Governance Self-Discipline Convention” ((# &
SEMITEHEVOCSBIEBR LK) with the
China Container Industry Association and other
counterparts, we hope to gradually achieve the
“Prohibition of the solvent borne, Promotion of the
waterborne” (Z£J@#7K) vision in the whole industry,
and fully adopt water-based paint to minimise the
impact of industrial production on the environment.
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In terms of natural resources, wood flooring is
one of the major raw materials used in containers.
Traditional flooring often uses tropical hardwood,
which has a long growing period and consumes
a substantial volume of valuable hardwood forest
resources. In recent years, as container customers
have become increasingly environmentally aware,
more and more of them choose to use containers
with bamboo flooring or OSB flooring (oriented
strand board). Bamboo is the main raw material for
bamboo flooring — bamboo resources are abundant,
it only requires a short growing period, whereas the
main raw material of OSB flooring is cultivated from
fast-growing forests. Such flooring is considered
eco-friendly as it reduces the consumption of
tropical hardwood resources. Singamas Group will
increasingly purchase and use bamboo flooring and
OSB flooring. We will also manufacture containers
with steel flooring for some customers, thereby
taking responsibility for protecting natural resources
together with our customers.
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SOCIETY

Product responsibility

1.

Product quality management

Quality is an important ongoing topic for
enterprises. We prioritise quality, continue to
improve quality management standards, and
strive to provide high-quality, safe container
products and services for customers. As
we continue to focus on building a quality
management system and integrating it
with our development strategies, we are
gradually implementing the ISO 9001
quality management system into our
factories. Each of our factories, including
our management headquarters in Shanghai,
have been fully certified in the ISO 9001
quality management system since October
2014. The actual quality management
operation results are strengthened through
sound organisation, clear authority and
responsibility, and standardised operation.
While the focus remains on our customer
and quality management, we continue to
enhance the quality of products, including
having the Quality Assurance department
inspect raw material purchases and product
delivery; and having factory-based inspectors
and representatives from the Classification
Society conduct stringent checks at every
level in order to fully ensure the safety of our
products.

Product safety

Our factories value product safety. In this
regard, they have established a raw materials
storage inspection system; and perform
ad hoc inspections of important materials
including steel plates, corner castings,
flooring and accessories, and deliver the
raw materials to the materials laboratory
of our Technology & Development Centre
for examination in order to safeguard the
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quality and safety of the materials. In terms of
production, the factories recruit well-trained
production workers with a strong focus on
product quality and safety, and a systemic
and standardised product quality control
system, which helps ensure product quality
and safety.

Intellectual property

Our legal department is in charge of
protecting our intellectual property. In addition
to highlighting and protecting intellectual
property and ensuring we respect the
intellectual property of others, we protect the
fair competition environment, and comply
with industry standards and criteria. Through
intellectual property training, we enhance our
staff's awareness of intellectual property, and
establish the concepts of innovation, integrity
and protection of intellectual property.

Customer relationship management
Customer satisfaction is the foundation of an
enterprise’s survival, and we continuously try to
improve on this. We have a customer-oriented
focus and strive to provide quality products
and services by continuously hearing what our
customers are looking for. We collect quality
and service appraisals relating to each batch of
our manufactured products from customers’
factory-based inspectors, which are used as
important references in our constant efforts to
improve product quality and promote customer
satisfaction. We are always trying to improve,
and address complaints or feedback quickly to
resolve any issues. In addition to established
Marketing departments, each factory has set up
a Customer Services department to maintain
ongoing communication with customers and
ensure we can provide excellent service.

We put great emphasis on protecting
customer privacy, and implement stringent
internal management for marketing activities
to safeguard customer information security.
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Supply chain management

1.

Our supply chain

The major raw materials for manufacturing
containers are classified into four types: steel,
flooring, paints and container accessories.
Of these, steel accounts for over 50 percent
of material costs, and is the most important
raw material in the container manufacturing
industry. At present, the majority of container
manufacturing materials are purchased
domestically. The steel suppliers are
large-scale domestic steel factories, including
Shougang (&#fl), Ansteel (¥if), BX Steel
(A<3H), WISCO, BAOSTEEL, and Guangxi
Liuzhou Iron and Steel (#I3), while other
material suppliers are mainly located in
Eastern and Southern China.

Supply chain management policy

The Group has adopted a centralised
procurement method in terms of major
container manufacturing materials, and has
set up a central procurement centre at the
management headquarters in Shanghai.
The centre is in charge of the standardised
procurement of steel, flooring, paints and
important container accessories, and
manages sourcing for our supply chain and
factories. As the second largest container
manufacturing corporation in the world, we
need reliable suppliers that provide quality
products and services. To enhance supply
chain management, we have formulated
management systems such as “Supplier
Access Requirements” (({LFEREAR
JE)), “Standard Management Process for
Suppliers” ((LEFMELEERRIE)) and
“Procurement Management Method” (($#
BEEIIEL)), and regulate the supplier
selection process to systematically evaluate
and screen new suppliers. This enables top-
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notch suppliers to enter our supply system
and become our qualified suppliers, thereby
facilitating our stable development. According
to our “Standard Operating Procedure” and
quality management system relating to the
supplier management process, we carefully
manage and select qualified suppliers and
carry out regular evaluations to safeguard
the quality of our materials and to ensure
our product delivery times, establishing a
foundation for providing quality products to
our customers.

Customers are becoming more concerned
about environmental issues, and stress the
importance of using environmentally friendly
materials including water-based paint,
water-based sealing glue and bamboo
flooring. We will continue to communicate
these demands to our suppliers, strengthen
our cooperation with suppliers regarding
their ability to deliver environmentally friendly
materials, coordinate with them in product
trials, and work with them to produce “green”
containers.

Corporate integrity

Anti-corruption policy

As corruption is detrimental to fair competition and
corporate integrity, anti-corruption has become one
of the main corporate business ethics principles for
many of the world’s premier enterprises. “Honest
and pragmatic” is not only the core of our corporate
culture, but is also our biggest corporate social
responsibility. We advocate honest operation and
fair competition, and require that our staff comply
with the national laws and regulations, as well as
the Group’s regulations and systems. To promote
compliance in the workplace, we also focus on anti-
corruption and anti-bribery principles for staff.
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As part of our unremitting efforts to make anti-
corruption an important corporate management
activity, we set up whistleblowing channels to help
prevent irregularities. All staff must comply with the
Group’s business code of conduct, which aims to
prevent corruption from a system perspective. We
also continue to improve our internal control and
monitoring system, and improve the independence
of the Finance department. Each factory’s Finance
department reports directly to the Group’s finance
headquarters, which monitors operating decisions
and business conduct of each factory through
internal controls and regular audits. If problems are
identified, we take immediate action, and have a
zero tolerance approach to corruption in order to
prevent irregularities.

Human resources management

1.

Improving and protecting staff rights
The Group has more than 9,000 staff
members. The Group and its members are
obliged to strictly comply with the relevant
national laws and regulations, including the
“Labour Law” (&5 ®))%)), “Labour Contract
Law” (& &)& [R%E)) and “Social Insurance
Law” (L &1RERIED). A few factories have
already accepted the services provided by
external human resources solutions provider,
and the Group has implemented the same
welfare benefits for both contract workers
and full-time workers employed by the
service providers to safeguard workers’ legal
interests and pay them full salaries on time.

As container production requires a large
number of skilled workers, a stable staff
team is vital for ensuring consistent product
quality. The Group has established an internal
communication and exchange platform
where staff can communicate through a
general manager mailbox, and reasonable
suggestions put forward by staff are adopted
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in order to enhance cohesion. The Group put
a lot of effort into establishing harmonious
labour relationships, and hold regular
recreational and sports activities for staff to
enrich their work-life balance, enhance their
sense of belonging and create a positive
environment to help ensure the stable
development of the Group.

Intensifying staff training efforts and
expanding the staff development
platform

The Group continues to intensify its efforts
to promote staff training programmes, and
each member company integrates internal
training with external training to enhance
management and technical training. This
helps provide the necessary protection for
talent reserves for corporate development.
We provide staff with a wide range of training,
including skills, safety, management and
development training.
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V.

VL.

Labour standards

1.  No child labour

The Group strictly complies with International
Labour Standards and the government’s
“Provision on the Prohibition of Using Child
Labor” KR IEFAEZETRE)). In terms
of recruitment, we strictly prohibit the
employment of minors under 16 years old.
During recruitment, we stringently review
and verify the authenticity of identity card
information to avoid employing child labour
that can result from forged identity card
information.

2. No forced labour

The Group firmly eradicates any forced
labour, employment discrimination and
occupational discrimination, and strives to
establish harmonious labour relationships.
We protect the rights of staff in terms of
providing rest and leave days according to
relevant government laws and regulations.
We arrange for staff to work overtime on
a voluntary basis based on the number
of orders we receive, and overtime and
holiday pay are implemented according to
national policies and our salary systems. The
Group fully respects our staff’'s freedom of
employment, and will never hold on to staff’s
identification documents or collect deposits
during the employment period. There is no
forced labour in any of our factories.

Health and safety

Health and safety management

As a manufacturing enterprise, Singamas Group
always places great emphasis on occupational
health and safety protection for staff. We firmly
adhere to the principle of “safety first and prioritise
prevention”. We strictly comply with the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety”
(hEARLMBEL 2 AEE)) and other relevant
laws and regulations. Through the establishment
of a specialised department at management
headquarters in Shanghai, a work safety committee
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and the work safety management department — the
Health, Safety and Environment department (HSE) —
each of our factories holds regular health and safety
meetings to study and resolve safety production
problems, and periodically organises projects to
eliminate hidden dangers. All levels of the Group
have signed a safety production accountability
certificate whereby they have committed to
prioritising safety and have assumed responsibility
for safety during production. For outsourcing
reconstruction projects, we have signed a safety
accountability letter with external units to ensure
construction safety.

To further improve staff awareness regarding
safety in the production process, we carry out
“Work Safety Month” activities in every factory. The
Group carries out safety management training for
production management staff and further promotes
the standardised management of corporate safety
production. The Group carries out three basic
levels of safety education for new staff, and requires
that special operation personnel have a “valid job
certificate” (75 L &) for special assignments.

The Group cares about our staff's safety, health
and working environment, and provides regular
medical check-ups for them. At the same time, we
continuously improve our workshop sites to reduce
workload intensity for frontline staff and improve
the working environment. To prevent occupational
injuries and diseases, every factory provides high-
quality, relevant worker protection gear, and closely
monitors that staff use these items correctly.

CONCLUSION

We only have one earth — enterprises therefore have
a social responsibility to protect the environment and
treasure our resources. By integrating social responsibility
into corporate development, the Group will continue
striving for pollution governance, energy conservation
and consumption reduction, as well as effective use of
resource. We continuously make capital investments to
replace, reconstruct and upgrade plants and equipment,
strictly comply with environmental laws and regulations,
and endeavour to transform the plants into environmental
friendly green plants, facilitating our sustainable
development and helping us achieve a harmonious
relationship with nature.
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Deloitte.
=

TO THE MEMBERS OF SINGAMAS
CONTAINER HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 110 to 258, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
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our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2015, and of its financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

17 March 2016
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GeBEakEtEZEEER

For the Year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+=-H=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —T-|mF
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Hiat FEx T=r
Revenue R 7 1,126,414 1,546,483
Other income HAA 4,802 902
Changes in inventories of BUR o A B m Y
finished goods and FEEE)
work in progress 24,287
Raw materials and RV BRI
consumables used (1,202,475)
Staff costs BB (139,753)
Depreciation and IE R
amortisation expense (26,611)
Exchange gain B 5 s 5,787
Other expenses Hiv & (143,596)
Finance costs B ER 9 (13,802)
Investment income BREBA 10 4,704
Change in fair value of derivative TESmIAY
financial instruments AREEES 37 239
Reclassification of fair value loss WIEE BRI T AR
of derivative financial fTESMTAY
instruments designated as NABEEBE
hedging instruments from ¥R E
hedge reserve ENEEH (3,071)
Share of results of associates FEIEEEE A B 2 518 (72)
Share of results of joint ventures EIERERHEY
= (E18) (498)
Profit before taxation BRBE AR R 11 52,524
Income tax expense PSR R 14 (19,624)
(Loss) profit for the year FEE (B8) =7 32,900
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 4R EHE R Htt2EKER
For the Year ended 31 December 2015 {2 —E—aF+—-H=+—HIFFE

2015 2014
—E-4F —E-lEF
Notes US$’'000 US$'000
Hiat TEx F=r
Other comprehensive Ht2E>%H
expense
Items that may be HAZES ZE=MEE -
subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising #EINEFTE =48
on translation (10,387) (278)
Fair value adjustments on WIEERREREL AL
forward contracts RHAONARBEAR
designated as cash
flow hedges (3,071)
Reclassification of fair value 2 BEEE
loss from hedge HEAREENEER
reserve to profit or loss 3,071

Other comprehensive FRHEMZEXH
expense for the year (10,387) (278)

Total comprehensive FRE2ME (W) WEHEE

(expense) income for
the year (11,739) 32,622

(Loss) profit for the year ~ NEE (L (B518) &7
attributable to:

Owners of the Company AARRE (2,723) 28,021
Non-controlling interests FEIER AR R i = 1,371 4,879

(1,352) 32,900

Total comprehensive EE2E () a8

(expense) income

attributable to:
Owners of the Company RATIRE (12,770) 27,787
Non-controlling interests FEFERR AR R 2 1,031 4,835

(11,739) 32,622

(Loss) earnings per share & (&5#8) ZF
Basic %N 16 US(RRINSESIN  US1.16 cents 1l

Diluted i3 16 SRR AESI M  US1.16 cents il

E N 0 R e —
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As at 31 December 2016 R—F—AF+_-HA=+—H

Notes
HiaE

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y5 - AR AR 17
Goodwil Bk 18
Interests in associates B R )2 B 19
Interests in joint ventures REBRFEEm 20
Available-for-sale investment AHEECRE 21
Amounts due from joint ventures fEW A EERIA 29
Amount due from an associate JE KBS & X B kIR 30
Derivative financial instruments PTEemIT A 37
Prepaid lease payments FE R ERE 22
Deposits for non-current assets EMEBEELRS 23
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 24
Trade receivables JE W BR R 25
Prepayments and other receivables  Faf & E fib & 1451%’\15 26
Amount due from immediate holding FEW & 1ML A B

company 27
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries & [E XMW B A 28
Amounts due from joint ventures fEWE ﬁm%m 29
Amounts due from associates JE Ui B 8 N B kIR 30
Tax recoverable A e 2 #5418
Prepaid lease payments TN HEENRIE 22
Bank balances and cash RITESHREIRE 317

2015
—E—-HF
Us$’000
FEx

359,855
6,246
43,983
22,391
6,608
6,006
10,000
64,473
22,364

541,926

157,207
146,765
41,910

44
31,006
1,070
534
1,335
1,517
242,726

624,114

2014
—T—-mE
US$'000
T

361,966
6,246
43,265
23,445
6,608
6,667

239
55,904
9,801

514,141

232,913
248,718
139,261

42,452
1,507
347
1,309
249,793

916,300
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4 & B34k R &
As at 31 December 2015 R —FE—AHF+ - A=+—H

2015 2014
—EBE-RHF Z—ZENF
Notes US$’000 US$’000
HiaE FEx FET
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FETER X 32 85,108 204,495
Bills payable EANEET 33 22,755 84,879
Accruals and other payables EETERAREMERNERR 34 81,554 75,712
Amount due to immediate holding & B & #E A A B8
company 27 16 )
Amounts due to associates JE (Tt & 2 B kIR 26 132 58
Amounts due to joint ventures JERTE B HERIE 35 46 43
Tax payable FERIBETE 5,538 5,836
Bank borrowings RITEN 36 70,000 62,564
265,149 433,592
Net current assets REEEFE 358,965 482,708
Total assets less current liabilities EEZALERRE & & 900,891 996,849
Capital and reserves BEARR#HE
Share capital f& AN 38 268,149 268,149
Accumulated profits EE gl 282,846 302,035
Other reserves H 1 44,287 47,446
Equity attributable to RAFIIRRIEIL =
owners of the Company 595,282 617,630
Non-controlling interests FEIE R AR R R A 52,379 54,803

Total equity R 647,661 672,433

E N 0 R e —
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As at 31 December 20156 R-FE—AHF+-A=4+—H

2015 2014

—E-HF —TMNF

Notes US$’000 US$’000
Bt FEx FETT

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings |ITENK
Derivative financial instruments PTEERT A
Deferred tax liabilities FEEIBEAE

36 245,000 315,000
37 20 =
40 8,210 9,416

253,230 324,416

900,891 996,849

The consolidated financial statements on pages 110 to
258 were approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 17 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf
by:

Teo Siong Seng R E
Director %

FHRE 11 Ei%zessﬁzi?éw@&%%i%%
4 ﬁé —NE= H+ta¢tt/ﬁ&w2££ﬂ
gl J%%Tﬁﬁ

Teo Tiou Seng RIEHE
Director 2%
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GEREmEER

For the Year ended 31 December 2015 # %2 —F—h#F1+ - H=+—HIFZ

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRIRRER
Exchange Non-
translation controlling
Share Share reserve General Development Revaluation Share option Hedge Other Accumulated interests
capital  premium  HERE  reseve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve profits Total  FERRR Total

B EhiEd E -REE  REERE EGERE RREGR MARE  ReRE  20M 48 i 48
US§000  USSO00  USSOO0  USBOOD  USSO00  USBOOD  USS000  USSO00  USSO00  USSOO0  USSO00  USSO00  USSO00

L TAn TR TR TR TRv TR TR TRt TR TRr TEn TR

(Note)
(Hi3k)
At1 January 2014 R-E-ME-A-H 31,18 236,964 9,608 24,760 6,643 1,361 3420 - (3,626) 287,948 598,263 55,970 654,233
Proft for the year REFEF - - - - - - - - - B0 28,021 4879 32000
Exchange differences BENEREER
arising on translation = = (234 = = = = = = = (234 (44) (218
Fairvalue adustmentson ~ HiEEARS 25
forward contracts LEBENNAL
designated as EERE
cash flow hedges - - - - - - - 8071 - - (8,071) - 8,071)
Reclassfication of fairvalue A% EfEE Bk
Joss from hedge REENZER
reserve to profit or loss - - - - - - - 3071 - - 3,071 - 3071
Total comprehensive income A5 2 A& 4%
for the year - - (234) - - - - - - 28,021 21,781 4,835 32,622

Transfer upon aboliton of & (53T 2

par valug under FARARN

the new Hong Kong RRARAE{ER

Companies Ordinance HROEESE 26964 (236.964) - - - - = = = - - - -
Share repurchase OIELS - - - - - - - - - (327) (327) - (327)
Transfer fom share opion R TR 88t

resenetoaccumuiated  EZiHiAlZ

profits for opton forfeited B RAEERRE - - - - - - (53) - - 5 - - -
Acquisiton of addtional ~~ EEHBAFZ

Mlestnsubsidaries  IRIEER . . . - - - - - 56) - 0% (dey @)
Dividend paid to BRFEERER

non-controling interests ~ ERRE - - - - - - - - - - - (1,518 (1,518
Dividend paid to the owners - XRARTRERE

of the Company - - - - - - - - - (7,807) (7,807) - (7.807)
Transfer fomaccumulated B E

profits - - - 5,501 352 - - - - (5,853 - - -
At 31 December 2014 RZF-ME

T-AZT-H 268149 - 9,374 30,261 6,995 1,361 3,367 - 8912 302,085 617,630 54,808 672,433

(Loss) profitfortheyear A& (51R) A - - - - - - - - - 2729 272 1371 (1,352
Exchange differences HENENEEE

arising on translation - - (10,047) - - - - - - - (10,047) (340) (10,387)

Total comprehensive AEE2E(T)

(expense) income hsiE

forte year - - (00 - - - - - -y (2 108 (1739
Share repurchase Ry EEE - - - - - - - - - (224) (224 - (224)
Dividend paid to BREZANE

non-controling interests ~ BRRE - - - - - - - - - - - (3,455) (3,455)
Dividend paid to the owners AR FRRRE

of the Company - - - - - - - - - (9,354) (9,354) - (9,354)
Transfer fom accumulated B 5 257

rofts - - - BB 13% - - - -6 - - -

At31December 2015 ~ R=Z-EZF
TZA=t-A 268,149 - (673) 35,754 8,390 1,361 3,367 - (3912 282,846 595,262 52,379 647,661

T
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity SR & X S B XK
For the Year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—A%F+—-H=+—HIFFZF

Note:

In 2009, at the time of the acquisition of additional 20% equity interests
of Hui Zhou Pacific Container Co., Ltd. and Ningbo Pacific Container
Co., Ltd., the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
these subsidiaries continued to be carried at their book values in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The excess of the fair
value and the book value of the net assets attributable to the additional
interests acquired, amounted to US$3,193,000, had been recognised as
other reserve in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”) (other than Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) applicable to the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries, these entities have to provide for the PRC
statutory reserves before declaring dividends to their shareholders as
approved by the board of directors. The reserves, which include general
reserve and development reserve, are not distributable until the end
of the operation periods of the respective entities, at which time any
remaining balance of the reserves can be distributed to shareholders
upon liquidation of the subsidiaries. The general reserve can be used
to offset accumulated losses of the entities. The general reserve and
development reserve can be used to increase capital upon approval from
the PRC'’s relevant authority. The distributable profits of the subsidiaries
are determined based on their accumulated profits calculated in
accordance with the PRC accounting rules and regulations.

Mt

R-FFNF  BEREBNAFEEERALFRELLF
EWBARLA20%.2 BIMER BT - ZFHE L 7l 7 #%
FIBE - BIERIKE EEERG S BRI R REE
ASR o RS Em FEEZ A A EERIREEAZER
3,193,000 FETT R & mn BBV K .2 B ML FE 1 FET ©

RIFEARAE BRI EA KNG ([HE ) (FE
MFPIR 68500 2 BB R Bl P ELZ D) - I & 2 AT
BEEMEREIREFIF BN T B0 ZE R - HET
B —MEBRERFEEZZ SN A2 S EFE R
GTE R o HEZESHE L AVEERET - #F T 2 @ 5 AR
BARIT o —REEE A BIEHRZ S N2 ZEHER » —
ARGE R B (7 1 TEAS T B B BIHL /12 PTFREAE IR
A o BB 2 Az ADREFE SR ETF B & 5 TR RAER
H R Fat BEmEE °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTREREK

For the Year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+=-H=+—HIFZF

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
(Gain) loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on property, plant and
equipment written off
Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments

Allowance for doubtful debts

Investment income

Interest expense

Change in fair value of derivative
financial instruments

Reclassification of fair value loss

of derivative financial instruments

designated as hedging

instruments from hedge reserve
Exchange gain arising from

the notes

2015 2014
—E-RHE Z—ZE—F
Notes US$’000 US$’000
HaE FEx FExT
EETH
BR T A ) 52,524
A
e 25,179
HEMZE - WK
Btz Carl) BB 50
S - IR
B 124
PGB & A R) 2 E518 72
FiiEaERE S
Cal) Ea 498
B ERIE S
1,432
RIZIREME 28
KERA (4,704)
MEZH 11,632
PTEeBMIAY
AR EEES (239)
WiEEAEHITAN
PTHEEMITAY
AR EEEERE
BEESEER 3,071
EIRINESTE 5 F

(1,969)

=

O 0 0 B RN N —
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 48R E&FEBHREK
For the Year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —F—AF+ - A=+—HIFFZ

Notes

et

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Decrease (increase) in

trade receivables
Decrease (increase) in
prepayments and
other receivables
(Increase) decrease in amount
due from immediate
holding company
Increase in amount
due from associates
Decrease (increase) in
amount due from
joint ventures
Decrease in amount
due from fellow subsidiaries
(Decrease) increase in
trade payables
(Decrease) increase in
bills payable

EEESBBA
EXRETE
FE D (1)
REURBREAL > (200

B M E AR
IR (3B n)

W B AR A
(8 hm) Ak >

R 2 )
SRR

A ELE
KB (40)

R RHBAT
KO D

FERTRRFR OB ) SE 0

PR 4% Ot 4>) 38 00

Increase (decrease) in FEFTE A R HE MRS
accruals and other payables BRFRIE 00 O )
Cash from operations EEMEBHRS
Interest paid ERFLE
Income tax paid B FTERR
Net cash from operating activities ZE¥FZEFIEREFHE

2015
—E—-HF
US$’000
FEx

42,634

75,706

101,300

93,507

(44)

(52)

1,223

11,446

(112,603)

(59,552)
7,644
161,209
(9,234)
(12,779)

139,196

2014
—T—-mE
US$'000
T

87,702
(16,362)

(21,623)

(9,374)

24

(1,507)
6,232
60,082
21,541
(24,551)
102,164
(13,425)

(16,478)

72,261
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows s8R E&FEBHREK
For the Year ended 31 December 2015 42 —F—AF 1+ - A=+—HIFF/ZF

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Payment of prepaid lease payments

Deposits paid for non-current assets

Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Dividends received from associates
and joint ventures

Interest received

Dividend income from unlisted
equity investment

Loan to an associate

Additional capital injection in
associates

Additional capital injection of
available-for-sale investment

Loan to a joint venture

Acquisition of a joint venture

Acquisition of an associate

2015 2014
—E-RHE Z—ZE—F
Notes US$’000 US$’000
HiaE FEx FET
BEYE - M NEE
(37,325)
S TR EERIR -
EfERBEELRS 678)
HEME - R
JAEFTE 626
B E AR R
BETLERE 1,519
EHFIE 3,649
BYGEETES
WERE 748
LY —EEARIER -
HF%'Z\\ngM\/Eé
19 -
AHfHEZ
KERBINEE (4,994)
LY EELEERK (6,360)
WE—EED%E (13)
g /NG (38,470)

Net cash used in investing
activities

REFBFERSFE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 48R E&FEBHREK

For the Year ended 31 December 2015 # 2 —

FRE A=t ALEE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank loans
Repayment of bank loans
Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests
Dividends paid to owners
of the Company
Advance from immediate holding
company
Repayment to immediate holding
company
Advances from associates
Repayments to associates
Advances from joint ventures
Repayments to joint ventures
Payment of repurchase of shares
Repayment of note
Consideration paid for acquisition

of additional interest in a subsidiary A%~ & Bk

2015
—E-hF
Notes US$’000
HiaE FEx
RMEEE
RITHER
EERITER
BT IEERRAR R
IS
SRARRIRERE

EABRIEB A RFIA
BEERERARA

(EPN: VNCIF /O]
EEH SN RFIB
BAGEDERE
EESEDLEINIEA
AR =
EERE
BB ARER

Net cash used in financing RMETEMERSTFH

activities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE)IN BRE&RZREBEEZ

CASH AND CASH B Of4)

EQUIVALENTS 1,021
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—HzHBER

AT 1 JANUARY EERE 249,793
Effect of foreign exchange RS E) o 2

rate changes (8,088)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=—A=+—H%=2

AT 31 DECEMBER BEeERERRE 242,726
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HRE&RZREHRLIER :

REPRESENTED BY:
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR KR 242,726

2014
—T—-mE
US$'000
T

272,320
(80,827)

(1,518)
(7,807)
314
(321)

726
(936)

281
(337)
(327)
(224,380)

(4,770)

(47,582)

(56,619)

306,640

(228)

249,793

249,793
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Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL

The Company is a listed public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding company
is PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“PIL Holdings”) and its
immediate holding company is Pacific International
Lines (Private) Limited (“PIL”). Both companies are
incorporated in the Republic of Singapore. The
addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the section of corporate information of the annual
report. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in United States dollars (“US$”), which
is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses
of manufacturing of containers and other related
products and providing logistics services.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Bengfit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

B 5 ¥ R B

— & R
RARE—EREBRITE ETHZE
RAa  HRHEBBHEXIMER
AR([BRAT]) £ E&EEZERA
8 R E#EER A E 9 5 A&PIL Holdings
Pte. Ltd. ([PIL Holdings|) & A F
ERAR(TAKFEMIE]) - MRAFITA
RAFT I R FIBAK . 2 AR o N ARRE
=it &+ 2 & FE BN AR F
RNE|ER—EPHE - KEGEVBHRE
ThAEBIHE(E ([ 37T )) BEA - TR
NAEIZREE -

AREBTREEBERRME R EMAH
7 fn MER DR ARIS 15 ©

AR REETNERIME
ﬁ%ﬁ%@ﬁ%%%ﬁ%ﬁ
gl

WA - AEERRANLThESS
ST AR 2 SIS 5T BB s
8 -

B GER EREEFIFE -
E195RMIBE] ESHH
BB KRS BRI ER
HIER] —E-ZFF
—E——FHE
B R
B BEREER BB BHEER
HER] —F——FF
—E-CFEH
B EER

RAE RN ST E B USRS
R SR A e B AN (2 B
RRABRR/ IR R RE L B
BEREALE -

R 8 K s — T .
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf ¥R &R HisE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

B2 H R LIETNE BT
WEER ([ FBMEREE
UNNIE )

© 78 HE 1] R A 3% H9 3 3l 7T R A
BT NERYBEREER

AREBW RIFATRA AT S B HERRK
R SR HIR] RARIERT B BRI 3RS

not yet effective.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisition of
Interests in Joint Operations'
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative'
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation'
Amendments to HKAS16 Agriculture: Bearer Plant'
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities:
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Applying the Consolidation
Exception'
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle'

g -

BB REER SHITA?
EeL

AU REER EEREE?
F145

BAIBEREER KEEFEA8Ma?
E155

BAMBEEER WS EXFRRH
E11RMEE] BiEE

A EER THHRE
F1RMIERT

AL HAERZHITER
F16%E % B AR
ey Rl
£ 38 RAMIBE]

BAerEd BE  LENEY
165N
Rl
FHRMERT

BT REER REEREHER A
F10% R B EPEE
o=l BENHEIRA
F 28I

BRI REER REEE - EAAH
F10% - BENHK HIBIMER

LEBE12HR

BHESEAIZ 8%
MIEE]

BT REER BB R
MIEE] —E——FZF

—FEEE
B EEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} 3 M &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018, with earlier application permitted.

3 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements
beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date

to be determined.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new
requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently
amended in 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and further amended in
2013 to include the new requirements for general
hedge accounting. Another revision version of
HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include
(a) impairment requirements for financial assets
and (b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a
‘fair value through other comprehensive income’
(FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple
debt instruments.

R EH R LIETNE BT
WEER ([ BBV EREE
Bl 1))

© 28 75 M i oK A S A0 T B BT B AR

BTN E R BREER (7)

| RCFAE— A AREAEZ R
B - ARSI -

: REFN\F—A—ARRABRZ R
B - ARSI -

S REF-AFE—A—AAREBRNES
FREBI WL RRZ B BEHELH -

© RBETZ ARG EREE
Ao

EARAMKREERFIR L4
TA]

—ZETAFRMOE BN REEA
FEIRSIASREEZ D ERITENH
o BBMBMEERFEIFRNEE
E-EFEZEFRESHABEMK LR
RZNERFE  WE—FN_T—=
FEBETWIMA—REFSHHFE
o B—EAR T —MNFRM 2 EBY
HREERFE IR AEFTAEE A (9)
EHeREEZRERTE  RO)EE
LEEEFETASIADBERAERTES
[AAEBESAREMEEKRE | EHER
[E18ET °

R 0 U st RSN .
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2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as
follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.

B2 H R LIETNE BT
WEER ([ FBMEREE
UNNIE )

ERANBBREERNEIR 24
TH|#

BV BRREERF IR EEE KN
T

. BEGRTRERIEIRI LM TA -
R i E | BEINMADER
ZEMEERRBRBHKAL
NABEMNE  FHZERERR
RWEA KRR RBEAPT
HRANEBEBKRE  HAaRE
MER/ZNHAREERES KEF
B —REBRERNEFE
RIZEHEN A E - WEBRR
WEBEHRERIEESHEE
ZEBEAMFTANEF LA
ARARES R 18 A HE
HE/XNHAREERNE REF
EMBAERNERMEE  ARA
REEFFAREMEENKE - TE
HEBIRE RRARE DR
BRERNEHTFEERAAEE
FHE o AN REFEMBRE
QISR - BRI 31 B IR A2
REGRBERS) 2 i EE
FEEH A B EERBRR
Httzmbass  EREKRAR
B R o
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} 3 M &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of
the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit
or loss is presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial
assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected
credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred
credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.

R EH R LIETNE BT
WEER ([ BBV EREE
Bl 1))

EARAMBREERFIR L4
TH|#

HRE R A EBEFABENTE
BEZAE  BRMBHREER
FOHRBRMEMBENAAE
BEHEHNEERBRELZ(L
e HeRmEFAZIEHM
cEEET BRIFZEREE
Jee g 42 222 T A w2 0 LA 22 T M
FTELMZELHE RiBaBmAEl
BARETHEE - eHEELAE
BEEPMELINEREBEEER
SEBCEERITEENOER/E
@ o RIBEFBGFHERIZE 3957
E2RR AR BESABENE R
BREZAABEED AR

o

B

RERMEEMNREMNS @ BEB
SETERE R BERKIZEELER
EEBRRAFERR - BEM
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BABREEN S HE B KA
HEEERLEEBEERE
BAR - MRREERR B M5
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2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)

° The new general hedge accounting
requirements retain the three types of hedge
accounting. However, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting.
In addition, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle
of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also
no longer required. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a
material impact on amounts reported in respect of
the Group’s available-for-sale investment, which is
currently stated at cost less impairment and will be
measured at fair value at the end of subsequent
reporting periods, with changes in the fair value
being recognised in profit or loss. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group undertakes a
detailed review.

B2 H R LIETNE BT
WEER ([ FBMEREE
UNNIE )

EAMBREERFIR L4

TH|#

. T — e ERRE T =
TR MR ®E % o AT
HESEhEHREMNRZ FER
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NEBRETH AT ZIES R
HEMREREZRER - kN B
BRI B ARSI A [ 48 B AR
RAEK - b TEEBHE TS
MMEE MRS - W T A
B ERREEIONBES
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ARREZERERRERBE BB
HELERE R SHAEEN AT
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} 3 M &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which
establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations
in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance obligation

R EH R LIETNE BT
WEER ([ BBV EREE
Bl 1))

BRUMBREENEISR KL
BEF &/ |
FEMBRELEREISHENR TN
FLA®M  EFE-HE-—2EEREN
HEEBREREEPANMELN RS
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have
a material impact on the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed
review.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of other new and revised standards
or amendments will have significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements &1 %R & ki

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The provisions of the new CO (Cap 622) regarding
preparation of accounts and directors’ reports and
audits became effective for the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015. Further, the
disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules
regarding annual accounts have been amended
with reference to the new CO and to streamline
with HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation and
disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended
31 December 2015 have been changed to comply
with these new requirements. Comparative
information in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2014 are presented or disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements based on the new
requirements. Information previously required to
be disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing
Rules but not under the new CO or amended
Listing Rules are not disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
derivative financial instrument, which is measured at
fair value, as explained in the principal accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

EEETHHE

KRB BRERIIREHEBSFEIA
SRM BV HREEAFE - 1t
S ERE MBS MRINE B R AESF L
MAIREB R RED (T RBMEE ) &8
ZIERE ©

FRFHEDI (5 622% ) ERABRREEE &
EERERERIBNEEHAREEHE
—E-RE+-A=t—BItHKBFE
e AN - ETRBIFEE BFEER
BZHWBERTEEL2EHMDUEHIMIERT
WHE I BB B IR S ERIRERE — 5 o
At - HE2—_T—RF+-_A=1+—H
I BFEHFREMBEREAZERZS
MEBECTENANETHETRE - B
BEE—T-—NF+-_A=+—H1H
BREE 7 BRERBRBEFIRENLGE
MBMERANZI ST - BREBEAIQEE
Blsk R BIEN BT HEERER
NAMEBDI SIS ET LR B BARE
BR o ARG EVBREFEHER

==
g ©

BAMBREDRELRALEEY -
HATES BT ATVRA A EEE - 10
THIEERFHBERAL -

JE SR AR — SR AR IR IR BN E W) B AR5 By
FINREBZAAEE -

R 8 K s — T .



130

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf ¥R &R HisE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} 3 M &

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed
above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when
the Group obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gain control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income and expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (i) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and
liabilities or assets related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19
Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree
are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that
are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the
sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or, when applied on the basis specified
in another standard.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved
in stages, the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests
in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where such treatment would be
appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

Investments in associates and
joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities
of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of
the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or
a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate
or joint venture. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate or a joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
or joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate
or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint
venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied
to determine whether it is necessary to
recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s investment in an associate
or a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method from the date when the investment
ceases to be an associate or a joint venture,
or when the investment is classified as
held for sale. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKAS 39.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate or joint venture at the date
the equity method was discontinued, and
the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of a part interest
in the associate or joint venture is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be
required if that associate or joint venture had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity
method when an investment in an associate
becomes an investment in a joint venture
or an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such
changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership
interest in an associate or a joint venture
but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or
loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an
associate or a joint venture of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
business is carried at cost as established at
the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating
unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including
leasehold land (classified as finance leases)
and buildings and site improvements held for
use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes other
than construction in progress and freehold
land, are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is
recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress and freehold land
less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis. The estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Estimated
useful life
Leasehold land and buildings
and site improvements outside
Hong Kong
- on medium term lease 20 to 50 years

Buildings and site improvements
in Hong Kong
—on short lease

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fittings and
office equipment

Motor vehicles

110 10 years
5to 15 years

51to 10 years
5to 10 years
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Construction in progress is included in
property, plant and equipment in the course
of construction for production, supply, or
administrative purposes. The amortisation
of prepaid lease payments provided during
the construction period is included as part
of costs of building under construction.
Costs also include professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Construction in progress are carried
at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets with finite
useful lives other than goodwill to determine
whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost, comprises
direct materials, and where applicable, direct
labour, and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Costs of inventories are calculated using
weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated cost of
completion and costs necessary to make the
sales.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are
classified into one of the two
categories, including loans and
receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} 3 M &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of
allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, other receivables, amounts
due from immediate holding company,
fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are
not classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments. The Group designated
the unquoted equity investments as
available-for-sale financial assets.

For available-for-sale equity investments
that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Impairment loss on financial assets
Financial assets are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments,
a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

For financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or counterparty;

° breach of contract, such as
default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

° it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active
market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the amount of the impairment
loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost,
the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial
asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to
profit or loss. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at
amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Classification as debt or equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own
equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including bank
borrowings, trade payables, other
payables, bills payable, amounts
due to immediate holding company,
associates and joint ventures are
subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest
method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Continued)

Financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss

A financial liability is classified as held
for trading if:

° it has been incurred principally
for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term;

° on initial recognition it is a
part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the
Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not
designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial asset/liability at fair value
through profit or loss include held-for-
trading derivative financial instrument
that is not designated and effective as
hedging instrument. At the end of each
reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, financial asset/liability
at fair value through profit or loss is
measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

Derivative financial instrument
and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which
event the timing of the recognition in
profit or loss depends on the nature of
the hedge relationship.

Hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial
instruments (primarily foreign currency
forward contracts) as hedges of the
foreign currency risk in respect of
the notes issued. Such hedges are
designated and accounted for as cash
flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedging
relationship, the Group documents
the relationship between the hedging
instrument and hedged item, along
with its risk management objectives
and its strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. Furthermore, at
the inception of the hedge and on an
ongoing basis, the Group documents
whether the hedging instrument that is
used in a hedging relationship is highly
effective in offsetting changes in cash
flows of the hedged item.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} 3 M &

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

Derivative financial instrument
and hedging (Continued)

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes
in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualified as
cash flow hedges are recognised in
other comprehensive income and
accumulated in hedge reserve. The
gain or loss relation to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (hedge reserve)
are reclassified to profit or loss in the
periods when the hedged item is
recognised in profit or loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued
when the Group revokes the hedging
relationship, the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, or
exercised, or when it no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity
at that time remains in equity and is
recognised in profit or loss when the
hedged items affect profit or loss.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

Derivative financial instrument
and hedging (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a
contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance
with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values
and, if not designated as at FVTPL,
are subsequently measured at the
higher of: (i) the amount of obligation
under the contract, as determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the revenue
recognition policy.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} 3 M &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

Derivative financial instrument
and hedging (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial
asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset
expire.

On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial
liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligation are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts receivable for goods sold
or services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from manufacturing and
logistics operations

Revenue from manufacturing operations
is recognised either at the time when the
containers being delivered and title has
passed to customers or acceptance notes
being issued by customers; depending on
the terms of the underlying sales contracts
and all the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer
the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will
flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred
in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} 3 M &

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from manufacturing and
logistics operations (Continued)
Revenue from logistics services operations is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Deposits and instalments received from
customers prior to meeting the above criteria
for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
under current liabilities.

Dividend and interest income
Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ rights
to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income from a financial asset
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

@)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and
building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance or
an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} 3 M &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

@)

(k)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land for own use (Continued)
To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant
and equipment.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
“profit before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years, and it
further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interests in
associates and joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised to
profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each
group entity are presented in the currency
of the primary economic environment
in which the group entity operates (its
functional currency). For the purpose of
the consolidated financial statements, the
financial performance and position of each
entity are expressed in US$, which is the
functional currency of the Company, and the
presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (“foreign currencies”) are
recorded in the respective functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at
the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates
of transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising
on a monetary item that forms part of the
Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity and will be reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal of foreign operation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s foreign operations including
comparatives are expressed in US$ using
exchange rate prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses are
translated at monthly average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuated significantly during that year, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading
of the exchange translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e.
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss
of joint control over a joint arrangement that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition,
in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates or joint arrangements that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

(m)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on the
acquisitions of a foreign operation on or
after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the
exchange translation reserve.

Retirement benefit costs

In respect of the subsidiaries in the PRC,
the Group contributes to a state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. Contribution payable by
the Group to the schemes is charged to the
profit or loss when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group
contributed to defined contribution retirement
schemes which were available to certain
employees of Hong Kong. The assets of
these schemes are held separately and
managed by independent trustees. The
amount of the Group’s contributions, net of
any contributions forfeited in respect of those
employees who leave the schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, is charged to
the profit or loss as incurred when employees
have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

(n)

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group
operates and contributes to Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF”) schemes which are
available to all employees of Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees. Contribution payable by
the Group to the MPF scheme is charged
to the profit or loss when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

3 EEEEEX@®)

(m)

(n)

EBARBEAFEIMR 2
R-_EZTEF+_F—HR K
SEEREFBARARERILK
sl Ee ([BEe])
W AAEB2EEEREEFEIH
e BBEEERAEE A
ENFA THITAETE - EF
BIRFEAE AR BRI BUSHER
REEEARES 2 BTHREFT
A8z o

BERA
HAHE 2EABERERE
B MZzEEVAR -BERE

EA e E A TR EANEE

HEREL ZBERANEET A%
BENKARNEELEENEN
EREAMERANEE - AR
XAEREEXHMEEENRE
EREMEOREWA KB IER
DEBEREMEBERA

B EMIEERANIRNELFE
R N i AR 2



168

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf ¥R &R HisE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle
that obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined
by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss, such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share option
reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to employees
(Continued)

When the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share capital.
When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to accumulated profits.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the directors
of the Company are required to make estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

BEESITHE®)

(P) MUBRAKZ @)
UESEERUARRAXNRS
(%)
RELE B AIAE A 1E ()

BAEETER - BERERE
EHETPEIANBESERER
R o EEAENEEE BRI
SR fEm B ARETEE - BlBE
BB IR e h FERR Y 2 RE T 4
HERAAN -

EF T RERZHNEERIR

7N E2 B8 BT A S P He A O & BT IRR
B ARRESAHBEAEEMERRE
BENRERTEEENBBEZREEE
RrETTEET AIRER - ELMERER
ERBENESL & - WHEEEH A
FAREMER LIFHA - ERANERA
REEGLERTFEER -

Téiuﬁﬂitﬁﬁﬁ{ﬁj‘“ﬁﬁ%?%%E’J%“ i
1B SETNEEEREERE
HIEy - ﬁ%&%%&mﬁ”‘ﬁﬂ?Mﬁ?ﬁww
E%%?’i“ﬂ&ii”‘ﬁﬂi%’i“ﬂixﬁﬁf‘%ﬁ

TEBCETE HMD*XHHW%LME

EES\ °

AT BRBEMREERNEERR
Hip MEERZMEZ KR - HHER
MHEFERAYEENBERAEIFLE
RNBFEGFHEERER



170

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf ¥R &R HisE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated provision for loss incurred in
relation to the explosion in Tianjin

Due to the explosion which took place on 12 August
2015 in Tianjin Port (the "Incident") in the Binhai
New Area of Tianjin (the "Tianjin Port"), a building
in the depot of the Group which is located next to
the Tianjin Port was damaged, and part of those
containers kept on behalf of the customers were
destroyed.

The Group is in the process of claiming the loss
arising from the Incident from insurance companies
and the Tianjin government. As of the date of report,
the loss adjustor report has not been finalised.
A loss of US$2.4 million was estimated by the
management and charged to profit or loss. The
amount is disclosed in Note 34.

Estimated allowance for doubtful debts

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts
based on an assessment of the recoverability of
trade receivables taking into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The allowance is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the assets and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). Allowances are applied to trade
receivables where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected and where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of doubtful
debts requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation on the recoverability of trade
receivables is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact carrying value of trade
receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the
years in which such estimate has been changed.
As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of
trade receivables was US$146,765,000 (2014:
US$248,718,000).
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of
goodwill is US$6,246,000 (2014: US$6,246,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 18.

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
directors of the Company are responsible for
the determination of the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the assets, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available.

In estimating the fair value of derivative financial
instruments, the Group uses discounted cash flow
technigue that include inputs that are based on
observable market data to estimate the fair value
of certain types of financial instruments. Note 6¢
provides detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of various assets.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes (Continued)

As described in note 6¢, the directors of the
Company use their judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for financial
instrument not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners
are applied. For derivative financial instrument,
assumptions are made based on quoted market
rates adjusted for specific features of the instrument.
The fair value of the derivative financial instruments
as at 31 December 2015 was estimated at a liability
of US$20,000 (2014: an asset of US$239,000).

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property,
plant and equipment with respect to depreciation,
management estimates the useful lives of various
categories of property, plant and equipment
according to the Group’s experiences over the
usage of property, plant and equipment and also by
reference to the relevant industrial norm. If the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment is less
than the original estimate useful lives due to changes
in commercial and technological environment, such
difference will impact the depreciation charge for the
remaining useful life. As at 31 December 2015, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
was US$359,855,000 (2014: US$361,966,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes the bank borrowings disclosed
in note 36, net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this
review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associates with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6 €RTH
a. Categories of financial a. SEMIAZEE
instruments
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZZT-IF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables &3k & FEUL BR 7%
(including cash (RRESEERRE)
and cash equivalents) 460,257 613,981
Available-for-sale AEHEZERMEE
financial assets 6,608 6,608
Derivative financial PTESMTAE
instruments 239
466,865 620,828
Financial liabilites 2£@E&&
Derivative financial PTESMTAE
instruments 20 -
Amortised cost BEER 438,628 692,140
438,648 692,140
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6  ®mITH (%)

b. Financial risk management b. MERKREEBEZERBX
objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments AEEzEEemT ABEH
include available-for-sale investment, HEZKRE - TESMIT A &
derivative financial instruments, trade AR~ Efb fEURBR X - FETER
receivables, other receivables, trade o ENER- E’rﬁlﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%(
payables, bills payable, other payables, fETﬂﬁ?ﬁ\&EﬁiETﬂ NS
bank borrowings and current accounts AMB AR BEARREED
with immediate holding company, fellow %ZE%EE ZEeMIRZE
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. BERERMEANRESE - ZEd
Details of these financial instruments are BT AZEERRBET SRR
disclosed in respective notes. The risks (EH =k ﬂTﬂ s 2 B Ath (B
associated with these financial instruments Tﬂﬂ k) EERBRERBES
include market risk (currency risk, interest % o JN{A] 43 /@Uﬂj—rﬂ 2 2 IR
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk ﬁﬂﬁﬂ? o BIEE E.IE&#??EEA
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to LR ARG EAIE R E
mitigate these risks are set out below. The NBBHHETT ©

management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

Market risk T35 /3 s

() Currency risk ) EERE
Several subsidiaries of the Group have AEEBTHBATE A
foreign currency sales and purchases, HNESETIHE B - A1)
bank balances and cash and bank BIRITHEBRRIRE - AR
borrowings, which expose the Group IRITIEE - A& i1 78
to foreign currency risk. Approximately EZINE R o EAREE
68% (2014: 70%) of the Group’s 85 & AN I B 2 4915 68%
cost of sales and expenses are —E - F:70%) =
denominated in currencies other than LAThge ¥ LASN 2 E ¥ 5t
the functional currency of the relevant B MEEFHR(=
group entity making the sales, whilst TP : 97%) BAKRE
almost 96% (2014: 97%) of sales are EHAEEERNINESR
denominated in the group entity’s HEHE o

functional currency.
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6

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management

6 SE®mIAE
b. HMEERREEBEZERBEE

objectives and policies (Continued) (%)
Market risk (Continued) miEE (&)
() Currency risk (Continued) ) EEEEE)
On 11 August 2015, China government RZE—RhFNA+—
weakened the Renminbi (“RMB”)’s H  FBEBNFTAARE
daily reference rate by 1.9%, allowing WEBARSHLZEE1.9%
depreciation to combat a slump in NEEERBEHRD - BE
exports. As at 31 December 2015, the —E-AF+ZA=+—
RMB’s daily reference rate was dropped H ARBHNEBEXRS2
by 6% as compared to 31 December ZEBRN_ZE—NF+=
2014. Such RMB depreciation exposed A=+—HB&F&TH%6%-
the Group to foreign currency risk as HARBRESEEAZ
significant amount of Group’s monetary BRRBENINER R
assets and liabilities are denominated BREAEB s EBEERE
in RMB. However, this exposure was BEBEBERABHIEAA
partially offset by the advantages taken R¥ztE - A BER
from such depreciation, as almost 70% et ARBNEER
cost of sales are denominated in RMB REZEE - Rk
whilst 96% sales are denominated in M70%MHERAAAR
USS. BEETE + 196 % B SHE LA
ELEE o
The carrying amounts of the Group’s RSB H - REBE DS
foreign currency denominated monetary BB EBEEREK
assets and monetary liabilities at the BEZEEREBENT :
reporting date are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE 8&
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-1F —T-NFE ZEB-HEF —TMNMOF
US$’000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FTEn FET TEx T=r
RMB AR 213,796 RSN 300,147
Hong Kong dollar 77T
(“HK$”) 8,566 8,941 1,086 756
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

()

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to
exchange fluctuation of RMB.

The sensitivity analyses include
financial assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies
which are different from the functional
currency of the relevant Group entities.
The following table shows the post-
tax profit or loss impact of the foreign
currency denominated non-derivative
monetary assets and liabilities to
change in RMB for the Group. The
numbers below indicate the (decrease)
increase in post-tax loss (2014: post-
tax profit) where RMB is 5% (2014:
5%) higher/lower against the US$. This
is mainly attributable to the exposure
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period on RMB bank balances,
bank borrowings and payables net
of receivables assuming they are
outstanding for the whole year:

6
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) EEfE)
BRI DT
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FRMED T BEEATRR
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HpE®emEENEA
B TRETHEARKERL
RTEHEHANKEIFITE
TRAEBEENMBEYHK
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TREEBRRTARKERE
TTEREESNR(=F
— U4 1 5%) B Z FR TR i
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A O ) 3808 o i ER
AREERBRERRTH
ARBERITHEE - mMER
BREARBERITERLE
BRI ER R U BR 2 R
BRATER (RRZFHEERIER
FHFFR—KF)

RMB against US$ AR¥HET EHBMN A

increase by 5%
(2014: 5%)

(Z=—F : 5HzH)

RMB against US$ AR N T NERD 2R

decrease by 5%
(2014: 5%)

(Z=E—m%F : AfpzHhH)

2015 2014
—E-HF —TNF
UsS$000 US$'000
FTER FTEx
(973)

973
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk primarily relates to floating rate
borrowings and variable rate bank
balances. Interest rate risk on bank
balances is considered immaterial
due to short maturity. It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at floating
rate of interest so as to minimise the
fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest
rates on financial liabilities are detailed
in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk on
non-derivative financial instruments is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) and borrowing rates offered
by People’s Bank of China arising from
the Group’s variable-rate borrowings.

Moreover, in order to minimise the
Group’s interest rate risk exposure
arising from the US$310,000,000
term loan, the Company entered into
three interest rate swap contracts,
with a total notional amount of
US$186,000,000, to fix the monthly
LIBOR at a range of 0.8775% to
0.8800%. The three interest rate swap
contracts will mature on 24 September
2017.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk
(Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for bank borrowings
at the end of the reporting period.
For floating rate bank borrowings,
the analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of liability outstanding at
the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point (2014: 50 basis point)
increase or decrease in interest rate
represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rate had been 50 basis
points (2014: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss
for the year ended 31 December 2015
would have increased/decreased by
US$1,575,000 (2014: post-tax profit
would have decreased/increased
by US$1,853,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate bank
borrowings.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates
have decreased during the current year
mainly due to the decrease in variable-
rate bank borrowings.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Other price risk
The Group is exposed to equity
price risk through its investments
in unquoted equity securities. No
sensitivity analysis is presented as
the Group’s investments in unquoted
equity securities are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt at the end of each
reporting period to ensure the adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited
because the counterparties are banks or
financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating
agencies or state-owned banks in the PRC.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk
as 16.1% (2014: 23.9%) and 56.1% (2014:
56.3%) of the total trade receivables were
due from the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers, respectively. The
Group has assessed the creditworthiness of
these customers, all of these customers have
strong financial backgrounds and high credit-
rating within the industry. In this regard, the
directors of the Company considered that the
credit risk is low. The Group’s concentration
of geographical risk was improved as the
Group’s turnover generated from the largest
geographic sector of customers, the United
States of America, was dropped from 46.5%
to 37.6%.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants
or to timely negotiate with the lenders if any
non-compliance is expected.

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment dates. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

6
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b. HMERREEBEZERBEER
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EERE(E)

rEBBEEFEERR  EEE&
ABERGEAAMEE BG4
JE U BE FX16.1% ( — T — PO 4F -
23.9%) % 56.1% ( — T — M 4 :
56.3%) - EBEIEHEZERFZ
8 RERPHMBRELR
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ARREERAEFERRE -
MREERERAMIEEFRNIE
FIRE R ([ERH]) 2 & HERER
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EERBESERME - N&E
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6  ®mITH (%)

b. Financial risk management b. MEEREREEBERBE
objectives and policies (Continued) (%)
Liquidity and interest risk tables RBESRAZEBE
2015 —E-F1EF
Carrying
Weighted ~ On demand Total amount
average  orless than undiscounted  at 31/12/2015
interest rate 1 month 1-3 3 months cashflows M-Z-1f

METY  EXEEERD months tolyear  1-5years AME TZA=1-A
BRRE  OR-BR -E=fif z@AE-§ -ERF HENEAE RELE

% Us$000 US$000 Us$000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$000
% TEn Ti7 TEn iR S S
Financial liabilities 531
Trade payables FEfTEER 47,378 85,108 85,108
Bils payable ERZE 3542 22,755 22,755
Other payables At 11,4% 15,571 15,571
Amount due to immediate  ERERIER
holding company B 16 16
Amounts due to associates  [ERBREATFUA 132 132
Amounts due to joint ventures ERAEAEUE 4 46
Bankloans RIS

- nterest bearing borrowings® - 5 SfE&* 254,144 325,584 315,000

62,610 254,141 449,212 438,628

2014 —ZE—pusE
Carrying

Weighted ~ On demand Total amount

average  orlessthan undiscounted ~ at 31/12/2014

interest rate Tmonth 1-3 3months cashfows  H=F-PF

METY  EIHEES months toiyear  15years A3 t-A=1-A
BEflE JR-ER -Z=ER  cERE-% -ERF BenssE  BAE
% US§'000 US§'000 US$000  US$000 US§'000 US§:000
% TET in TEn 5n = En

Financial liabilities g st

Trade payebles g - 9,167 76,063 34,265 S MM 44%
Blls payable [ - 13,854 51,200 19,825 . 84,879 84,879
Other payables HfE(iRT - 15,874 2301 6,921 - 25,09 25,096
Amount due toimmediate  EREZER
holding company NSE - 5 - - - 5 5
Amounts due to associates  EIBEEARIFUR - 58 - - - 58 58
Amounts due to joint ventures ERAER SR - 43 - - - 3 43
Bank loans RS
- interest bearing borrowings™ - A 815 & 249% 18,103 9,519 B610 334404 397,786 377,564
142,104 139,083 96,681 334,49 712,362 692,140
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6  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables
(Continued)

The amounts included above for variable
interest rate instruments for non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to
those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.

For the Group’s interest bearing borrowings,
the weighted average interest rate at the end of
each reporting period is used for undiscounted
cash flows analysis.

Note: The undiscounted cash flow of derivative
financial instrument was determined assuming
all variables used in the fair value calculation at
the end of each reporting period remained the
same until maturity.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

° the fair value of derivative instrument is
made of discounted cash flow analysis
using the application yield curve and
forward rate for the duration of the
instrument for non-optional derivatives;
and

° the fair value of other financial assets
and financial liabilities (excluding
derivative financial instrument) are
determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

6 S®MIA#)

b.

BEEBEEBERBR
(%)
RBEERAZEMER(E)

BFEBEFITEEMAEZ
FRAIRENE - HFEREBEAR
WEHREEN KA THEE

. REELEZFABEERE  RE
HREHIR Z 01 F 19 H R F A
KRBT Z HEDHT °

Wiet : REVTAEEHBTRZ AHEE
MBIRRAEREREHKRZ
BRI TR EZH )

EMITAECZAREE
EremEERSBABBYI AR

BEEHHmT

. TESMTAEZAREE
AR INEARE 2 STET A
AERA RS R ELT
TR BHREABETH
EHEMEINT &

. HpeMEERERARE
(TEETESRIA)Z
NABESERERRM
EREAEIERACRE
DITETE -

R 0 U st RSN .
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6

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The derivative financial instruments are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of
this financial instrument are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are
those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities;

° Level 2 fair value measurements are
those derived from inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

° Level 3 fair value measurements
are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

6

€T R B

C.

EMTRZAREE®E

BREEHEERGEAREN
TRHEENERABEZARE
]

RERERR TESBTAT
BAREBEE - THREREME
THAE SR T AN ARE
BEFNEEFERZFERER
HiR) URBBTRAEENR
AEBEFAESENERERE
ERARBEMNSBER(ZE—=
=) e

. F—RAREBEFERZX
TiRAREES B ERE
B 55 R HmIE CREHR
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6

Fair value of financial instruments

C.

(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (Continued)

Financial assets

ETREE

Interest rate swaps
classified as
derivative financial
instruments in

the consolidated
statement of
financial position

NGRS Ve

DERITESRT
EPAIESCE

Fair value asat  Fair value as at
31/12/2015 31/12/2014
BE-E-1F BE-T-NF
+ZBA=+—-H1t +ZA=1+—-HL

N REE MAREE

Liability of Asset of

US$20,000 US$239,000
20,000%&fE 239,000FTEE

There were no transfers between Levels 1
and 2 in the current and prior years.

The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

€T R

C.

EMTRZAREE®E

BREEHEERGEAREN
TRHEEVNERMBEZARE
B #)

Fair value Valuation technique and key

hierarchy inputs
AREE
BR  AEFERIEHE
Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future
cash flows are estimated based
on forward interest rates (from
observable forward interest rates
at the end of the reporting period)
and the contracted interest rates,
discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of various counterparties
FZH  FHBEERE  RKRKREREREM

TR BRI R (RNREHR A 8
ERANE) ROEMNE - ERBRE
RPN EERRERR

F-REE R 2ERAEFE R
CIEDERI S s D E

RABEEARNEE B REK
tEEMEELRSREBE 2 #H
REMEREEQAEEES -



186

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements &1 #& k& ki

REVENUE

Revenue represents sales of goods from
manufacturing and services income from logistics
services operations, less returns, discounts and
sales related taxes, and is analysed as follows:

EERBIEREER 2 HE YRR Z
Hﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%&@ Mk EBHEE
B EofuT

2015 2014
—E-HF —TMF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Manufacturing BUESETS A EREVN 1,515,408
Logistics services W7 AR T 32,612 31,075
1,126,414 RNV RLE
SEGMENT INFORMATION 7o E F

Information reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker (i.e. Chief Executive Officer) for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance are organised into two
operating divisions — manufacturing and logistics
services. These divisions are the basis on which
the Group reports its segment information under
HKFRS 8.

No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision maker have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Principal activities are as follows:

Manufacturing — manufacturing of marine dry
freight containers, refrigerated
containers, collapsible flatrack
containers, tank containers,
US domestic containers,
offshore containers, other
specialised containers and
container parts.

Logistics services —  provision of container storage,
repair and trucking services,
serving as a freight station,
container/cargo handling
and other container related
services.

EIR D BN BRR IR AHA R AR B
BEERRE (AERITHAE) 2R
B BB D BMIELE R - BEE
BMPDRARTS - RN B R E ER
F8ER  AEEUAZEHMFIREESR
WEDEER -

>

AREBAREDFILBEHALTELE
IRREPTIETE 2 EEDED

5

EBEBIT
WEEH — LEGERERE A
AR TR T
TV

W@‘%%%@ BIRE
Ho 15 TR 52 AR A
’E*‘* FBECTF -

MRk — REHERMERT
& ¥ 5@ &
R BERE AR
Hib S R AR RS

.

W
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information regarding these segments is presented

DEBER (&)
ZEDHERZHRAOT ¢

below:
Segment revenue and results DEEEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue AEERERKLED D EERBME
and results by reportable and operating segment: BOMWT -
2015 —E-—FHEF
Logistics
Manufacturing services Sub-total Eliminations Total
BUE¥K W AR R gt i “E
US$'000 US$’000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000
FER TEn TZn TEn TEn
REVENUE EXH
External sales HINEE 1,093,802 32612 1,126,414 1,126,414
Inter-segment sales HEREEE - 7,475 7,475 (7,475) -
Total At 1,093,802 40,087 1,133,889 (7,475) 1,126,414
Inter-segment sales DEFEHEERER
are charged at prevailing TIETIGETE
market prices.
SEGMENT RESULTS DHEE 16,562
Finance costs gt (10,663)
Investment income KEWA 5,086
Change in fair value THEERMIAY
of derivative AhEEZD

financial instruments

Share of results of associates

Share of results of
joint ventures

Profit before taxation

EiEBE A ER
BiERELR G

BRBEAT

(259)

(2,450)

659

8,935

[ U B RN N T —
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) TEER®)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PEEEBRESE (&)
2014 —T0F
Logistics
Manufacturing services Sub-total  Eliminations Total
LR MRS NGt e k]
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn Txn T TEL TEn
REVENUE £
External sales HHMHE 1,515,408 31,075 1,546,483 - 1546483
Inter-segment sales AEREE - 8,381 8,381 (8,381) -
Total At 1,515,408 30456 1,554,864 (8.381) 1,546,483
Inter-segment sales D EEHEER
are charged at prevailing DIRTTHET °
market prices.
SEGMENT RESULTS PEEE 56,650 8,374 65,024 = 65,024
Finance costs S ER (13,802)
Investment income KERA 4,704
Change in fair value TEeRIAZ
of derivative MEEE
financial instruments 239
Reclassification of fair value ~ ##EFE A%H TER
loss of derivative TESBTEY
financial instruments DREBEEBEHRYH
designated as hedging REENZES
instruments from
hedge reserve (3,071)
Share of results of associates JE(LEE A\ 7] 2 Fiig (72)
Share of results of EEAELEZER
joint ventures (498)
Profit before taxation BRE AR A 52,524

Segment results represent the profit earned by
each segment without allocation of finance costs,
investment income, change in fair value of derivative
financial instruments, reclassification of fair value
loss of derivative financial instruments designated
as hedging instruments from hedge reserve, share
of results of associates and share of results of
joint ventures. This is the measure reported to the
Group’s Chief Executive Officer for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

DEEBEIRE D BEFEN - BARDE
MIEER  REWA - TTEERIAZ
NRBEZS - FIEEAE T TANDT
EERTAZ AR BEBBRHERHEE
BEnERHTE  BEBZEQRZERNE
HEBERRZEH (EER) o LIHIFsER
DB MFHE D BREMAAEEEET
BAAEEW HAE -
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8 aoHERE

Segment assets and liabilities ITHWEERAE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s total REETMERLEDHBOREENR
assets and total liabilities by reportable and BEITHT
operating segment:
2015 —=_FHE
Logistics
Manufacturing services Total
BUEEK MR ok
Us$'000 US$’000 US$'000
TEn TER SE VI
ASSETS gE
Segment assets NEEE 737,297 800,337
Interests in associates N EYNCI T 43,983
Interests in joint ventures REBL ¥ R 22,391
Unallocated corporate assets APERARIEE 299,329
Consolidated total assets DREERR 1,166,040
LIABILITIES a8
Segment liabilities ok =\ 175,498 13,919 189,417
Unallocated corporate liabilities APEARIARE 328,962
Consolidated total liabilties FaBEeRE 518,379
OTHER INFORMATION HingH
Amounts included in ARG ED 2 Fl
the measure of FERINHEE
segment profit or MeEBE -
loss or segment assets:
Additions of capital expenditure AR
Depreciation and amortisation rE R
Gain on disposal of property, plant &M - #
and equipment R
Loss on property, plant and MR - R
equipment written off REfE2 B

il

Il
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8

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

8 SNEERE

THEEREGE#)

2014 —ZE—F
Logistics
Manufacturing services Total
REEH MR ok
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TET TET =
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 088,148 67,970 1,056,118
Interests in associates N AN 3 43,265
Interests in joint ventures REBLE L ER 23,445
Unallocated corporate assets APRAREE 307,613
Consolidated total assets HERELSH 1,430,441
LIABILITIES afs
Segment liabilities AHEE 353,908 11,178 365,086
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBRAREE 392,922
Consolidated total liabilities TR AGEE 758,008
OTHER INFORMATION Hip R
Amounts included in AR E D RN
the measure of BEREIHTBEER
segment profit or SHEE:
loss or segment assets:
Additions of capital expenditure FEEARY 36,777 4,074 40,851
Depreciation and amortisation WER#EH 23,391 3,220 26,611
Loss on disposal of property, plant ~ H&EW% - #225%
and equipment REEE (49) (1) (50)
Loss on property, plant and THME  BER
equipment written off R EE (122) () (124)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

The amounts included in other information are part
of the reportable and operating segments.

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources between
segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than interests in associates, interests
in joint ventures and unallocated corporate
assets. Assets used jointly by reportable
segments are allocated on the basis of the
revenue earned by individual reportable
segments; and

- all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than unallocated corporate
liabilities, which included current and deferred
tax liabilities. Liabilities for which reportable
segments are jointly liable are allocated in
proportion to segment assets.

Revenue from major products and
services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue
from its major products and services (after
elimination of inter-segment sales):

8

DEER (&)

THEERER#E)
BREEME R IR A] S RS
DB — BB D -

REBEED RN BRRMNERD
[

- BREEARZED ReER
K2 EmMARDEERREEI -
BEEADEKELEDH - A
BEDHEMEBER 2 EETIRE
A REDHB 2 EXBAEEE
DB &

- BAIEQREBE(BREAFE
MENMELEHIERE)  IER
EHDEELEDE - Al wED
MEHEBE BB RO MEE
RFTEELBIEDEC -

TEEMRRK 2 EXEE

REBEBEmERF <SRBT
T(EEREDFHEHE) -

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—NF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FErT

Manufacturing: BUEFRS -
Dry freight containers ﬁi%%%@
Refrigerated containers IR IR FER
Tank containers i)
US domestic containers ERAPERER
Other specialised containers B RFEE R K
and container parts SRR
Logistics services i AR TS

644,627 IERAILE
155,592 201,727
111,247 79,570
121,648 127,411

60,688 35,467
32,612 31,075

1,126,414 1,546,483
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong,
the PRC and Thailand. The Group’s manufacturing
division is located in the PRC. Logistics services
division is located in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Thailand.

The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’s revenue by geographical market based on
the location of customers, irrespective of the origin
of the goods/services:

8

DEPER (2)

1#h & 5 3B
AEBMZEBHHRES  PERE
B o A B R RNRE - W
BASNES - PEREE -

TEREHEAREREFPHE MRS
DT EEKE  WAREBERMEEM
ARSI ARM -

2015 2014
—E-RHF —ZTNF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET

USA ==
Hong Kong B
Europe BM
PRC =8
Middle East PR
Taiwan =]
Others HAth

423,386 719,697
197,952 196,236
186,321 225,798
138,534 98,950
50,438 26,641
48,568 219,079
81,215 60,082

1,126,414 1,546,483
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8

Geographical information (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount
of segment assets and non-current assets,
other than financial instruments, analysed by the
geographical area in which the assets are located:

DEER (&)

WEDE (&)

AT 2 E CREFEH) DD A
ERIERSEE (SBTARIN) 2 EME
SEE

Carrying amount of
Carrying amount non-current assets other than
of segment assets financial instruments
EMT AU

FHEEZREFE FRBEEZIREFE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RfF —T-OmFE ZT-HF C—T-MF
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
TER FET FER FTET
PRC i 762,103 1,013,443 465,647 442,750
Hong Kong BE 38,106 42,600 15,433 19,486

Others Hth 128

75 38,232 38,391

800,337 1,056,118 519,312 500,627

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of
the total sales of the Group are mainly derived from
the manufacturing segment. In 2015, no customer
(2014: two) contributes over 10% of the total sales
(2014: amounting to US$380,427,000).

FEEXEFEA
HAEEEERLBBBIONHNEF
TERBREEBKH>H - R —F
FRBEHEREHBI0%NE
F(ZZE—HF - MX HEEEA
380,427,000 7T) °

=

O 0 0 B RN N —
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9 FINANCE COSTS 9 HMBEAR
2015 2014
—E-HE —ZT—MNF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FETT
Interest on bank loans BRAFAZIEREZ
and overdrafts wholly RITERRELZFE
repayable within five years 8,357
Bank charges RITFES 2,420
Notes coupon payments ZRES 3,025
13,802
10 INVESTMENT INCOME 10 ®REWA
2015 2014
—E-HF T—NOF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx F=ET
Interest earned on R1TTF K F BHA
bank deposits 3,649
Interest income from —BE N RIERFBIA
an associate =
Interest income from —BECEERFBRA
a joint venture 307
Dividend income from A HE 2 IREREMA
available-for-sale
investment 748
4,704
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Notes to the Financial Statements B} 3 M &

11 BRBLADEF

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT-OF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Profit before taxation has been B &% 1% 2 1k
arrived at after charging (BT A) TFI&IE :
(crediting) the following:
Auditor’s remuneration % EREM BN & 549
Staff costs, including directors’ BB A @ BIREEM®
emoluments
— Salaries and other benefits - %tré&ﬁﬂﬂ%f | 122,879 135,096
— Retirement benefit costs RNEFIER (MFE13)
(Note 13) 4,651 4,657
127,530 139,753
Depreciation and amortisation 7 E K #
Depreciation of property, W - R R
plant and equipment RETE 25,179
Amortisation of prepaid BEEEL 2
lease payments in FENHEEFKIE
respect of leasehold land 1,467 1,432
30,376 26,611
Operating lease charges KEHEEA
- Land and buildings -t BT 6,059 4,432
— Plant and machinery - MR R 203 211
6,262 4,643
Allowance for doubtful debts — RIZERERF 653 28
Share of taxation charge FE(RES & A R R IR
of associates L 240
Share of taxation charge of ~ E{REEEFIA
joint ventures 270 82
516 322
Cost of inventories recognised . :3E A& $H &K AN
as expense 2178 JOEEGYCN 1,307,848
(Gain) loss on disposal HEMZE - WRK
of property, plant =iz Car) BB
and equipment 50
Loss on property, plant I - AR K
and equipment written off i B1E 124

e

(I

RN T U Bl — T .
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12 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST 12 EERALBEREHFMA LT M

PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS &
The following was the emoluments paid or payable to AT RENKEMNT(ZF—MEF -
each of the 10 (2014: 9) Directors of the Company. NM)ESZEEMS -
2015 —B-HF
Teo  Chan Teo  Chung Cheng Lau

Siong  Kwok Tiou PuiKing,  Kuan Tan FuKwok,  HoKit, Ong Yang
Seng Leung  Seng Rebecca KimKin ChorKee  David lvan  KaThai  Victor  Total
BB RER REE  ERR  BBE REE  gEE  WIR  IXR  BEH 2
(Notei)
(M)
USP000  USP000  US$'000 USS'000  USS'000 US$'000 USS'000 USH000  USS000  USS'000  USS000
Tin TR R T TEn TR T fEn i TR TAEn

Fegs fig

Other emoluments: Efrife:
Salaries and other benefts ¥ R4
Contrbutions to reffement (KR

benefit scheme
Performance reated FaRTfERRRS
incentive payments
2014 —T-mF
Cheng Lau
Teo Chan Teo Kuan Ten  FuKwok, HoKt, Ong Yang
SiongSeng KwokLeung ~ TiouSeng ~ KimKin  ChorKee David hen  KaTha Victor Total
Re  RER  FE 0 ERE 0 RME O UBE IR TFR BEE £
(Note i)
(i)
US$000  USS000  USS000 - USS000  USS000 - USS000  USS000  USSO00  USH000  USS000
r T T i TR TR TR TR TR R
Fess g 50 % % 4 2% 17 4 3% 4 312
Other emoluments: Efpie:
Sclaries and other benefts ¥ & REARA 406 269 - - - - - - - 675
Contrioutons forethement ~ BAERIES:
beneftt scheme 20 14 - - - - - - - 34
Performance related FERIRRES
incentive payments 700 68 - - - - - - - 168

1176 37 2% 4 2% 17 4 3% U 1789
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DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Mr. Teo Siong Seng is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Chief Executive Officer.

Note i: Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca has been appointed as
executive director on 2 July 2015.

Note ii: Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David has retired from the Head of
Shipfinance in Asia of Credit Agricole CIB with effective
from 1 May 2014, he is allowed to receive remuneration
since then.

The above analysis includes 3 (2014: 2) Directors
whose emoluments were among the five highest
paid individuals in the Group. Details of the
aggregate emoluments paid to the remaining 2
(2014: 3) individuals whose emoluments were
among the five highest paid individuals in the Group
and which have not been included in Directors’
emoluments above are set out below:

12

BEENTEBRESEHMA LT 2B
cAC D)

SRINBSEETIARNRIEFITHREE - A
FRECME D BREMIERERITRAR
EFTRREMRTE 2B -

Histi - LBMRL LR —E—hF+H - AEEF
BATTEE °

Miatii - SWEHEIEFEER = FE—ERA—HFHE
R EIBRI TN B £ E— Rk o
Bt - BISEA R BLA Z (FHERE B o

RS EERASREELRR R
MALHEFRz2=2(ZF—MNF &
Z)EE - FAESKME(ZT—N4F
ZR)BASEELERRTMA LY
5 MAEINALBEEMES A ZA
T HAFEEFFRmT

e MEMER
RIRRER SR

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefit costs

2015 2014
—E-RHF Z—ZTNNF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET

509

21

530

[ U B RN N T —
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12

13

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

12

BEENTEBRESEHMA LT 2B
cAC))

B2 ME TOE T 5IEE

US$128,982 — US$193,473
(HK$1,000,000
- HK$1,500,000)
US$193,474 — US$257,965
(HK$1,500,001
- HK$2,000,000)

128,982 3T — 193,473 3% 7T
(1,000,000 7T — 1,500,000 7 7T.)

193,474 37T — 257,965 % 7T
(1,500,001 # 7T — 2,000,000 7 7T.)

2015 2014
—E-RHF —ZT—NF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

A N
2

No waiver of emoluments, compensation loss and
inducement to join or upon joining the Group was
paid to directors of the Company or the five highest
paid individuals during the year .

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group operated
defined contribution retirement schemes for certain
employees in Hong Kong. These schemes are
registered under the Occupational Retirement
Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the scheme
are held separately and managed by independent
trustees. Under the rules of the schemes, the
employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at rates
specified in the rules. Any amount unvested upon
an employee ceasing to be a member shall be used
to offset subsequent employer’s contributions.

13

FA - AEEYERAEESLARZSH
A AT S - RS INER SR hn
BANER [ B ) 2R D S A R BB A A E

EIREF AR

N_ZTETE+_-A—HA - AEEE
AR TEBRERIATHIENRE
Bl o FLLET B TY38 FR B 2R KA EME A
ift o REREICEEIDRIBBELY
AABBERER - RIFFTEI 288 - B
T RHEE S BLBRAFRE 2L E @G
BIEK - WEBTBEEIENAEE - A
HRBEIETS 2 S EREE S A DA 8
HigEEZ MK -
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13 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

(Continued)

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has
joined MPF scheme for all employees in Hong Kong.
The MPF scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee.

Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF scheme at rates specified
in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the MPF scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

The employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-sponsored retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government in the PRC.
Subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of relevant payroll to the retirement
benefit schemes. Obligations under the scheme are
borne by the PRC Government.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the profit
or loss representing contributions payable by the
Group to the MPF Scheme operated in Hong Kong
and the retirement benefit schemes in the PRC
amounted to US$4,651,000 (2014: US$4,657,000).

No forfeited contributions of the Group’s defined
contribution retirement schemes was used to
reduce the current year’s contributions. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited
contributions, which arose from the employees
leaving the retirement schemes and which are
available to reduce the contribution payable by the
Group in the future years.

13

BIRBRER2)

R-ZEZEF+_A—HEE  ~EEE
AEEBRER I NDEBESTE -
ZET BTy B R Bl A S FT V&S] -
measl M AR EIEE R - Z&t
Sl EBETREAEBNEE DR HE
MEFEARA o

REREEFEZRA - BEMEESR
ERERARE 2 L KA - K
SERESFE 2B ERRIEZ
ATEIHER o WEBDL WA S AT HURE R
REREF 2 FEFHHR o

EREZ KB AR EER TR BB
BT R RRIKETEIRKE - HIE R RIA
ZREFEET AN AULLF S -
E S e EEAEDBRTERFEE -

BiEmIk 2 RARBEMERIAEE
BN TFTZEEBRERLZ2BREDA
A RAEFRE 2 RKGTE 2K
& 4,651,000 (= T — M F -
4,657,0003<7T) °

FEARRE 2 S R FURIET 81 I A4
Rz AR E BAERE IR F E 2 it 3R
B RBEHR  AKEAWREREE
BEFARINGT S - RAEEARIBK S E
TREE ORISR

R 8 K s — T .
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14 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the PRC in which the
Group operates.

FREHIRER

BB ST TRz B F E NI FERR
BiaMZ 16.5%HE o

RE RS T A F ARG BERDE
M AREERPBEEEE 2 BITHRE

| AL
=T EHE o
gl

2015 2014
—EF-RF ZF0F
US$000 US$'000
Tz T=r

Current tax: REFEHIA -
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNEDR
— Current year - RFE 163
— Prior years overprovision - AIFE S (4)
159
PRC Enterprise Income Tax ~ F B 55
- Current year - REFE 17,861
— Prior years overprovision - RIFE Z (184)
17,677
Deferred tax (Note 40): EIEFLTE (M52 40) -
Current year (credit) charge ~ AFE (%)X H 1,788
Income tax expense REEFBHIERY
for the year 19,624
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

In accordance with the tax legislations applicable
to foreign investment enterprises, a subsidiary of
the Company are entitled to the exemption from
the PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the first three
years commencing from the first profit-making
year of operations, after offsetting all unexpired tax
losses from previous years, and thereafter to a 50%
relief from the PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the
following three years. As a result, a subsidiary of the
Company was exempted from the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Profit before taxation Br iR A& A

Tax at the domestic tax rate SAB A R & 25%

of 25% (2014: 25%) (2014 : 25%)5t&

Tax effect of share of results FE(EEEZ A T 2 518
of associates 2GR &

Tax effect of share of EihEERE L Cafl)
results of joint ventures BB E

Tax effect of expenses that TEzT S f&ERA a1l
are not deductible in TNEERZ

determining taxable profit 2 T &2

Tax effect of income that — FE5t 5 &R s F1|F
are not taxable in BEZRZ WA
determining taxable profit 2 Tii& 2

Tax effect on tax losses RANE ERIEMER

arising in the current 2 BT Es1E
year not recognised BB
Tax effect of utilisation of {5 A B F /& R AEHERR.
tax losses previously 2 BT EsE
not recognised BB
Overprovision in prior years Bi“EE Z @
Income tax on FriSTE R X
concessionary rate
Withholding tax on RAOEFEZ
undistributed profits RINRATRIE
Others oty

Tax charge and effective ~ AGFERIAZ H
rate for the year KB MR

14 FiSHERIX (#)
HERERARINEIRE D 2 BRIEER
ARral—KBAR BB EREMEEF
RMEBZHIBEBIERNEFFERENE
—FRZRRPBICEMSH - &=
FAZERHCEMSEHEAED A TR
%o Bt KRA—BRAAN-Z
—HF+_A=1t—HItFEZFEDP
HEFSHESH® -

2015 2014
—EB-EHF —E—PYE
US$°000 % US$'000 %

FER BoLE FET Aot

8,935 52,524

2,234 13,131 25.00

612 18 0.03
(165) 125 0.24

6,561 2,699 5.14

(1,979) (22.15) (1,731) (3.30)

4,219 5,720 10.89

(640) (7.16) (890) (1.69)
(184) (2.06) (188) (0.36)
(1,418) (15.87) (1,148) 2.19)
852 9.54 1,830 3.48
195 2.18 58 0.11
10,287 115.13 19,624 37.35

e

(I

RN T U Bl — T .
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15 DIVIDENDS 15 RE
2015 2014
—F-HF ZTMF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Dividends recognised as RERNTERS

distributions during the year: E 2RI E. :

Interim in respect of current  AFE 2 A HIRE - BE1F

financial year, paid FEER1.581L

- HK1.5 cents (ZZ2—m% -

(2014: HK1.5 cents) FEmR1.58)

per ordinary share 4,685

Final in respect of the previous &2 REAMR S - 217

financial year, paid FEER1.581L

- HK1.5 cents (ZZ2—m% -

(2014: HK1 cent) BEBEAR 1 B)

per ordinary share 3,122

7,807

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, RARAEERE I RERE_T—H
no final dividend in respect of the year ended F+-_A=+—HLEFEZRERE
31 December 2015 (2014: final dividend in respect —E-NF:BRET-NF+ZA
of the year ended 31 December 2014 of HK1.5 =t+t—RIEFERARESLERIS
cents per ordinary share, total of which equivalent Al - 42RE4 536,276,000 7T (H%

to approximately HK$36,276,000 (equivalent to RHI4,677,000%7T)) °
approximately US$4,677,000)) has been proposed
by the directors of the Company.
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16 (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss) earnings
per share attributable to the owners of the Company

16

B (&E8) 2R
AAAREREEAREEER ()
BTSRRI -

is based on the following data:

2015 2014
—E-REF —ZE—PF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx F=
(Loss) earnings: (E78) & F -
(Loss) earnings for FEUGTEEARR
the purposes of EEER (B1E) &1
calculating basic and 2 (E1E) &7
diluted (loss) earnings
per share (2,723) 28,021
Number of shares: BRIEA -
Weighted average number of FELAGTEER
ordinary shares for the purpose Bk (BE) B
of calculating basic (loss) earnings 2 & B hnE
per share EHEE 2,417,371,973  [2XZIoN IR LT
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary i Hibg gD y e
shares for share options TRk w2 408,892
Weighted average FELAGTERS
number of ordinary B (E8) &85
shares for the purpose 2 EmAR hniE
of calculating diluted g E

(loss) earnings per share

PROYETAR TN 2 420,817,851

The computation of diluted loss per share for the
year ended 31 December 2015 does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share
options, as the exercise price of those options are
higher than the average market price per share for
2015, and therefore, was anti-dilutive to the loss per
share.

AR AN R AT 2 B AR 2 7T (8
-2 REMERTLTSESLS
B BUAEREYE SIS ER
EoT-RE+-A=+—AILHEE
SRR R R PR IR -

E N 0 R e —
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17 Y% - HBRRHE
EQUIPMENT
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Plant fittings and
buildings and and office Motor  Construction
site improvements machinery ~ equipment vehicles i progress Total
BELHRET BER HE £ER
RiHR HfF  BLERE RE HEIR am
USS'000 USS'000 USS'000 USS'000 USS'000 USS'000
i i i Tir i i
Cost kA
At1 January 2014 RZE-ME-A-A 152,928 183,891 10,400 10,502 101,343 459,064
Tranglation differences ~ EEZ% (48) (27) ? 10 - (67)
Additions HE 15,490 8,862 1,655 2432 12,412 40,851
Disposals e - (890) (112) (1,186) - 2,189)
Write off HH - (098) (1,510) (127) - (2,635)
Transfer i 5725 17,900 1,034 882 (25,541) -
At31 December 2014  RZFE-RF+-A=+-H 174,09 208,738 11,465 12,513 88,214 495,005
Tranglation differences ~ BEERE (763) (448) (56) (32) = (1,299)
Additions hE 268 4,933 41 680 24,730 31,088
Disposals e (4,287) (926) 40) (149) - (6,002)
Write off i - (1,865) (190) (164) - (2,219)
Transfer E4 76,288 17,426 468 1493 (95,675) -
At31December2015  R=Z-EF+=A=t+-A 245,601 227,858 12,124 13,741 17,269 516,503
Accumulated depreciation  ZF&#TE
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-mE-A-R 33,358 69,578 5,089 3,908 - 111,933
Translation differences ~ EEZE% (14) (14) ) ) = (30
Charge for the year TEENE 6,946 15,838 750 1645 - 25,179
Eiminated on disposals ~ H& 418 - (756) (100) (656) - (1,512)
Eimnated onwriteoff ~ FE8H¥18A - (890) (1,502 (119) - (2,511)
At31December 2014  RZE-NE+-A=+—H 40290 83,756 4,236 4777 - 133,059
Tranglation oifferences ~ HEZEE (242) (236) 23 (20) - (521)
Charge for the year TEEHE 8,837 16,957 1,023 2,092 - 28,909
Eliminated on disposals &% (1,175) (819) (33 (580) - (2,601)
Eiminated onwrite off 8% - (1,774) (179) (161) - (2,108)
At31December2015 R=E-EE+-A=1-A 47,7110 97,890 5,030 6,108 - 156,738
Carrying values REER
At31December2015 R-ZE-EE+-A=1-R 197,801 129,968 7,094 7,633 17,269 350,855
At31 December 2014  R=F-RF+-A=t+-H 133,805 124,982 7,229 7,136 88,214 361,966
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17 Y3 - WS RRE )

EQUIPMENT (Continued)
The carrying value of land and buildings of the AEEN L REFZREED T
Group is analysed as follows: ™
Leasehold
land and Site
buildings improvements Total
HELit
kEgF TR k]
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FTET FET FEr
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-h%+_A=+—H
Held in Hong Kong ERBMERE
On medium-term lease  HRRR 4
(20 to 50 years) (202 50%) 13,920 - 13,920
Held outside Hong Kong ~ EBBUIMEERH
On medium-term lease  HRRR 4
(20 o 50 years) (20&E504F) - 183,971 183,971
13,920 183,971 197,891
At 31 December 2014 RZZE-—NMF+-A=1+—H
Held in Hong Kong EREBHERE
On medium-term lease R HATEAY
(20 0 50 years) (202 50%) 14,362 - 14,362
Held outside Hong Kong ~ FEBEBUIMEERH
On medium-term lease R HATEAY
(20 0 50 years) (202 50%) 3,215 116,208 119,443
17,577 116,228 138,805

The land and building elements of a lease of land
and building cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is

treated as property, plant and equipment.

T REFEOTH LI RET D &
VAR £ 3 BRAR T B o3 ) A]
HAOBRBRIEME - MR NRE -

fic - B

R 0 U st RSN .
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18

GOODWILL 18 BHE
US$'000
FETT
Cost RS
At 1 January 2014, R-_E—mFE—H—H -
31 December 2014 and —T-NWE+=-A=+—H
31 December 2015 ;r—E—FRF+-_A=1+—H 7,872
Impairment RE
At 1 January 2014, R-_E—mFE—H—H -
31 December 2014 and —T-NWE+=-A=+—H
31 December 2015 ;r—E—FRF+-_A=1+—H 1,626
Carrying values REEE
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—HFE+=H=+—H 6,246
At 31 December 2014 R-_ZE—mME+—_A=+—H 6,246

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
has been allocated to an individual CGU, including
five (2014: five) subsidiaries in manufacturing of
container.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or
more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of CGU is determined
from value in use calculations. The key assumptions
for the value in use calculations are those regarding
the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to selling prices and direct costs during
the period. Management estimates discount rates
using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates are
based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in
selling prices and direct costs are based on past
practices and expectations of future changes in the
market.

FBERNRME - BESRE @R &
BRSEN EEAB(ZZE—WNE
hfE) BRREERB 2B AR -

rEBex L BFRABBETRER
Eo ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ%&im%%—fﬁégﬁxiﬂ
B BIEMRBEEREE -

RER BN RE SRR REEA
BERETE - AEEAEERAERANE
ZEREEEBOBAEX i‘ﬁ*‘l«(&
EMHEBRMNEZRERNENE

BRI AN KA ETRER X - L/Uiﬂﬁi
EAMSHEREREEEMERIGES
B AR E R R 2 HE o BREKA
RIBFRAIRRIBRMETE - HEEBM
BB M & IG5 R E LAEHIA
HARREFNFAMERETNER
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GOODWILL (Continued) 18 BE#®)
The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived AEEMR S RERARBERIRE
from the most recent financial budgets approved by BEMBHNARKRAFNINBEER
management for the next five years and extrapolates B WiE5% (ZF —HF : 5%) B fh
cash flows for the five years based on an estimated FHERERIBARFHIRSHE - AN
growth rate of 5% (2014: 5%). The rate used to EEARERETEEZREMRER
discount the forecast cash flows is 10% (2014: 10% (ZZF—F : 10%) - EEREA
10%). The directors of the Company consider that DETREREEMTRECENEE
reasonably possible change in key assumptions on RREEEER AT EEE8) NI T &85
which the directors of the Company have based to RensBunRABEBEEAKE S
determine the CGU’s recoverable amount would # o
not cause the CGU’s carrying amount to exceed its
recoverable amount.
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19 REBE QT zER
2015 2014
—E-0F C—TNF
US$’000 US$’'000
FEx FET
Unlisted shares and FEEMZIRG -
investments:
At cost RN 52,180 41,139
Share of post-acquisition FEMG BB R AR -
reserves,net of dividend B AR F
received (8,197) 2,126
43,983 43,265

[ U B RN N T —
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19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19 NA 2= (#)

(Continued)
R_IEBE-—RFR_FT-—HFE+_H
=+—H AEBZFEBERRZEFH

Particulars of associates as at 31 December 2015
and 2014 are set out below:

BT -
Place of
Form of  incorporation/
business  registration Group Proportion of Principal
Name structure  and operation equity interest voting power held activities
R/ F5E fif&
8 Ry REERY it B R TERH
2015 2014 2015 2014
ZE2-1f - ZB-1f C—T-MF
Modex Holding Limited (‘Modex’) Incorporated British Virgin 28.5%" 20.0%" Manufacturing and
=E Islands leasing of offshore
RERAEE containers
REREE
BLERM
Ningbo Victory Container Co., Ltd. *  Incorporated PRC 40.0%" 40.0%" Provision of
ERRBEEERAR AE M container storage
and repair
services
REERRRT
REERB
Singamas Thai Logistics Co., Ltd. " Incorporated Thalland 25.0%" 25.0%" 25.0% Provision of
E ZE container storage
and repair
services
RUERRRT
R RS
Xiamen Xiangyu Singamas Container  Incorporated PRC 35.0%" 28.0%" 28.6%" Provision of
Co., Ltd. ¥ A HE (Note 2) container storage,
ERZEBRERERAR (Hrz2) repair and trucking
services, and
serving as a
freight station
RS EMRER -
% ER
SRS

- (AP PO oo S |
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19
(Continued)

Associates held directly by the Company
# Equity joint venture established in the PRC in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations
In proportion to issued and fully paid registered capital

Note:

1 An additional capital injection of US$10,175,000 was
made in April 2015, which increased the Group’s equity
interest in Modex Holding Limited from 28.5% to 29.9%
and the voting power from 20% to 33.3% as at 31
December 2015.

2 An additional capital injection of US$866,000 was made

in February 2015, which increased the Group’s equity
interest in Xiamen Xiangyu Singamas Container Co., Ltd.
from 28.0% to 35.0%.

Summarised financial information of a material
associate:

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material associate is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the associate’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

REHE QB 2R ()

ARABZEIFHZHERA]
WREGEEOIREER P LT Z B E
Bibx

HERTRBEHEMRAZ L]

£

>

MEt

1 R-F—RFEF+-F=1—H XEF#
& Modex Holding Limited £ fi% 1 # 25 %
FARWE D T H 28.5% 1 11 2 29.9% K #
20% 1B IE 33.83% + AR =F—HFMN
A REEEETA10,175000%F % £
BEOPEAK o

2 KEFFHEFIR B BITEEF IR L ]
AR #E 1 2 77 28.0% %8 11 2 35.0% * A
AR-ZF—FF-H REFHATA
866,000 % HIEEINE A o

BEABERRNHHERME

BRAREERBE AR ZHBERH
ZHEINT - Tz MHERE /IR
BEEMHREEAREOTERER L
BENRMBERRPAIR ISR -

kNN SEE S 2L
< EE °

[ U B RN N T —
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19

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

19 RBERT 2 R @)

(Continued)
Modex Modex
2015
—E—hF
US$’000
FEx
Current assets mENEE 23,087
Non-current assets EmBIEE 198,250
Current liabilities mENAEE (13,970)
Non-current liabilities EREAaE (121,685)
Non-controlling interest FEFE AR AR PR i 7 (1,376)
Revenue LR 43,562
Loss for the year FABE (10,680)
Other comprehensive expense FREMBEZ L
for the year (24,050)
Total comprehensive expense FRNEEX NERE

for the year

(34,730)

Dividends received from
the associate during the year

FRBEBE R RWEVZBE

2014
—ZE—F
US$'000
Tt

32,589

156,214

(91,229)

(12,347)

(1,693)

41,864

(3,583)

(3,583)
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19

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR

19 REBEQT 2R R D)

alj

in the associate recognised in the consolidated

financial statements:

bt BA RS B R R B AR A B S SRR PR
R NP EmREEZ R

2015
—E-HF
US$’000
FEx

Net assets of the associate

Bra N e BEFE

Proportion of the Group’s
ownership interest in Modex
Goodwiill

REE P Modex 2 B iERER
2t
EES

Carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in Modex

REE N Modex Z #E25BREE

Aggregate information of associates that are not

individually material:

2014
it St
US$'000

TET

83,534

27,614
10,062

37,676

FFERIEE B R AIMER A BRY

2015
—E-hF
Us$’000
FEx

The Group’s share of
profit for the year

REEERIE 2 AN F R A

The Group’s share of AEEEGZEAN
other comprehensive expense HEM2mE M
The Group’s share of REEELZFA
total comprehensive income FHREREE

Aggregate carrying amount
of the Group’s interests in
these associates

ZN S )3 apd YN
#AREE

2014
—ET—mF
US$'000
FET

722

67)

655

5,689

E N 0 R e —
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20

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20 AEELEZRER
2015 2014
—F-HF ZT-MF
US$’000 US$'000
FErn FET
Unlisted shares and investments: L2 -
At cost R 23,101
Share of post-acquisition reserves, JEEUEEE S -
net of dividend received R E YA F 344
23,445
Particulars of principal joint ventures as at 31 RZE—RAFRZZE—MOF+A
December 2015 and 2014 are set out below: =t+—H FAERECZFESELEFE
URNE
Place of
Formof incorporation/
business  registration Group Proportion of Principal
Name structure  and operation equity interest voting power held activities
B/ -3 &
£ KIFR REEHY ik iRE R FTEEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-F5f -—T-ME Z—B-FE -ZT-MNE
Dalian Singamas International Incorporated PRC 33.3% Provision of
Container Co., Ltd. * B HE container storage
AEBHEREREBRAR and repair
services
RS ERGET
REERT
Fuzhou Singamas Container Co., Ltd. #  Incorporated PRC 40.0% Provision of
RMBRHERERAR E e container storage
and repair
services
RS ERGET
REERT
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

20 REEBELEHERH )

(Continued)
Place of
Form of incorporation/
business  registration Group Proportion of Principal
Name structure  and operation equity interest voting power held activities
R/ F5E firfiR
£ RUFE — REERE it R TERH
2015 2014 2015 2014
ZE-1f “F-NF -R-Ef CT-MF
Shanghai Huasing International Incorporated PRC 40.0% Provision of
Container Freight Transportation =B HE container depot
Co., Ltd. * (‘Huasing’) and related
HEERRRSRNEEERAA" logistics services
(r£E)) REEERREES
*BRAE
hivevs
Qidong Singamas Offshore Incorporated PRC 65.0% 50.0% Manufacturing
Equipment Co. Ltd. ¢ EE HE (Note 1) of offshore containers
HEBmSTREERAR (Bt ) BUEBT £
# Equity joint venture established in the PRC in accordance # RIEE BEP R ERFE R 7 Z#Ems

with relevant laws and regulations

The voting power of the Group in respective joint
ventures is determined by the proportion of the
Group’s representatives in the board of directors of
respective joint ventures.

Note:

1 The Group’s additional capital injection to Modex in
2015, indirectly increased the Group’s equity interest in
Qidong Singamas Offshore Equipment Co. Ltd., from
64.3% to 65.0%.

Summarised financial information of a material joint
venture:

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material joint venture is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

BibE

AEERBZEFRELEZREETIR
ERAEEDINZERELENES
SRR 2P -

1 K E F R = F — 7 F ¥ Modex £ A BES)
B REEE R NG TR EEHIR
NAELZ R BT B 9 64.3% 12 12
65.0% °

BERABLENUHEMRE

BERARAEEEASELE ZMBER
ZEIIIT o Tz BB ERBIEBIR
BEABMHHRELARRENTHRE
BELEMBRRTARZEHE -

[ U B RN N T —
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20

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20 REELEER B
(Continued)
The joint venture is accounted for using the equity BELERAEB LGS W BMAIRAE
method in these consolidated financial statements. aEARR o
Huasing EER
2015 2014
—F-HF —T0OF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Current assets MEEE 8,516 8,791
Non-current assets ERBEE 22,182 24,867
Current liabilities nREBIE (9,087) (10,751)
Non-current liabilities ERBBE (146)
The above amounts of assets M EERAGEESRE
and liabilities include the following: EBENATHIER -
Cash and cash equivalents RekEFERRE 3,368
Current financial liabilities RBHERE
(excluding trade and other payables (B fERERBRFR »
and provisions) H b FETRR R B4 (5,067) (5,393)
Revenue EEE 27,984 30,974
Loss for the year FANEE (418) (1,817)
Other comprehensive expense FREMBEH
for the year (2,059) (142)
Total comprehensive expense FAEZEX N
for the year (2,477) (1,959)
The above loss for the year it e FEAREIE
include the following: EBRFENTHIER -
Depreciation and amortisation e N E 1,336
Interest income FEWA 36
Interest expense FERAXZ (379)
Income tax expense FT{SHiZ i 190
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20

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20

(Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest

Notes to the Financial Statements B} 3 M &

bt BA RS B R R B AR A B S SRR PR
RZEERERREE K

in Huasing recognised in the consolidated financial

statements:

2015 2014
—EB-RF —TNHF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Net assets of the joint venture BERRIZEETE 22,761
Proportion of the Group’s REEREEZ
ownership interest in Huasing PRt e 2 LAl 9,104
Goodwill RS 2,188
Effect of fair value adjustments at TEWEBE A 1 (BE AR
acquisition R E BI5T6
Other adjustments H A% (283)
Carrying amount of the Group’s REEREE
interest in Huasing 2 EmREE 16,585
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not B
individually material:
2015 2014
—E-RF —TNF
US$’000 US$’'000
FEx F=T
The Group’s share of profit AEBELHZAFE
for the year it 229
The Group’s share of AEEEGZEAN
other comprehensive HihZ2mE (2 ) Was
(expense) income 2
The Group’s share of AEEEGZFEA
total comprehensive income 2EKEBEE 231

E N 0 R e —
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21

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE AfHEZRE
INVESTMENT
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—NF
US$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Unlisted security JELETMES

— Equity security, at cost - BRAFES - IBRKA 6,608 6,608

The above unlisted investment represent investment
in a unlisted equity security issued by private
entity established in the PRC. It is measured at
cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that its fair value cannot
be measured reliably.

The Group’s unquoted equity investment
represented 14.0% (2014: 14.0%) equity interest
of Xiamen Superchain Logistics Development Co.,
Ltd., a logistic company in the PRC. Additional
capital investment of RMB30,562,000 (equivalent
to US$4,994,000) and RMB11,969,000 (equivalent
to US$1,956,000) was made by the Group and
the Company on 28 March 2014 according to their
equity interest ratio.

bl 3E ETRE SR A B A AR L2 AL
ANBEERBRITZIFLMBRARFRE -
HRAEARBEGAHEEXR - AR
AEERR/LAEBENEEAIETE - &
ZERER B WEHIRIZN AR E

| At
AlE °

AEERBZILTEFKRE BTG
EFIREMRERRMNBRAT14.0%
— TP 14.0%) IR ERER 0 Z
RB—ARHPEEEZYRAR - R
E-—NF=ZA=+N\B ' AEEEAK
RNAlD R FTE IR L B E D AR
30,562,000 ( 18 % 74,994,000
7T ) & A R #11,969,000 7T ( 18 & 7
1,956,000 37T ) KIEEINE AR E o
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22 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 22 FENHEERE

2015 2014
—F-HF ZT-MF
US$000  US$'000

FEx TET

The Group’s prepaid lease AEE 2 FENEENRIE
payments comprise: B -

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong:  E&ENAIMEE 2 HE b -

Medium-term lease FREATRAY 57,213
Analysed for reporting purpose as: MMEMER 22T -
Amount shown under RIERDEEERZ R
non-current assets 55,904
Amount shown under current assets RRBIEE R 5 1,309
57,213
23 DEPOSITS FOR NON-CURRENT 23 FRBEERZRS
ASSETS
2015 2014

—E-EF CZTWOF
US$’000 US$’000

FEx FET
Deposits paid for property, [SANEZER T
plant and equipment MEEES
(Note i) (Hiati) 679
Deposits paid for prepaid BEfNENEE
lease payments (Note i) RIBE® (M) 9,122

9,801

e

(I

RN T U Bl — T .



218

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements &1 #& k& ki

23

24

DEPOSITS FOR NON-CURRENT

23 IRBEERESH)

ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: Htat:

i At the end of the reporting period, deposit of i REHEK - ENALEH2273,0007T (18
RMBZ2,273,000 (equivalent to US$350,000) (2014: £R350,000% ) (ZF—PYF - ARK
RMB4,155,000 (equivalent to US$679,000)) had been 4,155,000 7 (15 7:679,000% 7)) (£
paid for the purchases of property, plant and equipment. HBEWE  BERREZIET - BB THE
The remaining balance was disclosed as capital ERWIE41 EXFEIERE - IWERR
commitment as set out in Note 41. The acquisition is BB R F—NFETH
expected to complete in 2016.

ii At the end of the reporting period, partial payments i R#BEHK FHCZZTARK
for the acquisition of land use rights in Qidong, the 142,950,000 7t (1A 22,014,000 %)
PRC, amounting to RMB142,950,000 (equivalent to ZEF—PyaF - AR #55820,000T (18
US$22,014,000) (2014: RMB55,820,000 (equivalent £1.9,122,000E 5T ) ) (EABEA TR A [E
to US$9,122,000)) had been made by the Group, for BRI AR ES (D E - FERE
the development of new factories. The land use right IR - R-F—aF+—H=1+—H"
certificates have not yet been obtained by the Group as FEEARRIZZ LI E I E - WTH
at 31 December 2015 and expected to obtain in 2016. FHRR = F— N FANERTF

INVENTORIES 24 FE

2015 2014
—E-HE —ZT—UF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FZET
Raw materials R # 69,412 116,438
Work in progress et 23,760 54,148
Finished goods 2URK o 64,035 62,327
157,207 232,913

The entire carrying amounts of inventories as at RZE-—RFR-ZZT—MF+=A

31 December 2015 and 2014 are expected to be
recovered within the next twelve months.

=t HNEFEZREFERR/A
FEARKA—ER RHEIE -
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25 REUWER

2015 2014
—E-RHF ZTNF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx F=ET

Trade receivables JE YBR TR
Less: allowance for doubtful debts

B RIRERER

147,418 248,718
(653) =

Total trade receivables 48 FE W BR 3R

146,765 248,718

A defined credit policy is maintained within the
Group. The credit terms are agreed with each of its
trade customers depending on the creditworthiness
of the customers ranging from 30 days to 120 days
(2014: 30 days to 120 days).

The aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for doubtful debts, which is prepared
based on invoice date of each transaction, which
approximated the respective revenue recognition
dates, at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

AEEDHE—ERRZEERR - 5
EHH30RE 120 AN E (T —M4F -
H30KE120KTE)  BFEFPZ2E
EmME  AEEESEFD G EEME
REZERIEK -

R IR 2 R WOR BUR R E R
(NBRXHZHZBTE - WEIEE
WAFER B EIMER)) 2 BRECDMTIA T -

2015 2014
—F-HF Z—FTAF
US$000  US$'000

FEx FET
0 to 30 days TE=1+X 101,864 146,108
31 to 60 days =t—EXTX 30,124 76,128
61 to 90 days AT—EATK 8,046 12,270
91 to 120 days AT—Z—B=Z+X 610 4,280
Over 120 days —BZTRHME 6,121 9,932

146,765 248,718

The Group assessed the credit quality of trade
receivables based on historical default rates and the
creditworthiness of the customers. An aggregate
amount of US$102,024,000 was subsequently
settled.

AEBREFSHEARLERL 22
FEEWER 2 EEEZ - EHhAaH
102,024,000 £ L E R BRI [E] -

[ U B RN N T —
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25 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

25 REWERR @)

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
US$23,065,000 (2014: US$46,717,000) which are
past due at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for allowance. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances. The Group
has assessed the creditworthiness and historical
default rates of these customers, trade receivables
that are past due but not impaired have very low
historical default rates and have high credit-rating
within the industry. In this regard, the directors of the
Company considered that the default risk is low.

The aged analysis, based on invoice date of each
transaction, of trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired is as follows:

AEERImE R 2 EWEFRBELEER
HEE{E4 £ 23,065,000% L (=& —M
F 1 46,717,0003€ 7T ) 2 8 HA FE Y BR
Ko MRS B & A ZE KR RIERE
IR - NEEERZ S MR ENRK
oo AEBEMEZERFZEEK
FESLHE /R K - @ BB R VERUE A FE UK BR
KB ELHR ERERRITRES S
SEFL - At - ARBESRAEHE
HRBRIK -

BEHERERERNRBBERK (ABRR
HZERBE) ZBREDITINT -

2015 2014

—E-RHF —ZT—NF

US$’000 US$’000

FEx FET

31 to 60 days =t—=xtX 29,271

61 to 90 days ~NTt—Z2NtTX 5,160

91 to 120 days AWt+—Z—8=+X 4,108

Over 120 days —BZTRMNUE 8,178

46,717

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: REBREE L EHIT

2015 2014

—E-HF —ZT—NF

US$’000 US$’000

FEx F=T

Balance at the beginning of the year ~ F ¥4 %% -

Provision for doubtful debts EERRIBRER
recognised on receivables

Amounts written off as uncollectible  FF#§ T BEW A 2 £ 58

Balance at the end of the year FRREER -
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PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2015, prepayments and other
receivables included advanced of US$11,528,000
(2014: US$67,708,000) to certain suppliers as
deposits for raw materials purchases. The remaining
balance was mainly included refundable value
added tax and other advance payments. The entire
amount is expected to be recovered/realised within
the next twelve months.

AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO
IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY

Before 1 April 2014, the ultimate and immediate
holding company of the Company was PIL, a
company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore.
With effect from 1 April 2014, PIL became a wholly
owned subsidiary of PIL Holdings, a company newly
incorporated in the Republic of Singapore. Since
then, the ultimate holding company is PIL Holdings
and the immediate holding company is PIL.

The general credit term for trade balances with
immediate holding company is 60 days (2014: 60
days). No allowance on doubtful debts has been
provided during the year.

26

27

AN R EAb YRR

RN-_ZE—HAF+-_A=+—8 " BHK
H b e W GRI8 B 35781 11,528,000 F 7T
(ZZE—P4 : 67,708,000%7T) FZ K
HEFEABERMAIES  BELTE
BIEMRIBER R R EMIEN K - %K
BEHATRERER+ —EARKEIER -

P FEEEIER A RIFIE

R-ZE—MFEMNA—BR - ARAH&
BEBEEERAB AR M - 227
ERFTINE HEMBEK Y 2 BRAA] © B
—E—HEMA—BRE KB
APIL Holdings 2 2 BB A Al » %A
a] & — ER TN A BT K2 A
Al Bt ARRIZHEEIERARIRE
YRR A )9 5 A PIL Holdings & A F
a7 o

BEEBRATNESEEEEH K2
BOKR(ZZ—PUF : 60K) c RFEEIW
R VERIBIREL -

R 0 U st RSN .
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27

28

AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO 27 FEWENEEZRRATRRE
IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY (%)
(Continued)
The aged analysis of amount due from immediate RBEARZEEZERARRIB(AE
holding company, which is prepared based TR ZEZAFE - W EMERERARE
on invoice date of each transaction, which REHELD) 2 RE T T -
approximated the respective revenue recognition
dates, at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:
2015 2014
—E-FHE ZEF
US$’000 US$’000
FER FET
0 to 30 days TE=FX =
31 to 60 days =t+t—=~t+XK -
61 to 90 days NT—ZENTRK -
91 to 120 days At+—ZE—BZ+X =
Over 120 days —BZt+RME -
The amount due to immediate holding company REE 2 ENEEZERARZIEY AE
was unsecured, interest free and repayable on R REERRSERETEENREE -
demand.
AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW 28 EWEZAMNEAARE

SUBSIDIARIES

The general credit term for trade balances with
fellow subsidiaries is 60 days (2014: 60 days). No
allowance on doubtful debts has been provided
during the year.

RRAMBRARMNEZHEEEEH K2
BOK(ZZE—MF :60K) c KFEEIW
RBVERIZRAEM -
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28 AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW 28 EWERAMEDBRE )
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
The aged analysis of amount due from fellow R ERRZEARMBRRRIE(AE
subsidiaries, which is prepared based on invoice TRPZEZHFE - WEAREKARE
date of each transaction, which approximated the REBHNELY) 2 BRESITUT -
respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:
2015 2014
—E-HEF CZTWOmF
US$’000 US$’'000
FTErx T
0 to 30 days TE=FK 42,040
31 to 60 days =t—=xtX 154
61 to 90 days AT—EATR 140
91 to 120 days At+t—=2—F=+X 87
Over 120 days —BZTXRNUE 31
42,452

For the year ended 31 December 2015, amount
due from fellow subsidiaries with aggregate carrying
amount of US$5,194,000 (2014: US$412,000) was
past due at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.
The Group assessed the credit quality of fellow
subsidiaries based on historical default rates and
the creditworthiness. In this regard, the directors of
the Company considered that the default risk is low.
Accordingly, no impairment has been provided.

R-E—RE+-_A=+—0" FElk
AREMBARFNERLSERAERA &
5,194,000 7T ( =& — Y4 : 412,000
EIU) 2 MEAEYERSR - M AR B &
RZEWARKIERER M - NEEHZ
SRBIENRERR - XEBREBEE
FHREREBTHRRMBATZE
BEEZ-Alt ARAESERAEHEY
[BUF K - R B E A o

[ U B RN N T —
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28

29

30

31

AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW 28 EWERAMNEDBRE )
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
The aged analysis, based on invoice date of each BHEAE R VERE A FE U B R B A R 3K
transaction, of amount due from fellow subsidiaries BHNBRRG2EZAHE) 2RED
which are past due but not impaired is as follows: e -
2015 2014
—EB-HF —TNF
US$’000 US$’'000
FEx FET
31 to 60 days =t—=xtX 154
61 to 90 days ANT—EATR 140
91 to 120 days At+—=2—B=+X 87
Over 120 days —BZtTRNUE 31
412
AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT 20 EWEELERE
VENTURES
Included in the amounts due from joint ventures, FRERKEAEELEREH ARK
an amount of RMB39,000,000 (equivalent to 39,000,000 7T ( 18 %5 72 6,006,000 % 7T )
US$6,006,000) (2014: RMB39,000,000 (equivalent (ZZ=—m4F : AR 39,000,000t (48
to US$6,667,000) was unsecured, interest bearing Z£126,667,0003TT) AR K& F &
at 8% per annum and repayable in three years. The 8%MABEMEN EXHA=F - E&p
remaining balance was unsecured, interest free and FEHREER 2EEREEREE
repayable on demand. ERAHE -
AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES 30 FEUWE:E A RIFIR
Included in the amounts due from associates, 7 JE Bt & /X BI3KIBH - 10,000,000 2
an amount of US$10,000,000 was unsecured, TTRBEERRENER7%ME B
interest bearing at 7% per annum and repayable RZF—tF+—AERK - ERFKIEY
in November 2017. The remaining balance was REER . REERKEERETEERA
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. HY o
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 31 RITEHRRERE

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.01% to 5.1% (2014: 0.01% to 5.5%)
per annum.

IRITHE1K0.01%E51%( T — K@M
F 1 0.01%%E5.5%) 2 TS FEFRTE -
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TRADE PAYABLES 32 FEMNERM
The aged analysis, based on the invoice date of RBEHRR - BIER(AEBRRSZ
each transaction, of trade payables at the end of BEAFE) ZRESTAOT
the reporting period is as follows:
2015 2014
—E-FHE ZEF
US$’000 US$’000
FErx F=
0 to 30 days TE=+XK 94,168
31 to 60 days =T—FEXRTRX 48,027
61 to 90 days NT—ZRTX 28,035
91 to 120 days At+—ZE2—BZ+X 23,208
Over 120 days —BZtARAUE 11,057
204,495
The average credit period on purchases of goods FEEMcTFHIEERRNKR(ZE
is 52 (2014: 62) days. The Group has financial risk —MO4F : 62K) - AEEEHIE2RE
management policies in place to ensure that all Bea 478 1) IR PR AR BT B 9 B9 1215 A B
payables are settled within the credit timeframe. PRA o
BILLS PAYABLE 33 ENRE
The aged analysis, based on issuance date of each RWEER BNER(UEBRERZ
bills, of bills payable at the end of the reporting BITHFTE) 2RO -
period is as follows:
2015 2014
—EB-RF —TNHF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
0 to 30 days TE=+XK 38,001
31 to 60 days =F+—FERTRX 18,212
61 to 90 days AtTt—Z2htTK 23,888
91 to 120 days NT—Z—8B=+X 4,778
Over 120 days —BZtXRAUE -

84,879
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34

35

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accruals and other payables consisted of advances
from customers, provision of staff cost and selling
expenses and other accrued expenses for the both
year ended 2015 and 2014.

Included in the other payables was a provision
amounting to US$2,402,000 in current year’s profit
or loss regarding the loss from the Incident as
disclosed in Note 4.

Based on the information available so far, the
directors of the Company do not consider that the
Incident will have a material financial impact on the
Group as a whole.

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURES

The amounts due to associates and joint ventures
are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand. The directors of the Company expected
the amounts will be repaid within twelve months
after the end of the reporting period.

34

35

PEST A I ELfth FE A RR X
RoB—RER-T-NFFREAN
FEET B A R AR RN R EREEN
o BEMARMERAER R
FEHELA o

B RRBIENH T4 EER
ZEWEI BB ARFEEBENERE
42,402,000 3T 2 B -

FBEAMAL  REABER  ARAE
RRALEHHAREBRETIEERE
REATEHE -

BNBELAARGELENRE

AEBZENBERARRAEELENA
B RERR - REERRBEEER
BH - KRR EZARZFTIAFER
FEIRE A+ B ARSI
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36 BANK BORROWINGS 36 SRITER

2015 2014
—F-HF ZT-MF
US$000  US$'000

FErn FET
Bank borrowings RITERELE -
comprise the following:
Bank loans RITER
Unsecured 44K
— within 1 year — AR—FRNEER 70,000 62,564
— more than 1 vyear, — ERE-FNRN
but not exceeding EE
2 years 245,000 70,000
— more than 2 years, — ERE=
but not exceeding ERAFAERZR
5 years 245,000
315,000 377,564
Less: Amount due within B AR —FAER
one year shown W REBE
under current EWMIEE
liabilities (70,000) (62,564)
Amount due after one year AR —FIREE
shown under non-current W IERED
liabilities BEERCEHE 245,000 315,000
On 24 September 2013, the Company entered into RZZE—=FNAZ+MA ' AAFH
a facility agreement with a syndicate of banks in —3#RE RT3 7 310,000,000% 7t 2 7E HA
respect of a US$310 million term loan and revolving KA ZEEEHZE - RS - AR
credit facilities for a term of four years. Repayments “E-RFNAZTHBERBRER  H
commenced on 24 September 2015 and will ZT—EFAAZTHBETRFE -
continue until 24 September 2017.
All bank loans are unsecured and mainly carry FIARITERDERBERY FZE AR
interest at either LIBOR or borrowing rate offered by FRITRAEFEIFEARBRITAMZ
the People’s Bank of China plus certain basis points BRAMENMEFEESAE M ERE
and are repayable over a period range from one FBFHEER—ZEZENF - FEEE
to four years. Interest is repriced every one to six —ZXEABEE - EFXRBEERE
months. The proceeds were largely used to finance TEBAFERDESHT °

the working capital of the Group during the year.

O 0 0 B RN N —
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36

37

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 36 W|MITERE)
The ranges of effective annual interest rates for the RZE—AF AEERITERZER
year 2015 on the Group’s bank borrowings were FREEED B AE1.07%E5.32% (=
1.07% 10 5.32% (2014: 1.48% to 6.55%). P04 1 1.48% £6.55%) °
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s bank REMEER - NEEZEBERUED
borrowings that are denominated in currencies other BEEEER ZRITERET :
than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entity are set out below:
2015 2014
—F-HF ZT-MF
US$’000 US$'000
FErn FET
RVB AR - 3,623
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 37 fTE€mIA

INSTRUMENTS

In order to minimise the Group’s interest rate risk
exposure arising from the US$310,000,000 term
loan, the Company entered into three interest rate
swap contracts, with a total notional amount of
US$186,000,000, to fix the monthly LIBOR at a
range of 0.8775% to 0.8800%. The three interest
rate swap contracts will mature on 24 September
2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
loss on changes in fair value of the interest rate
swaps amounting to US$259,000 (2014: gain of
US$239,000) has been recognised in profit or loss.

A 7R R 2N 5 [ 310,000,000 E 7T E
HHFEFﬁFEZ%IJWHA ZA/NTEI RV
=7 #a% % © %8 5186,000,000 3 7T
Z%IJQE,HJ%:.,G AEE & A mBERTT
B 2F BN F0.8775% £0.8800 % 2
M- E=—MmFAERBHAENZHHAA
T—+tFNAZ+MA -

HE_Z—RAF+=-A=+—H1"
MEBEHENMEENAABEEE
A259,000E L (ZF—MF : W= A
289,000%7T) © WHNBZEFER o
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38 SHARE CAPITAL 38 BA&
Number of shares Share Capital
e R
2015 2014 2015 2015 2014 2014
b S —T-mE -1 ZB-1F R OF CZ-IF
US$'000 HK$'000 US$'000 HK$'000
TEn ThRL TET TAL
Authorised: A -
At beginning of the year £9)
— ordinary shares of - ERRER
HK$0.10 each HE0.10ET 3,000,000,000 38,649 300,000
At end of the year 18 Note a Note a Note a
fiita Hiita fiita
Issued and fully paid: BERETRAR :
At beginning of the year &4 2,418,419.918 RPN AICRIE] 268,149 2,078,513 31,185 242,042
Transfer from share premium ~ RE#EET 2
upon abolition of par value BB DR
under the new Hong Kong REVBRAE
Companies Ordinance B ERH
B - - 236,964 1,836,471

Share repurchase (Note b) R (Hrs) (1,500,000) (2,000,000)

At end of the year FaR

Note:

Under the CO (Cap. 622), with effect from 3 March 2014,
the concept of authorised share capital no longer exists
and the Company’s shares no longer have a par value.
There is no impact on the number of shares in issue or
the relative entitlement of any of the shareholders as a
result of this transition.

PRALRIEI N 2,418,419,918 268,149 2,078,513 268,149 2,078,513

Mt

RIFEE R AP (BB %N FE 6228 )
EERABI R E = E—F=H=HE
ETFE > AR AR I B E E
18 - WE1EETET B BT 2 #7THR AR89 20 A 30 1F
1R AV EFY I AR L EY A

I

Il
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38

W
©

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

b For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
purchased 1,000,000 of its own ordinary shares of
the Company on 22 January 2015 at the highest and
lowest prices of HK$1.22 and HK$1.20 per share
respectively. The aggregate purchase price paid for the
share repurchase was approximately HK$1,206, 160
(equivalent to US$157,000). The share repurchase
represented approximately 0.0413% of the total number
of issued shares of the Company immediately prior to
such repurchase. The Company purchased 500,000 of
its own ordinary shares of the Company on 7 September
2015 at the highest and lowest prices of HK$1.05 and
HK$1.00 per share respectively. The aggregate purchase
price paid for the share repurchase was approximately
HK$517,560 (equivalent to US$67,000). The share
repurchase represented approximately 0.0207% of
the total number of issued shares of the Company
immediately prior to such repurchase. The Company
has cancelled these 1,500,000 ordinary shares on 30
January 2015 and 30 September 2015 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company
purchased 2,000,000 of its own ordinary shares of
the Company on 15 December 2014 at the highest
and lowest prices of HK$1.29 and HK$1.23 per share
respectively. The aggregate purchase price paid for the
share repurchase was approximately HK$2,524,860
(equivalent to US$327,000). The share repurchase
represented approximately 0.0826 % of the total number
of issued shares of the Company immediately prior
to such repurchase. The Company cancelled these
2,000,000 ordinary shares on 30 December 2014.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”), was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 1 June 2007 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors of the Company
and eligible employees of the Group, and may
be terminated by resolution in general meeting.
Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company
may grant options to qualifying grantees, including
employees or directors of the Company of the
Company and/or the Group.

38

39

R (&)

Het - (48

b P E—AFF—A=1+—H ZFRA
REZF—AF—A=Z+ZAZFERS
1BR&R1.228 T R R IE K 1.208 7T
BBl K2 7] 1,000,000 8 2 ZEAE - B
R17FEEIRfE B (B & #4975 1,206,160
T ($HER 167,000 5T) © R 175 Bl115 2
RAREEZFHEEF B FETR (48 %
#70.0413% °c AR AR =ZF—AHFNA
+ ARG E R 1.058 7T REE
1BAFAR 1.00,8 7T f# [61 4 22 5] 500,000 8.2
B ERGBEIEEESRAE
517,660% 7T (16 % 67,0003 7T ) ° fi%
DEBEIE A LR AR E B2 Z OB B %77
SR 1548 20470.0207% ° 5% 1,500,000 8.2
BERS IR —FE—RnFE—A=1+HAEN
H=1Hit8 -

I ECE—EF - A=4+—F AR A
R-F—WFE+ A+ HAARERS
BHR1.298 T R R IXIEFIK1.238 7T
B 51K 2 7] 2,000,000 8 2 ZiEE - B
R17FE 0% B (B & 24 /3 2,624,860
JL (HHER327,000% L) ° [R5 B EIHE A
R EAREZZ SR D #7715 48 2047
0.0826% ° % 2,000,000 %2 &8 K71 —
FE—pEf - H=1Hi -

U3

RIER —TZLE A — BRBARIRE
= AREZBERERE (T4 E)) =
ZHNARBEFIAKE S ERE
8 ZETEIAERRAS L HEEBRIR
B - RIBZATE - ARREFA
REBRETRERARA  BREARQ
AN/ BAEE BERES -
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, the number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Scheme was
17,602,000 (2014: 17,602,000), representing
approximately 0.73% (2014: 0.73%) of the shares
of the Company in issue at that date. The total
number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
on the adoption date, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options
granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue on the offer
date without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive
directors of the Company in excess of 0.1% of the
Company'’s share capital or with a value in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company'’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days
from the date of offer. An aggregate of HK$1 is
payable by each qualifying grantee on acceptance
of the offer. Options may be exercised within the
option period (must not exceed 10 years from the
date of grant of the relevant option) which shall be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at
the time of grant. The exercise price is determined
by the directors of the Company, and will not be
less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s
share.

Share options of 7,170,000 underlying shares were
granted on 1 July 2010 at the exercise price of
HK$1.38.

39

PR & )

R-ZE—FRFE+-_A=+—8" B
Z:tE1B 17,602,000/ ( —ZF — P04 -
17,602,00017 ) & i & B m AR 1T1E < B
Bt - (AR EIRZ BB BT 2R MK
0.73% (ZZF— 4 : 0.73%) ° AR
RNTRRBLIE - RIBZAT S %
HEBIE TS MR B8 - TRBIBEAR
ANEIRETEIRIBHBEITIRG 10% © 10
REGEARNBIR R B S E - FLEMER
ANTFTER RS ER 7 BREmMEIT R
BT ZRNEE - TEBARAFTRN
REBREHEEITRD 1% HTEE
RSB IFARITEE 2 BRES BB
KA AR 0.1% BB 4838 5,000,000
PETC + INABAS AN A BRI R B RTHOAE o

B2 BREENTBENE T AR
28 BN - BERSIR T 26 BRK
BRABL 42581570 - BRERBR
FERRR AT BERF T TR (3 AR A R A e
EHEATEBE10FE) BEAHEES
RELEBEERAE - THERESE
T BAMER ()R H A EAR R D UK
ME: (\ZEFLEHAFEEXERK
MDFHRHE R (i) AR TROHEE=
EZEEE -

N_ZE—ZFTF+H—HB®EE 7,170,000
M1TEE 1.38 8 T 2 FERERERRAE -

R 8 K s — T .
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39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continuved) 39 ARz (#)

Share options of 8,860,000 underlying shares were RZ—ZEZE)\F )\ A/5BE T 8,860,000
granted on 6 August 2008 at the initial exercise BHIRITEEE £1.938 T 2 A K
price of HK$1.93 and adjusted to HK$1.48. B BT EREEAEE1.488TT °

Share options of 20,300,000 underlying shares were RZZEZELELFARAZTABER

granted on 28 June 2007 at the initial exercise price 20,300,000 A AT TR(E /514 B T2

of HK$5.14 and adjusted to HK$3.93. R - AITEERRAEE3.93
BT °

Details are as follows: EIEECNE

Number of options Vesting period

BRERE BE 58

Exercisable period

TR

Option granted on 28 June 2007:
RZZTHFRA =+ N\ BRI EARRE :

6,766,666 28 June 2007 to 27 June 2008
—ZETHFEXRA=-TNBE
—ZEZN\FNA=-++H

6,766,667 28 June 2007 to 27 June 2009
—ETHFEXRA-TNBE
—ETNFAAZ++EAR

6,766,667 28 June 2007 to 27 June 2010
—ZETHFEXRA-TNBE
—E—ZTFA=++H

Option granted on 6 August 2008:
RZZTNFEN\ASBREHERRE :

2,953,333 6 August 2008 to 5 August 2009
—EENFNARBE
—ETNFNHAAR

2,953,333 6 August 2008 to 5 August 2010
—ZEENFNARBE

== ) ]

2,953,334 6 August 2008 to 5 August 2011
—EZNFN\ARBE
—Z—F)\HAH

28 June 2008 to 27 June 2017
—ZEZN\FERNA=TNBE
—T—+FRA=t++A

28 June 2009 to 27 June 2017
—ZETAFANA=TN\BE
—T—+tFRA=++A

28 June 2010 to 27 June 2017
—Z-ZTFEXA=-T+N\BE
—T—+tFRA=++A

6 August 2009 to 5 August 2018
—ZTNFENAREE
—E-N\FEN\HRHE

6 August 2010 to 5 August 2018
—T-TF/\ARAE
—E-N\FEN\HRHE

6 August 2011 to 5 August 2018
—Z——F\AREZE
—E-N\FEN\HRHE
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39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continuved) 39 ARz (#)

Number of options

BRERE

Vesting period
BEEHA

Exercisable period
TEHE

Option granted on 1 July 2010:
NZT—TF A —HRDOEERE
2,390,000 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2011
—TETFLA-HE
—T——FA=+H
2,390,000 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2012
—TETFLA-HE
—T——FA=+H
2,390,000 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2013
—TETFLA-HE
—T—=F,"A=+H

2015
The following table discloses the Company’s share

options held by employees (including directors of
the Company):

1 July 2011 to 30 June 2020
—T——F+HA—HE
—ZE-TFANA=1H

1 July 2012 to 30 June 2020
—T——_F+HA—HE
—ZE-TFANA=1H

1 July 2013 to 30 June 2020
—T—=F+HA—HZE
—ZE-TFANA=1H
—E—-HF

TEREERE (BRES) IKARAE
Pt 2 515 -

Outstanding at
1 January Reclassification
2015  adjustment

R-E-1E

-A-H
HASTE PERE
'000 '000

Directors EH
Employees (8

Granted Exercised Forfeited Outstanding at
during during during 31 December
the year the year the year 2015
R-2-1%

RER t=A=t+-B

FRRH FRfTE W WRATE
'000 '000 '000 '000

RN T U Bl — T .
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The following table discloses the movements of

39 LRAX#)

TRABEMRFREARRBEREL

the Company’s share options by the vesting period FREDH :
during the year.
Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited  Outstanding
1 January during during during 31 December
2015 the year the year the year 2015
R=2-1f R=B-1f
—-A-H RER  +ZA=t-H
BRI FREH Rl BRl HRATHE
'000 000 '000 000 '000
(Note)
(H2)

Granted on 28 June 2007: RoEELERA-TN\BRL
- with vesting period of -BEBR_TTLE

28 June 2007 to ~NAZTNAZE

27 June 2008 ZER\ERAZTEA
— with vesting period of -HEHB-STtF

28 June 2007 to ~AZTNBE

27 June 2009 “ERNEAACTLA
— with vesting period of -HEHB-STLF

28 June 2007 to ~AZTNBE

27 June 2010 “E-TESA-THA
Granted on 6 August 2008: RZEENENARBRL :
- with vesting period of -HEEm-EEN\E

6 August 2008 to NBRAZ

5 August 2009 ZEINEN\ATRR
- with vesting period of -SEEB_RR\E

6 August 2008 to NB<AZ

5 August 2010 “E-SE/\ARA
- with vesting period of -SEHB_REN\E

6 August 2008 to AV TaY= S

5 August 2011 —Z—E/\AEA
Granted on 1 July 2010; RZE-FELA-BRM:
— with vesting period of -BEHn=5-%F

1July 20100 tA—-RZE

30 June 2011 “E——%7A=1H
— with vesting period of -BEHn=5-%F

1.July 20100 tA—-RZ

30 June 2012 “E-CERA=1H
- with vesting period of -HEBE-3-%F

1July 20100 tH-AZ

30 June 2013 Z3-=FxA=1H
Exercisable at the end RELA TR

of the year

Weighted average exercise price METHTHE

(HK$)

(1)
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39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continueds) 39 AR ()
2014 —T—F
The following table discloses the Company’s share TREZERES (BIEES) MEARAE
options held by employees (including directors of IRt 2 5F15
the Company):
QOutstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeited ~ Outstanding at
1 January - Reclassffication during during during 31 December
2014 adjustment the year the year the year 2014
RZE-ME RIZ-MmE
—A-R RER T-A=1—-8
RATTEE HERE EREL Enfre inL AT
'000 '000 '000 000 '000 '000
(Notg)
(Hit)
Directors £z 13,567 - - - - 13,567
Employees [E& 4315 - - - (280) 4,035
17,882 = = = (280) 17,602
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39 BIRARx @)
TRABEE BR A D AR

39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The following table discloses the movements of

the Company’s share options by the vesting period FRNEF
during the year.
QOutstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited QOutstanding
1 January during during during 31 December
2014 the year the year the year 2014
RZZ-MF \ RZE-IE
—A—A ) . RER +ZA=1-H
MR EREl EMTR RN HATTR
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000
(Note)
(Hi#)
Granted on 28 June 2007: RIZRLESAZT\REL :
- with vesting period of S
28 June 2007 to ~AZTNBE
27 June 2008 “ERN\ERAZTLA 4,616 - - (87) 4,529
— with vesting period of HEHE-S5 A
28 June 2007 to ~AZTNBE
27 June 2009 ZEENEAAZTEA 4,616 - - 87) 4529
— with vesting period of -HEHE-SE A
28 June 2007 to ~AZTNBE
27 June 2010 ZE-FERACTLA 4,616 - - 87) 4529
Granted on 6 August 2008: RZEENENARBRL :
- with vesting period of e e YA
6 August 2008 to JAV; Ik
5 August 2009 “ERNE/\ALB 121 - - ) 120
- with vesting period of e e S
6 August 2008 to NBRAZE
5 August 2010 “2-%%)\A1A 178 - - ) 172
- with vesting period of e e YAt
6 August 2008 to NBRAZE
5 August 2011 —“T—%)\A1A 690 - - (17) 673
Granted on 1 July 2010: RZE-BELA-BRL:
- with vesting period of -FEHm-2-5F
1July 20100 tH-AZ
30 June 2011 “E——%7A=1H 3713 - - - 3713
- with vesting period of -FEHm-E-2F
1.July 20100 tH-AZ
30 June 2012 “E-C%5A=1H 1207 - - - 107
- with vesting period of -FEHm-E-2F
1.July 20100 tH-AZ
30 June 2013 “Z-=FXA=1H 1,380 - - - 1,380
17,882 - - (280) 17,602
Exercisable at the end RELEA TR
of the year 17,882 17,602
Weighted average exercise price  MEFSS77(% B (B7T)
(HKS) 339 - - 376 335
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Note:

The forfeiture represented the share options granted to the
eligible directors of the Company and employees of the Group,
which were forfeited upon their resignations in both years.

For the share options granted on 1 July 2010, the
fair value of the options determined at the date
of grant using the Binomial option pricing model
ranged from HK$0.61 to HK$0.81.

The following assumptions were used to calculate
the fair values of share options granted on 1 July
2010:

Closing share price at the date of grant HK$1.54
Exercise price HK$1.38
Option life 10 years
Expected volatility 65%
Semi-annual dividend yield 1.7%
Risk-free interest rate 2.29%

For the share options granted on 6 August 2008,
the fair value of the options determined at the date
of grant using the Binomial option pricing model
ranged from HK$0.53 to HK$0.72.

The following assumptions were used to calculate
the fair values of share options granted on 6 August
2008:

Closing share price at the date of grant HK$1.83
Exercise price HK$1.93
Option life 10 years
Expected volatility 45%
Semi-annual dividend yield 2.8%
Risk-free interest rate 3.55%

For the share options granted on 28 June 2007,
the fair value of the options determined at the date
of grant using the Binomial option pricing model
ranged from HK$1.62 to HK$2.52.

39

RN #)

Hret:

WORMIER T A KB A EIEEF L IER a)fE /R 12

HZFEA LB RIF BT ORI -

RN-ZE—ZTF+H—H BREZAR
BEDEAZEAREEERANKD
HEETA0.61B7TL20.81/8TT °

R-Z-TFLA-BRONBEREZ
DA BEIREBEATNRREEEE

R R (E 15477
I B 1.38787C
BhRiE 2 BB 104F
TEHRR IR 65%
FFERBE 1.7%
f [E e B K 2.29%
RZZBEZENFENANRB  BREZDR

BENEAZEABHETEEARE L
HHEFEAO0L3BILEO072HTT ©

R-ZZEZNFN\ARNARENEREZ
NABEIMRBEATRRBEET

AT B Eim T (B 1.8387T
1TEfE 1.93/87T
fEiRE 2 B 104
TEERK IR 45%
FEEREX 2.8%
mEp B X 3.55%
RZZEZLFNAZTNE - BREZ
AABENER B PETEEAR

BHBAEETA1.628TE2.52/8TT ©
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39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The following assumptions were used to calculate
the fair values of share options granted on 28 June

2007:

Closing share price at the date of grant HK$5.25
Exercise price HK$5.14
Option life 10 years
Expected volatility 48%
Semi-annual dividend yield 1%
Risk-free interest rate 4.78%

Immediate after the rights issue became unconditional
in 2009, adjustments were made to the exercise
price and the number of outstanding share options
to subscribe for shares granted pursuant to the share
option scheme.

The following table sets out the adjustments on the

39 LRAX#)

R-ZBE+ERNA-ZTN\BEEER
EZAREBEDNBEATRREIEE

T
PR B ER T (B 5.25%8 7T
1B 51478 7C
BiRE 2 BRUN 104
TEHER & 1R 48%
FFEREE 1%
mE b B X 4.78%

EER _ETNFHBRE KT LR -
RIFBEESIRHAERBBER KR
TR BRENTEERBRECIFLH
2

TREJIBREAEN _FTNEZH

share option scheme in 2009: B’
Before adjustments After adjustments
A BEE
Exercise Exercise
price of  Number of price of  Number of
each option share options each option share options
SRRE SRkE
Date of grant REAH THEE BREZE TEE BREZE
(HKS) (HKS)
(B7) ()
28 June 2007 RZZET+EAZ+/\R 514 18,400,000 3.93 24,039,600
6 August 2008 RZEZTN\F/\ARAH 1.93 8,740,000 148 11,418,810
Total number of options i a 35,458,410

The Binomial option pricing model has been used to
estimate the fair values of the options. The variables
and assumptions used in computing the fair values
of the share options are based on the directors of
the Company’ best estimate. The value of an option
varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

No share option expense was recognised for both
years.

27,140,000

BREZ A ABEDER -BAHEE
BRAEE - RAEAABERERD

BHMBRIRBES CRAEEE -
IR L T ERR - BIERE 2 EE

Ve Al L T B

“E-NFER-ZT-HF MFALE
RS -
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40 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 40 EEFRIBEE
The following are the major deferred tax assets FEERAFERAIFEHEAEERER
(iabilities) recognised by the Group and movements REEHIESE (BR)ER RAZHN
thereon during the current and prior years: N

Accelerated

tax Undistributed Other
depreciation profits assets Total
EHTE AOE
RBE wH  HttEE e

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000

TET TET TET TET

At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—NFE—A—H 297 (7,591) (334) (7,628)
Credit (charge) to profit or BEF AR (STiH)
loss (Note 14) (K1t 14) 51 (1,830) ) (1,788)

At 31 December 2014 R-ZT—INEF

+-A=1+—8 348 (9,421) (343) (9,416)
Credit (charge) to profit or B AR (2iH)
loss (Note 14) (Bt 14) 33 1,276 (103) 1,206

At 31 December 2015 R=-Z—F1fF

+=ZHA=+—H 381 (8,145) (446) (8,210)
Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC, BEFRHCEMEHE  FERBA
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared A BEARREBERER _ZTTNF
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries, —A—BERERERAEFBERIRER o
associates and joint ventures from 1 January 2008 1,276,000 T 2 IEERIBE R (=ZF
onwards. Deferred tax credit of US$1,276,000 —PH4 1,830,000k ) BatAZ
(2014: charge of US$1,830,000) on the undistributed T-RFtTA=+—HILFEBRIE
earnings of PRC subsidiaries, associates and joint RABEMBAR BERARIREEDRHE
ventures has been credited/charged to the profit or RIERE R F 2 FBERHIER R, S H -

loss for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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40

41

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 40 ELEBEEE (2
(Continued)
At 31 December 2015, the Group has unused tax RZZE—RAF+A=+—0  K~&£E
losses of US$111,566,000 (2014: US$97,469,000) WA AR EATIEEE 111,566,000 7T
available for offset against future taxable profits. (ZZF—PU4 : 97,469,000 jT ) A
No tax losses has been recognised as deferred tax FRYEFIR B 1% 2 IR F o RS REE
assets due to the uncertainty of its recoverability. FEEUEME - EEWERBIELERIR
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of BEMNMIAEE - EAREERZNIEE
US$644,000, US$7,058,000 and US$15,765,000 8 M644,0003% T * 7,058,000 3% 7T &
that will expire in 2017, 2019 and 2020 (2014: 15,765,000 7T ( —ZF— Y4 : 345,000
US$345,000, US$1,444,000, US$4,703,000 and ST~ 1,444,000 7T ~ 4,703,000 & 7T
US$7,536,000 that will expire in 2016, 2017, 2018 7,536,000 T H R ZF—RF -
and 2019), respectively. Other losses may be carried —E—+tF 2 N\FRZZE-NF
forward indefinitely. FE) SRR ZE—+tF ZFT—NF
RZZ-ZFIH - HepE 8RR &R
HAE A -
The Group does not have any deductible temporary AEBEEMFYERBEERYRER
differences for both years. KH o
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 41 EREIE
2015 2014
—E-HE —ZTNOF
US$’000 US$’'000
FEx FET
Capital expenditure in respect of BRI RN AR B BT 7
the acquisition of property, WmEREBHEBA
plant and equipment contracted but ~ #7% - #22 KR
not provided for in the consolidated 2 &Ny H
financial statements 8,829
Capital expenditure in respect of A AVMER AR S BT 7S
the capital injection in an associate ~ WERBEZITE
contracted but not provided —HE A A]
for in the consolidated ZERZH
financial statements 5,175
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42 OPERATING LEASE 42 REHERE
COMMITMENTS
Lessee ERABEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REER - AREBERB AR 2 & E

outstanding commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases,
which fall due as follows:

MERBREAZEZ&ZVES ZHOH
REAT

2015 2014
—E-RF —ZTNF
US$’000 US$’000
FER FE7
Land and buildings T REF
— within 1 year — RE—F 2,064
—in the 2nd to 5th year inclusive —REZFEZFRF
(BEEMFEBREER) 3,019
5,083

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its container depot sites.
Leases are negotiated for an average period of 1 to
10 years and rentals are fixed for an average of 1 to
3 years.

Lessor

At the end of the reporting period, no leasehold land
and buildings of the Group were rented out under
operating leases for both years. Property rental
income earned during the year was US$37,000
(2014: US$57,000). These properties do not have
committed tenants for the next year.

LEME HEAKENTREME S 2
He HOTFIBRES/1EI0F - M
HeEHFHEER1E34F -

fEREHBEA

RREHR  AEE2FRWLE L
MEFHALEHEERL - RAFEE -
MK EMEFSHES WA A 37,0003%
JTT(ZZ—PU4F : 57,00037T) ° &
FERR—FWELTEAHEA ©

[ U B RN N T —
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43

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than those disclosed in notes 27, 28, 29, 30
and 35 to the consolidated financial statements,
details of transactions between the Group and other
related parties are disclosed below.

During the year, the Group entered into the following
trading transactions with related parties that are not

43

EBREQATRS
Brér B BRI 5E27 » 28 - 29 » 30

K 354 FE A

AEEEEMEAES

RHHBREWT -

RERN - AEBEEBREQR GEAE

B E)ERATEERS :

members of the Group:

2015 2014
—E-HF _—TNF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Sales to immediate MEEZERAREEEm
holding company (Note a) (Hiita) 85
Sales to fellow mERMNBARIEEER
subsidiaries (Note b) (K15tb) 62,148
Sales to an associate m—EE A RIEHEE R -
Rental income from m— R RKT B A A WERFE &
a fellow subsidiary (Note b) (K15tb) 57
Rental expense to m—RRMNBARSZMHES
a fellow subsidiary (Note b) (HtzEb) 314
Interest income from m— & EBEDEREERFE
a joint venture 307

Interest income from

[] — B i 2 R E SR B

an associate

Note a: Before 1 April 2014, the ultimate and immediate
holding company of the Company was PIL, a company
incorporated in the Republic of Singapore. With effect
from 1 April 2014, PIL became a wholly owned subsidiary
of PIL Holdings, a company newly incorporated in the
Republic of Singapore. Since then, the ultimate holding
company is PIL Holdings and the immediate holding
company is PIL.

Note b: The fellow subsidiaries are Pacific International Lines
(China) Ltd., PIL Logistics (China) Co., Ltd., Pacific
International Lines (H.K.) Limited and Strategic Times
Limited, in which PIL, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, also the immediate holding company of the
Company, has controlling interest.

Hiita -

Mkt -

R-FE—[UF[A—HET KR FIRJRA
REZZERN G| BAFHE - Z R aER
FMBERMEK T Z HERAG] - R=ZF
—PFPG A —HEtE - KA 5L A PIL
Holdings 2 £ EM1E 2\ 7] » Z a1 B—F
RETIE LR L2 ZA] » Bt 2
RE]ZBHRIER A G R EZHER 2 7] 57 5
A PIL Holdings J& X “FR4 7 °

FEEWE L B FHE(FE)BRAR
Al XAFEEHE)EFRL A XF
W (& &) B R A F] K Strategic Times
Limied » X P — KR A2 FZRE
REBEERNG] — HEZEN AR
JEs o
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} 3 M &

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43 BEHEEQRTRS (&)
(Continued)
The balances with the related parties are disclosed BRER R EREREE M BEARRE
in the consolidated statement of financial position N MsE27 - 2829 30 M35 E ¢ It
and notes 27, 28, 29, 30 and 35. All such balances EFIE T —RIEEBKRKETEAGOKX
are subject to normal credit terms of 60 days (2014: —F—PUF : 60K) °
60 days).
Remuneration of key management FEEBAB ZHM
personnel
The remuneration of directors of the Company and REBEERHAMEBETIEAE ZH M
other members of key management during the year LU
was as follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZETNF
US$’000 US$’'000
FEx FEr
Short-term employee benefits 5EHATE A 2,632
Post-employment benefits ZERIERE A 71
Share-based payment AR 32 -
2,603
The remuneration of directors of the Company and EENAMTEEBABZHMEEE
key executives is reviewed by the remuneration MEZEGREBEAXRBRTSBER
committee having regard to the performance of B o
individuals and market trends.
EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 44 HBEHIR®BZEIE

In December 2015, the Group signed agreements
with Modex Manufacturing Limited and Modex
Production Limited to acquire the remaining 50%
equity interest in Qidong Singamas Offshore
Equipment Co., Ltd (“QSOE”) and 100% equity
interest of a wholly-owned subsidiary of Modex
Production Limited, Taicang Modex Energy
Engineering Limited, respectively at nil consideration.
In addition, the Group has agreed to engage Modex
Asia Limited as the sales agent of cabin and cargo
offshore containers at a commission charge. These
transactions were completed in January 2016.

RZE—RF+_RA AEEHA
Modex Manufacturing Limited & Modex
Production Limited 2% & 1 3% * 9 Bl A
THREREZREMEIREERA
a) T #4250 % B% # & Modex Production
Limited W) 2 BB 2 F AR KB R
HBEERITIZEBMR AR Z100% M -
gt o - 7R & B A & BB B Modex Asia
Limited £ /3 7€ % M 8 AN/ T & £ 46 iH
B 2RIE - M Modex Jie W ER A & (&
® o BERXFR_FT—RF—HTK °

B L 1 e
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45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45 ARARZETEMEARZFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
a. General information of a. HEBARZ—RHEESR
subsidiaries
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries as at R-E-—RAFR-_T-NFE+—
31 December 2015 and 2014 are set out A=+—H  ARRIZHEAF
below: ZEHET
Issued and fully
Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BRITR
R/ BERG/
MEARER aftE  ANRFEZRELH BARA IERH
2015 2014
Z2-1f _T-MF
DY Terminal Ltd. Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Provision of
EAEEARAT &R HK$1,000,000 container
LaR storage and
1,000,000%7C repair services
RILERNMEE
R#BRT
Eng Kong Container & Warehousing Ltd. ~ Hong Kong 73.3% Ordinary Investment
KEEREEERAR BE HK$300,000 holding
LEk REER
300,000%7C
Eng Kong Container Services Ltd. Hong Kong 73.3% Ordinary Provision of
KEEEREERAR] BB HK$3,000,000 container
L@k storage, drayage
3,000,000 and repair services
RILERM
g
R
Guangdong Shun An Da Pacific Container  British Virgin - 100.0% US$1,000 Marketing dry
Co., Ltd. * Islands (Note 1) 1,000%7T freight and
RBRLHE Wi specialised containers
in the PRC
RIS
EE ST
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45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45 ERPATZFEMMEB AT ZHE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MBARz—RMEERE)

subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities

BEAR

R/ BERG/
WEAFER dfed RO REL S BaRA TEEH

2015 2014
“E-nf “TMF

Hui Zhou Pacific Container Co., Ltd. ** PRC 91.0% US$40,000,000 Manufacturing
EMATERERARF P E 40,000,000 7 of dry freight
containers
BER R
Ningbo Pacific Container Co., Ltd. *" PRC 100.0% 100.0% 1S$20,000,000 Manufacturing
ERATERBRAR " HE 20,000,000 75 of dry freight
and specialised
containers
BER R
REER
Qidong Pacific Logistics Equipment PRC 100.0% N/A Manufacturing
Co., Ltd.**("Qidong Pacffic”) i (Note 2) of refrigerated
BRATIREEERAR " TNER containers
([ERAF]) (Wit2)  BELRRERM
Qidong Pacific Port Co., Ltd. " PRC 100.0% 100.0%  RMB154,000,000 Provision of
BRATABARAR" Gl AR 154,000,000 70 container
terminal services
REEEEMR

BERG

O 0 0 B RN N —
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45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

45 ERBZEEMBRATZFHE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (#&)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. HEBARZ—RMHEERE)
subsidiaries (Continued)
Issued and fully
Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BEAR
R/ BRRR/
WEARER dfted  RARFEREL S BaRA TBEH
2015 2014
“E-nf “T-MF
Qidong Singamas Energy Equipment Co., Ltd.**  PRC 100.0% 1000%  US$194,500,000 Manufacturing
(‘Qidong Singamas”) i (Note 2) of dly freight,
BRBRERRERRAR A 194,500,000 % T specialised
(TExEH)) (Hz#2) and refrigerated
containers
R
R RERA
Qingdao Pacific Container Co., Ltd.”" PRC 100.0% 1000%  US$126,605,700 Manufacturing
EEATERERAR e 126,605,700 7T of dry freight
and specialised
containers
BN ERRA
REER
Shanghai Baoshan Pacific Container PRC 77.2% US$25,300,000 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. #(“Shanghai Baoshan”) i (Note3) 2530000057  of dry freight and
DEBWATERBRAR (Hit3) specialised containers
([ E&8W]) BUER R
REER
Shanghai Pacific International Container PRC 64.9% US$26,000,000 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. * #(“Shanghai Pacific’) i (Note3) ~ 26,000,000%7T  of tank containers
FEATERERARAR ¢ (Hi23) BB
([ 8AF])
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45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45 ARPBZ2FEMBLATZFHE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (#)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MEBATRzZz—RHER#E)

subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully
Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BEAR
R/ BERG/
WEAFER dfed RO REL S BaRA TEEH
2015 2014
~%-1fF ZF-MF
Shanghai Regferco Container Co., Ltd. * # PRC 90.9% US$22,000,000 Manufacturing
LEERLRERAR AR P E 22,000,000 7 of refrigerated
containers
BERRERA
Singamas Container Industry Co., Ltd. * ¥ PRC 75.0% US$5,100,000 Manufacturing
BRERIZARAR i 5,100,000% 7 of collapsible
flatrack and
specialised
containers
RETRAE
FRREER
Singamas Container Holdings (Shanghai PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$2,000,000 Provision of
Limited ** i 2,000,000%7T technical and
BHEREE(LE)BRAR"" development services
of container
manufacturing
R ERMEIE
i R IR
Singamas Depots Holdings Ltd. * Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary  Investment holding
BRESEXARAR &R HK$10,000 RERK
TRk

10,0008 7

O 0 0 B RN N —
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45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

45 ERBZEEMBRATZFHE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (#&)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. HEBARZ—RMHEERE)
subsidiaries (Continued)
Issued and fully
Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BEAR
R/ BRRR/
WEARER dfted  RARFEREL S BaRA TBEH
2015 2014
“E-nf “T-MF
Singamas Management Services Limited *  British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Provision of
Islands 1,000%7T management
RBRNES services
REERRE
Singamas Logistics (Qingdao) Co., Ltd. ¥ PRC 60.0% US$5,780,000 Provision of
B (E8)ERAR e 5780,000%7C  container storage
and repair services
RIUERNEE
R
Singamas Logistics (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. *" PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$6,500,000 Provision of
BRmR(K2) BRAR e 6,500000%7C  container storage
and repair services
RIUEENEE
R
Singamas North America, Inc. @ USA 100.0% 100.0% US$500,000 Marketing
*H 500,000%7T containers in
the USA
Singamas Terminals (China) Ltd. British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%7T holding
ERRAES RERR
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45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45 ERPATZFEMMEB AT ZHE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MEBARZ—RHEERE)
subsidiaries (Continued)
Issued and fully
Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BEAR
R/ BERG/
WEAFER dfed RO REL S BaRA TEEH
2015 2014
“E-nf “TMF
Singamas Terminals Holdings Ltd. * British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%7T holding
AERLES REBR
Singamas Terminals (HK) Ltd. British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%7T holoing
EERAES REER
Singamas Terminals (Hong Kong) Ltd. Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Provision of
BREEER (FE) BRAR BB HK$5,000,000 mid-stream
LRk services
5,000,000/ Rt RfER
FRi%
Singamas Warehouse (Shanghai) British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Company Ltd. Islands 1,000%7T holding
ERRAES RERR
Superb Gain Holdings Limited* British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Property
Islands 1,000%7T holding
AERAES ESSY]
Tianjin Pacific Container Co., Ltd. * # PRC 97.0% US$25,700,000 Manufacturing
REXFERBRAR e 25,700,000 7 of dry freight
and specialised
containers
BERERA

RiER

O 0 0 B RN N —
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45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

(Continued)

45 ERBZEEMBRATZFHE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (#&)
General information of a. MWEARZ—RMEERE)
subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities

BEAR

R/ BRRR/
WEARER dfted  RARFEREL S BaRA TBEH

2015 2014
“E-nf “T-MF

Tianjin Singamas Container Co., Ltd. ** PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$2,000,000 Provision of
REBWERERAR " i 2,000,000%7C  container storage,
repair and trucking
services, and
serving as a
freight station
REEERMREE
% g
SEURS
Well Key Limited Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Provision of
BinERAR" A HK$1 human resource
L@ management service
1AL REANER
SE
Wellmass Group Ltd. British Virgin 60.0% US$10,000 Investment
Islands 10,000%7T holoing
EERAES RERR
Xiamen Pacific Container Manufacturing PRC 100.0% 100.0% 1JS$23,000,000 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. *" i 23,000,000 7T of dry freight
EFATERIERRAR - containers
RER SR
Yixing Singamas Metal Products PRC 95.0% US$200,000 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. ** i 200,000%7T  of container parts
HEREHEBHnARAR RES KRR
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45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

a.

General information of

subsidiaries (Continued)

* Subsidiaries held directly by the Company

# Equity joint venture established in the PRC in

accordance with relevant laws and regulations

Wholly owned foreign enterprise established in

the PRC in accordance with relevant laws and

regulations

@ Represented common shares held by the
Company

The principal place of operation of each
subsidiary is the same as the place of
incorporation/registration stated above,
except for those companies incorporated in
British Virgin Islands and Bahamas which are
incorporated for investment holding purpose.

The above list gives the principal subsidiaries
of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, principally affected
the results and assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt
securities outstanding at the end of the year.

Notes:

1 Guangdong Shun An Da Pacific Container Co.,
Ltd. was struck-off in April 2015.

2 On 30 June 2015, Qidong Pacific was merged
with Qidong Singamas and Qidong Pacific was
deregistered after the merger. The paid-up share
capital of Qidong Singamas was then increased
to US$147,500,000 after the merger.

Moreover, an additional capital injection of
US$47 million was made to Qidong Singamas
in Dec 2015, which increased the paid-up share
capital to US$194,500,000.

ARTRZEEMBAR 217
(#)

a. MEBRXRAZ—RUEER @

* FARAEZEITE B R A
# RIEB BZ DI R AL ER T B T

ZEmEELF
: RIEB BZEPI R AER T B T
ZEINEHBLFE

@ HELLEF B BB

BB X RS R ERFKL
MMERREZER ARSI - BB
NEREER 2 TR FX
P2 BN/ FE M B () o

ERAFIERARBEETRRY

AEBzBNKREEEEATE
MEEMBLAF - ZIK AEEY
mﬁhf/\,\ﬂiﬂﬁﬁ NCIWASRES
SlHRRBER

BEARFEL RE TR S
AREREEZBAES -

Mt -

7 Guangdong Shun An Da Pacific
Container Co., Ltd. BER=F—7
FEPG it o

2 R-ZFB-—AFNA=+H BEFX

A FHEEFL RS G TS G E
HERAXFidtye REHEE
KR B R A 8 2
147,600,000 7T °

Wk R=ZFE—AF+Z AR
R B8 S )+ & T 47,000,000
Eo BEHR AL ME
194,500,000 % T -

N 0 U B — RN .
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45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

45 ERBZEEMBRATZFHE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MBARZ—KBHEERSE)
subsidiaries (Continued)
Notes: (Continued) it (&
3 By end of December 2014, the Group made 3 R-ZFE—WFF+ZF[E  F&EH
an additional acquisition of 4.9% equity interest KA R #29,277,0007T (6% R
of Shanghai Pacific at a cash consideration of 4,770,000% % ) 2 H 2 (CEHIE
RMB29,277,000 (equivalent to US$4,770,000). B FEESN4.9% ARIEIERS - B
Such acquisition also increased the Group’s R EFXFIfsE FEE165%
effective shareholding of Shanghai Baoshan, HYIR FE B o MRS
from 74.0% to 77.2%, since Shanghai Pacific T E FEEL B AR EE
holds 65% equity interest of Shanghai Baoshan. 74.0% E N2 77.2% °
b. Details of non-wholly owned b. BEEAFERBRFRERZ
subsidiaries that have material FE2EMBEAAFE
non-controlling interest
The table below shows details of non-wholly- TRETAEEHREERNIFER
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have RRER IR EWB ARG
material non-controlling interests: 15 -
Proportion of
ownership interests
and voting Profit (loss)
Place of rights held by allocated to Accumulated
Name incorporation/ non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
of subsidiary registration interests interests interests
FERRRER (58
A/ FEhRER PREFER iR
WEARER HMbE FRELL RRER RR#Es
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
—¥-1f  -T-@F  C¥-EF  -“T-MF %-EF  “ET-QF
Us$000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$000
Tin T Tin i

Hui Zhou Pacffic Container Co., Ltd. PRC 9.0%
BNATEEERAR hE
Shanghai Baoshan Pacific PRC 22.8%
Container Co., Ltd. i (Note)
EBUATERARAT (Hit)
Shanghai Pacffic International PRC 35.1%
Container Co., Ltd. il (Note)
HEATERERARAT (Hit)
Shanghai Reeferco Container Co., Ltd. PRC 9.1%
LR RERERAR f

7,129

19,246

13,179
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45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

b.

Details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interest (Continued)
Note:

By end of December 2014, the Group made an
additional acquisition of 4.9% equity interest of Shanghai
Pacific at a cash consideration of RMB29,277,000
(equivalent to US$4,770,000), and at the same time,
decreased its ownership interest and voting rights held
by non-controlling interests by 4.9%. Such acquisition
also decreased the effective ownership interest and
voting rights of Shanghai Baoshan held by non-
controlling interests by 3.2%, since Shanghai Pacific
holds 65% equity interest of Shanghai Baoshan.

Summarised financial information in respect
of each of the Group’s non-wholly owned
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

45 EARFZETEMBRATZHFE

(%)

b.

BREBERFERRREDRZ
FE2EWBARFE @)

Wit

REF—PYFE+ = FE + FEELANA R
29,277,000t (1% 4,770,000 %% ).2
B R IBYIE LG FEEI4.9% RIEE
7 BULEIF - TR TR IR R R
IR ER K HE4.9%  BIR_EE
X FIFE FIGEI65%0RIEEZ
W FEH D T B R R e an
FFERIRIBER KR 3.2% -

AT ER T RSB A EA IR
B RERZFFEEMBRARZ
FIBERBE - TIHBERE
ERAREAN BRI 2 FE
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45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

b. Details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interest (Continued)

45 ERBZEEMBRATZFHE

(#&)

b.

BREBERFERRREDRZ
FE2EWBAAFE )

Hui Zhou Pacific
Container Co., Ltd,
ENATER
ERAT
2015 2014
US§000 US$1000
E-1fF CFIE
Ti8 T
Curtent assets THEE 88,675 123563
Non-cunent assets FRBEE 33,051 3498
Curtent liablties il (52,181) (76,850)
Eouty atirbutable to HAFRREER
owners of the Company 63,286 72,082
Nor-controling interests FERRRER 6,259 7,129
Revenue e 143,379 255,761
Expenses -4 (143,521) (42529)
(Loss) proft for the year KER (BR) &R (142 13238
(Loss) proft attrbutatle to HAFRRE(L
owners of the Company (i) &l (129) 12,047
(Loss) proft attoutable to FERRRERE.
the non-controling inerests ~ (518) &7 (19) 1,191
(Loss) proft for the year KEE (BR) &R (142 13238
Other comprehensiveincome AR AIRE
atirbutable to owners Efb2EkE
of the Company -
Other comprehensiveincome. SRR FER
atrbutable to ErEt2ElE
the non-contraling interests -
Other comprehensiveincome. ~~ ERE2ERE
forthe year

Total comprehensive (expense)
income attributable to
owners of the Company

Total comprefensive (expense)
income attributable to
the non-controling inferests

AAAIRREL

2 (%)

WahE (129) 12,047
FERRRER

b2 ()

WakE (13) 1,191

Fn2mE(xd)
(142 13238

Total comprehensive (expense)
income for the year

ittt

Shanghai Baoshan Pacific
Container Co,, Ltd.

LERUATER
ERAT
2015 2014
US§000 US$000
E-1F CE-Qf
Tid TiE

81,401 108,693
12,738 13,028

(10363 VY

65,287 73901
18,489 1924
97312

(100,349)

(3,037

(234

(699)

(3,087 508
2.3 387
(699) 1360

(3,037 500

Shanghai Pacific
International
Container Co,, Ltd.
LEATERER
BRAR

2015 2014
US$'000 181000
5-1F CFIE
T8 T3

50,148 88717

34521 28935

(26,429) (41,906)

43578 32,62
14,668 18,179
11,247 84,098

(107,008

818%)

4209 2,057

2,749 1304
1490

4209

149

4289 2,057

Shanghai Reeferco

Container Co., Ltd.
LERHRRER
ERAT

2015 2014
Us$'000 188000
5-3F CFIE
T8 Ti2
41,042 91,087
9,058 10,178
(5,522) (33,259)
40,524 61,777
4,054 6,180
37,866 67,540
(39,199 (65,001)
(1,333) 2,539
(1,212) 2,308
(121) 21
(1,333) 2,639
(1,212) 2,308
(121) 231
(1,339) 2539
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45 EARBZETEWBRRZHE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(Continued)
b. Details of non-wholly owned b. BEEEAFERRREZRZ

subsidiaries that have material

FEEMBR RS &)

non-controlling interest (Continued)

US§000 US$000 US§000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000
-1 “5-RF  ZE-Ef “F-@F  CE-3F CE-POF CE-1fF CE-PF

Dividends peid to BRHARIRE
non-contraling interests BaRE

Net cash from (used i) EXEIRE ()
operating acttes ReTE

Net cash (used i) from FAEE (TR 5
investing acthites RERE

Net cash (used i) from HAEE (TR fE
financing acttes ReFE

Net cash inlow (outfon) FEEEA (F)

Shanghai Pacific
Hui Zhou Pacific Shanghai Baoshan Pacific International Shanghai Reeferco
Container Co., Ltd. Container Co,, Ltd. Container Co,, Ltd. Container Co., Ltd.
ENKTEHE DERLATEE bExTEREH LERRRRER
ERA BRAT BRAR BRAR
2015 014 2015 014 2015 014 2015 2014

T32 T*e T3 Tié T3¢ Txé T3¢ Txé

- - 2,005 =
20,254 (15,354) 5850
(47) 1,759 1,556
(17,445) (179) 1

1,862 (13,770) 7420

857 63

15
(68) (18,363) 2
5,398 20392) 16,268 10,098

-
1,19 14,3816 8,987

8
4

T S 0

ST



I AP MO o S

256 Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements &1 #& k& ki

46 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

46 ART BB R ERR

POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE

COMPANY

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

FRBEE

Investments in subsidiaries KB AR ZIKE
Investments in associates REE N R ZIRE
Available-for-sale investment AEHEZRE
Derivative financial instruments PTESMTA
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables  FE1< & H b e U 7k 18
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE LA BfY B8 R B 3R IE

Bank balances and cash

ﬁﬁm%&ﬁi

Current liabilities

Accruals and other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Amount due to immediate
holding company
Amounts due to associates

RBAE
FERT & M R B AR A AR
e A RIFIR

PN BRI T IR

FE'{—J-Hﬁ EWNE] /TJ\IE

Bank borrowings RITER
Net current assets RBEEFRE
Total assets less current liabilities EEAFERABEE

2015
—E-FE
US$’000
FEx

902
392,112
517
2,567

396,098

10,114
217,514
29,636

257,264

16

126
70,000
82,816

174,448

570,546

2014
—m%
US$'000
T

4,300
345,112
517
2,567
239

352,735

15,151
245,420
51,079

311,650

3,136
3,614

51
35,000
41,806

269,844

622,579
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46 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 46 A RTF BN K ER K
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE (#&)
COMPANY (Continued)
2015 2014
—F-HF ZT-MF
US$’000 US$’'000
FER FET
Capital and reserves BEAXKFE
Share capital A& A 268,149 268,149
Share option reserve fEA RS 3,367 3,367
Accumulated profits ZEE A 54,010 36,063
325,526 307,579
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings RITER 245,000 315,000
Derivative financial instruments TEeRTHE 20 —
245,020 315,000
570,546 622,579
The Company’s statement of financial position was KRB ZHERRARGER R ESE
approved and authorised for issue by the board of RZE—RFE=Z AT EBHERKELD
directors on 17 March 2016 and are signed on its 2 WA TIARRESREESE
behalf by:
Teo Siong Seng RIAE Teo Tiou Seng REAE

Director E% Director ZF

E N 0 R e —
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46 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 46 KA TE 2R R ES K
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE (#%&)
COMPANY (Continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves RATZEREE
Share Share option Hedge Accumulated
premium reserve reserve profits Total
RIVEE  BRERE Fapal=c] EG | #E

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TET TEL TEIL TEL TEL

At 1 January 2014 R-Z—N&—H—H 236,964 3,420 - 48,821 289,205
Loss for the year KEEBRE - - - (4,677) (4,677)
Fair value adjustments on WETE AR MELH
forward contracts designated 2z HiA KK AL
as cash flow hedges BEAZ - - (8,071) = (3,071)
Reclassification of AR EEBE
fair value loss RERREED
from hedge reserve ZEn
to profit or loss - - 3,071 - 3,071
236,964 3,420 - 44,144 284,528
Transfer upon abolition REFET 2 BRRA
of par value under GBI EUERR A
the new Hong Kong EfERRRNEE
Companies Ordinance B (236,964) - - - (236,964)
Share repurchase RADEIEE - - - (327) (327)
Transfer from share option eefd b iy
reserves to accumulated ZREaF
profits for forfeited options 2SR R A - (53) = 53 =
Dividend paid to the owners AR BIRRRALE.
of the Company - - - (7,807) (7,807)
At 31 December 2014 RZT—MmF
+-A=1+—H - 3,367 - 36,063 39,430
Profit for the year AEEHF - - - 27,525 27,525
- 3,367 - 63,588 66,955
Share repurchase R e - - - (024) (224)
Dividend paid to the owners R BIRRERALS.
of the Company - - (9,354) (9,354)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-1F
+=ZA=+-H - 3,367 - 54,010 57,377
Distributable reserves of the Company at RIBBEBRRIGHIZE 207 G5TE - AR
31 December 2015, calculated under section 297 of AR T -—AF+-_A=+—RHA#n
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted & 2 %% 554,010,000 F L (—ZF—N
to US$54,010,000 (2014: US$36,063,000). £ 1 36,063,000 7T) ©
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Five Year Financial Summary

HAFEHBERE

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-B=t-HLEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“2-1f  —T-m§E -“T-=f -T-—f 2%
% % % %
Sales Mix HEGRS
(as a percentage of sales)  (ABEBEHRILE)
Manufacturing: HEER:
Dry freight HERA 70 72 69 65
Refrigerated containers RFSRM 13 12 13 13
Tank containers e 5 6
US domestic containers EENESE 8 9
Other specialised containers ~ E- 5 HEfE )2
and container parts SRR 2 4 5 5
98 98 98 98
Logistics services iR 2 2 2 2
Total “g 100 100 100 100 100
TEUs TEUs TEUs TEUs TEUs
PGl TREER TRIEER TREEE  HREER
Production volume tEER
20-foot containers 0REER 163,847 197,569 184,698 238,126 288,524
40-foot containers LOREEH 30,934 35,150 33,942 47,700 60,480
40-foot high cube containers 40 RS F &£ 262,682 395,398 275,158 276,488 204,214
45-oot high cube containers 45 Rm FEER 9,798 1,185 2,871 7,500 8,220
Others Hith 59,632 57,172 28,780 30,288 66,576

526,893 686,474 526,449 600,102 648,014

E N 0 R e —
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Five Year Financial Summary A MK HE

For the year ended 31 December

BET-B=t-HL%EE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-1% —E-mEF —F-=F “£--F “F——F
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn T TE£n S TR
Revenue 2EH 1,126,414 1,546,483 1,282,988 1,536,608 1,817,718
Profit from operations eyl 16,562 65,024 61,573 116,734 224,188
Finance costs HKER (10,663) (13,802) (18,201) (19,676) (19,121)
Investment income RERA 5,086 4,704 5,064 4,421 3722
Change in fair value of derivative fTE2TA
financial instruments LANEEEE (259) 239 - - 931
Reclassification of fairvalue ~ #EE AP A
(loss) gain of derivative MiTESRTE
financial instruments AN EE]
designated as hedging (B8)RH
instruments from hedge HEREED
reserve FER - (3,071) 8,079 2,427 (7.734)
Share of results of associates ~ [EfGEE AR 2
(B18) &7 (2,450) (72) 920 575 12
Share of results of joint ventures  [EEAEMNE 7
afl (B1E) 659 (498) (288) (1,602) 2,638
Profit before taxation BRE A& 7 8,935 52,524 57,147 102,879 204,736
Income tax expense FiERES (10,287) (19,624) (17,859) (33,948) (50,909)
(Loss) profit for the year AEE (B1B) & (1,352) 32,900 39,288 68,931 153,827
Attributable to: fEl
Owners of the Company KRERE (2,729) 28,021 34,274 60,346 138,641
Non-controlling interests FERR R R 1,311 4,879 5,014 8,585 15,186
(1,352) 32,900 39,288 68,931 153,827
(Loss) earnings per share &% (&518) &7
Basic B2 ISRDEEIES USt 16cents 20l UST42cents Xl US249cents A1 US5.74 cents il
Diluted 3 TRDEEIES USt16cents 20l UST42cents &Il US249cents I US5.73 cents il
Assets and Liabilities BERGE
Total assets BEE 1,166,040 1,430,441 1,388,927 1,465,205 1,386,780
Total liabilties Baf (518,379) (758,008) (734,694) (816,175) (774,578)
647,661 672,433 654,233 649,030 612,202
Equity attributable to RARAIRRE SR
owners of the Company 595,282 617,630 598,263 579,162 545,545
Non-controlling interests FERR R ER 52,379 54,803 55,970 69,868 66,657
Total equity ERER 647,661 672,433 654,233 649,030 612,202




BWEBEBEXAERLA
SINGAMAS CONTAINER HOLDINGS LIMITED

19th Floor, Rykadan Capital Tower,

135 Hoi Bun Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BEEBNEBBB 1 RREELAKRE 1912
Tel E5E: (852) 2598 7831

Fax f8K: (852) 2598 7847

E-mail £ : info@singamas.com

Website #31E : http://www.singamas.com
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